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Kemper at a glance

Kemper Corporation (NYSE: KMPR) is a leading multi-line insurance holding company providing
home, auto, life and health products to serve the individual and business markets in the

United States. Kemper markets to its customers through a network of independent agents,

brokers and career agents.

Our heritage

With a history of providing insurance for more than a century, Kemper remains committed to
serving its customers. The holding company was initially part of Teledyne, Inc., where it grew
through a series of acquisitions. In 1990 the company spun off as Unitrin, Inc., and in 2011 it
rebranded itself as Kemper Corporation. Today Kemper’s approximately 5,750 associates
provide innovative solutions for policyholders and agents.
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To our shareholders,

2016 was a year dedicated to rebuilding and improving the
company. While we have made tremendous progress, we
are just getting started. With the top tier leadership team
assembled, we are committed to realizing our potential.

Every day we partner with talented agents across the
country to deliver insurance solutions that meet our
customers’ unique home, auto, life and health insurance
needs. We appreciate that our policyholders and agents
trust us to help when they need us most, and we take our

responsibilities seriously.

So we are on the balls of our feet, pushing ourselves to
build capabilities, develop innovative solutions and deliver
the performance our customers and shareholders expect.

The work invigorates us, and we are excited about our

prospects.

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.

Delivering value

We are in the peace of mind business. Every day we
partner with agents and brokers across the country to
provide solutions that assist our policyholders in dealing
with the unexpected. By doing this well, we earn trust
and build our business. Everyone wins—policyholders,
agents and you, our shareholders.

We believe businesses are living, breathing organisms.
They require healthy nurturing or will suffer
consequences. At Kemper, we seek to improve and grow
our business—to build a foundation that supports
innovation and profitable growth to increase
shareholder value.

As we started 2016, we realized our businesses were
suffering the consequences of inadequate care and
feeding. Our primary goal in 2016 was to regroup and
reinvigorate our organization—to redefine our
trajectory while we continued to run our businesses. We
implemented improvements wherever it made sense, be
it small and incremental or large and capability-building.
By bringing together a team of leaders with proven track
records and insights, we are united in our quest to
deliver on the strategic plans we shared with you in
September.

I’'m pleased to say we made a lot of progress during the

year, yet we are still in our early stages of unlocking

embedded enterprise value. We entered the year

focused on three important topics we wanted to

address, in addition to delivering on our overall

performance goals and expense improvements:

e restore profitability in Alliance United

e implement new technology capabilities to support
our product and information needs and

e define and implement new voluntary enhanced
claim processes in our life insurance businesses

We made substantial progress on each of these fronts
and more. We benefit from the strength of our brand,
capital position, broad regulatory foundation,
investments capability and diverse business portfolio.
Our strategy builds on these strengths and addresses
the challenges to put us on the path to achieve our
potential.

The year in review

In addition to major initiatives, we made tangible
progress on improving underlying performance in many
areas.

In the Property & Casualty division, our legacy



nonstandard personal auto lines continued to perform
well. The Alliance United business started the year
pressured; we generated significant improvement
through a series of rate, claims and underwriting actions
throughout the year. While we have more work to do,
we’re pleased with the progress.

In our preferred personal auto line, we experienced
rising loss costs similar to others in the industry.
Unfortunately, we were late to recognize these trends,
which led to disappointing results. We are quickly taking
actions to return this line to health. Our preferred home
line earnings were down for the year, given the higher
level of catastrophe losses we experienced—something
we can expect when we are in business to insure risk.

In the Life & Health division, our underlying
performance continued to remain strong and stable. We
were pleased to implement voluntary outreach efforts
for our insureds.

Our investment portfolio once again performed well,
delivering a 5.1 percent pre-tax equivalent yield for the
year despite the continued low interest rate
environment. We manage our portfolio thoughtfully,
balancing risk while taking advantage of unique
opportunities that work within our framework.

Capital allocation
We ended 2016 with $2.0 billion of shareholders’ equity,
once again putting us in a strong capital position.

We are thoughtful about our capital allocation decisions,
as they can have a lasting impact, especially as we look
to grow our company.

In 2016 we maintained a competitive common stock
quarterly dividend of $0.24 per share.

Kemper Corporation

» S8.2 billion total assets
$2.0 billion shareholders’ equity
28% debt-to-capitalization ratio

Building a winning culture

To successfully implement any winning strategy you
need more than just great people. You need a cohesive
team that understands and is committed to achieving
the organization’s goals, even at the expense of
achieving it’s own sub-goals. This includes having the
right leadership team to set direction, the right agent
partners to distribute products, the right employees to
make the business model succeed, and a culture that
loves winning...and hates losing even more. This
combination of talent, drive and commitment is what
we need and what we are building. We challenge
ourselves and the status quo to find the best approaches
and best solutions to deliver on our objectives. We're
never done improving.

Looking forward

With more than a century serving our customers, we are
forging ahead. We outlined a robust plan, which we are
fulfilling, and we are working to achieve more. We see
opportunities on many fronts to leverage our strengths.
We have the infrastructure, talent and capabilities to
succeed. You have my commitment as the leader of this
company to deliver the value you seek in Kemper.

We are building something special here.

February 13, 2017

STEL)

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation

90% of fixed maturity portfolio rated investment grade

Strong capital & liquidity position
Conservative balance sheet
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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “2016 Annual Report”), including, but not limited to, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper” or the “Registrant”) and its subsidiaries (individually and
collectively referred to herein as the “Company”) and the notes thereto appearing in Item 8 herein (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”), the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations appearing in Item 7
herein (the “MD&A”) and the other Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules filed as a part hereof or incorporated by
reference herein, may contain or incorporate by reference information that includes or is based on forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the safe-harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Forward-looking statements give expectations or forecasts of future events. The reader can identify these statements by the fact
that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. They use words such as “believe(s),” “goal(s),” “target(s),”
“estimate(s),” “anticipate(s),” “forecast(s),” “project(s),” “plan(s),” “intend(s),” “expect(s),” e e
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might,” “may,” “could” and other
terms of similar meaning. Forward-looking statements, in particular, include statements relating to future actions, prospective
services or products, future performance or results of current and anticipated services or products, sales efforts, expenses, the
outcome of contingencies such as legal proceedings, trends in operations and financial results.

Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be wrong, and, accordingly, Kemper cautions readers not to place undue
reliance on such statements. Kemper bases these statements on current expectations and the current economic environment as
of the date of this 2016 Annual Report. They involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance; actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in
the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be affected by inaccurate assumptions or by known or
unknown risks and uncertainties that may be important in determining the Company’s actual future results and financial
condition.

In addition to the factors discussed below under Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” in this 2016 Annual Report, the reader should
consider the following list of general factors that, among others, could cause the Company’s actual results and financial
condition to differ materially from estimated results and financial condition:

Factors related to the legal and regulatory environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

*  Outcomes of state initiatives that could result in significant changes to, or interpretations of, unclaimed property laws
or significant changes in claims handling practices with respect to life insurance policies, including the requirement to
proactively use death verification databases, particularly any that involve retroactive application of new requirements
to existing life insurance policy contracts;

*  Adverse outcomes in litigation or other legal or regulatory proceedings involving Kemper or its subsidiaries or
affiliates;

*  Governmental actions, including, but not limited to, implementation of new federal and state laws and regulations, and
court decisions interpreting existing laws and regulations or policy provisions;

»  Uncertainties related to regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, insurance products, license applications,

dividends from insurance subsidiaries, acquisitions of businesses and other matters within the purview of state
insurance regulators;

Factors relating to insurance claims and related reserves in the Company’s insurance businesses

»  The incidence, frequency and severity of catastrophes occurring in any particular reporting period or geographic area,
including natural disasters, pandemics and terrorist attacks or other man-made events;

*  The number and severity of insurance claims (including those associated with catastrophe losses);

*  Changes in facts and circumstances affecting assumptions used in determining loss and loss adjustment expenses
(“LAE”) reserves, including, but not limited to, the number and severity of insurance claims, changes in claims
handling procedures and closure patterns and development patterns;

*  The impact of inflation on insurance claims, including, but not limited to, the effects on personal injury claims of

increasing medical costs and the effects on property claims attributed to scarcity of resources available to rebuild
damaged structures, including labor and materials and the amount of salvage value recovered for damaged property;

*  Developments related to insurance policy claims and coverage issues, including, but not limited to, interpretations or
decisions by courts or regulators that may govern or influence losses incurred in connection with hurricanes and other
catastrophes;

*  Orders, interpretations or other actions by regulators that impact the reporting, adjustment and payment of claims;



»  Changes in the pricing or availability of reinsurance, or in the financial condition of reinsurers and amounts
recoverable therefrom;

Factors related to the Company’s ability to compete

»  Changes in the ratings by rating agencies of Kemper and/or its insurance company subsidiaries with regard to credit,
financial strength, claims paying ability and other areas on which the Company is rated;

*  The level of success and costs incurred in realizing or maintaining economies of scale, implementing significant
business initiatives, including those related to, but not limited to, expense and claims savings, consolidations,
reorganizations and technology, and integrating acquired businesses;

*  Absolute and relative performance of the Company’s products and services, including, but not limited to, the level of
success achieved in designing and introducing new insurance products;

*  The ability of the Company to maintain the availability of critical systems and manage technology initiatives cost-
effectively to address insurance industry developments and regulatory requirements;

*  Heightened competition, including, with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors and alternate distribution
channels, introduction of new technologies, emergence of telematics, refinements of existing products and
development of new products by current or future competitors;

Factors relating to the business environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

»  Changes in general economic conditions, including, but not limited to, performance of financial markets, interest rates,
inflation, unemployment rates and fluctuating values of particular investments held by the Company;

»  Absolute and relative performance of investments held by the Company;

»  Changes in insurance industry trends and significant industry developments;

»  Changes in consumer trends and significant consumer or product developments;

»  Changes in capital requirements, including the calculations thereof, used by regulators and rating agencies;

»  Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for, the Company’s products or services
or after-tax returns from the Company’s investments;

e The impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting associations, residual market assessments and
assessments for insurance industry insolvencies;

*  Changes in distribution channels, methods or costs resulting from changes in laws or regulations, lawsuits or market
forces;

» Increased costs and risks related to cybersecurity and information technology, including, but not limited to, identity
theft, data breaches and system disruptions affecting services and actions taken to minimize the risks thereof; and

Other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in Kemper’s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).

Kemper cannot provide any assurances that the results contemplated in any forward-looking statements will be achieved or will
be achieved in any particular timetable or that future events or developments will not cause such statements to be inaccurate.
Kemper assumes no obligation to correct or update any forward-looking statements publicly for any changes in events or
developments or in the Company’s expectations or results subsequent to the date of this 2016 Annual Report. Kemper advises
the reader, however, to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.



PART I
Item 1. Business.

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and businesses. Kemper’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on

Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments thereto are accessible free of charge through Kemper’s website,
kemper.com, and as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

(a) GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS

Registrant is a holding company incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in 1990, with equity securities traded on
the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”). On August 25, 2011, Registrant adopted its current name, Kemper Corporation,
and changed its NYSE ticker symbol to KMPR. Prior to the name change, the Registrant was known as Unitrin, Inc. and traded
on the NYSE under the ticker symbol UTR.

(b) BUSINESS SEGMENT FINANCIAL DATA

Financial information about Kemper’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is contained
in the following sections of this 2016 Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference: (i) Note 18, “Business Segments,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements and (i) MD&A.

(c) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance
businesses. The Company conducts its operations through two operating segments: Property & Casualty Insurance and Life &
Health Insurance. The Company conducts its operations solely in the United States.

Kemper’s subsidiaries employ approximately 5,750 full-time associates supporting their operations, of which approximately
2,000 are employed in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment, approximately 3,250 are employed in the Life & Health
Insurance segment and the remainder are employed in various corporate and other staff and shared functions.



Property and Casualty Insurance Business
General

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment provides automobile, homeowners, renters, fire, umbrella and other types of
property and casualty insurance to individuals and commercial automobile insurance to businesses. Property insurance
indemnifies an insured with an interest in physical property for loss of, or damage to, such property. Casualty insurance
primarily covers liability for damage to property of, or injury to, a person or entity other than the insured. In most cases,
casualty insurance also obligates the insurance company to provide a defense for the insured in litigation arising out of events
covered by the policy.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment distributes its products primarily through independent agents and brokers who are
paid commissions for their services. In addition, the Life & Health Insurance segment’s career agents also sell contents
coverage for personal property to its customers.

Earned premiums from automobile insurance accounted for 58%, 54% and 48% of the Company’s consolidated insurance
premiums earned in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Revenues from automobile insurance accounted for 53%, 48% and 43%
of Kemper’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Automobile insurance
products include personal automobile insurance, ranging from preferred to nonstandard risks, and commercial automobile
insurance. Nonstandard personal automobile insurance policyholders tend to have difficulty obtaining standard or preferred risk
insurance, usually because of their driving records, claims experience or premium payment history. Homeowners insurance
accounted for 12%, 14% and 17% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums earned in 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Homeowners insurance accounted for 12%, 13% and 15% of the Company’s consolidated revenues from
continuing operations in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, and conducts business in more than 40 states
and the District of Columbia. The segment’s insurance products are offered by approximately 18,000 independent insurance
agents and brokers. As shown in the following table, five states provided 78% of the segment’s premium revenues in 2016.

Percentage
of Total

State Premiums
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Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company’s reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance (“Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves”)
are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end
of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by business segment at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Business Segments:

Property & Casualty INSUTAINCE ........cccuieiieriieiiieiiieriiesieeete sttt ettt eae et e steesaaesaeesseesaseenseeneesnnes $ 884.1 § 800.5

Life & Health INSUTANCE ....c..eouiiiiiiiiiiiiieic ettt sttt 4.5 52
Total BUSINESS SCEIMEILS. ....c.viivieiieiiiieitieiteteete et etesteeteeseestessesseesaessesseeseesaessesseessensessesseessensenseeseessensenseans 888.6 805.7
DiSCONtINUEA OPETALIONS .....cviivieiieiieieitieieteete et eteste bt eteeeessesseestestesseeseeseessesseessensessesseensensesseeneensensenseans 38.6 51.0
UNAILOCAtEA RESEIVES ......eeuieiiitietieiieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt e e ae et e ese et esaeeseentenseeseeneensensenseans 4.2 6.1
Total Property and Casualty InSurance RESEIVES. ........coveuieiiiiiiieieieii et $ 9314 § 8628

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual



ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures that may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, of which $16.7
million was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2016. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 57 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while minimizing variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and LAE are
fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE, also referred to as “development,” will occur
over time and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements
when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net income in the
period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements when the
Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net income.

Development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE from prior accident years for each of the Company’s
continuing business segments and discontinued operations in 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Continuing Operations:
Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .........oouiiiiieiieieieceit et $ 143 § 129 $§ 544
Life & Health INSUTANCE .......ccvieiieiieiieieeie ettt ettt eaeesbeenbeeseeseensees 0.1 (1.4) 0.9)
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net.. 14.4 11.5 53.5
Discontinued OPETAtiONS ........cccuieiieriieriieiieriiestterteeetesteette e ebeeteetesbeebeesseeseesseenseenseenees 6.3 8.6 3.6
Total Favorable Development, NEt...........ccveviiriiiirieiieieeeieieee et $ 207 $ 201 $ 571

See MD&A, “Loss and LAE Reserve Development,” “Property & Casualty Insurance,” and “Life & Health Insurance,” for the
impact of development on the results reported by the Company’s business segments. Also see MD&A, “Critical Accounting
Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” beginning
on page 57 for additional information about the Company’s reserving practices.

See Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information about
incurred and paid claims development for the 2012-2015 accident years as of December 31, 2016, net of reinsurance and
indemnification, as well as cumulative claim frequency and the total of incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) liabilities, including
expected development on reported claims included within the net incurred losses and allocated LAE amounts as of

December 31, 2016. See Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a
tabular reconciliation of the three most recent annual periods setting forth the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves as of the beginning of each year, incurred losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, changes in incurred
losses and LAE for insured events of prior years, payments of losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, payments
of losses and LAE for insured events of prior years and the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves at the end of
the year and additional information regarding the nature of adjustments to incurred losses and LAE for insured events of prior
years.

Catastrophe Losses

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and are expected to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of insured losses that
could occur in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses contribute to material year-to-year fluctuations in the
results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more likely to occur at
certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty insurance claims.
The occurrence and severity of catastrophic events cannot be accurately predicted in any year. However, some geographic
locations are more susceptible to these events than others. The Company has endeavored to manage its direct insurance
exposures in certain regions that are prone to naturally occurring catastrophic events through a combination of geographic



diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, modifications of, and/or
limitations to coverages and deductibles for certain perils in such regions and reinsurance. The Company has adopted the
industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events promulgated by Insurance Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”) to
track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event causes $25 million or
more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers. ISO-classified
catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions throughout this
2016 Annual Report utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,”
under the caption “Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/
or financial condition” for a discussion of catastrophe risk. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the factors that influence the process of estimating and establishing reserves for
catastrophes.

Reinsurance

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, modifications of, and/or
limitations to coverages and deductibles for certain perils in such regions and reinsurance. To limit its exposures to catastrophic
events, the Company maintains a primary catastrophe reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment.
Coverage for the primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers and reinsurance contracts. The Property
& Casualty Insurance segment and the Life & Health Insurance segment also purchase reinsurance from the Florida Hurricane
Catastrophe Fund (the “FHCF”) for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described below for the
Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program.

Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program for 2017 is provided by
three three-year reinsurance contracts. The first reinsurance contract provides coverage over the three-year period of January 1,
2015 through December 31, 2017 (the “2015 Reinsurance Contract”). The 2015 Reinsurance Contract provides coverage in two
layers, which together provide coverage for losses on individual catastrophes of $300 million in excess of $50 million.The
percentage of coverage under the 2015 Reinsurance Contract in the first, second and third years is 95%, 63.3% and 31.7%,
respectively. Under the 2015 Reinsurance Contract, the participation of each reinsurer decreases by one-third in the second year
and another one-third in the third year. Accordingly, the 2015 Reinsurance Contract provides coverage for 31.7% of losses on
individual catastrophes of $300 million in excess of $50 million in 2017. The second reinsurance contract provides coverage
over the three-year period of January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2018 (the “2016 Reinsurance Contract”). The 2016
Reinsurance Contract provides coverage in two layers, which together provide coverage for losses on individual catastrophes of
$300 million in excess of $50 million. Under the 2016 Reinsurance Contract, the percentage of coverage is 31.7% for each year
in the three-year period, and participation of each reinsurer remains the same over the entire three-year period. Accordingly, the
2016 Reinsurance Contract provides coverage for 31.7% of losses on individual catastrophes of $300 million in excess of $50
million in 2017. The third reinsurance contract provides coverage over the three year period of January 1, 2017 through
December 31, 2019 (the “2017 Reinsurance Contract”). The 2017 Reinsurance Contract provides coverage in two layers, which
together provide coverage for losses on individual catastrophes of $200 million in excess of $50 million, a $100 million
reduction in the coverage for losses on individual catastrophes in excess of $50 million provided under the 2015 Reinsurance
Contract and 2016 Reinsurance Contract. Under the 2017 Reinsurance Contract, the percentage of coverage is 31.7% for each
year in the three-year period, and participation of each reinsurer remains the same over the entire three-year period.
Accordingly, the 2017 Reinsurance Contract provides coverage for 31.7% of losses on individual catastrophes of $200 million
in excess of $50 million in 2017.



Coverage provided under the combined programs for 2017 (January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017) is provided in various
layers as summarized below.

Catastrophe Losses .

and LAE Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
REEAINE. ..ottt ettt aeeeaen $ — § 50.0 —%
Ist Layer of Coverage (Combination of 2017, 2016 and 2015 Reinsurance
(0] 15 211 1) ISP 50.0 150.0 95.0
2nd Layer of Coverage (2017 Reinsurance COntract)..........ccoeeeveeeereeneneeienieneeeeene 150.0 250.0 31.7
2nd Layer of Coverage (Combination of 2016 and 2015 Reinsurance Contracts)...... 150.0 350.0 63.4

The coverage presented in the preceding table differs from the coverage provided in 2016. See Note 20, “Catastrophe
Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining to the primary catastrophe reinsurance
programs for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment for 2016. To maintain the same level and percentage of coverage in
subsequent years as provided by the combined programs in 2017, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment will need to
purchase additional reinsurance in the future for the portion of the coverage expiring in 2017, 2018 and 2019.

The estimated aggregate annual premium in 2017 for the combined programs presented in the preceding table is $12.1 million.
In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by its catastrophe reinsurance program exceed
the retention for a particular layer, the combined programs require one reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the
Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available
under such layer. The reinstatement premium for the first layer of coverage is a percentage of the full original premium based
on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit. The reinstatement premium for
the second layer of coverage is a percentage of half the original premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the
Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.

In addition to the catastrophe loss exposures caused by natural events described above, Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies are exposed to losses from catastrophic events that are not the result of acts of nature, such as acts of
terrorism, the nature, occurrence and severity of which in any period cannot be accurately predicted. The companies have
reinsurance coverage to address certain exposures to potential future terrorist attacks. The reinsurance coverage for certified
events, as designated by the federal government, is from the Terrorist Risk Insurance Act and the coverage for non-certified
events is available in the catastrophe reinsurance program for Kemper’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. However,
certain perils, such as biological, chemical, nuclear pollution or contamination, are excluded from the reinsurance coverage for
non-certified events.

In addition to the catastrophe reinsurance programs described above, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies
utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize
exposures on larger risks.

Under the various reinsurance arrangements, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies are indemnified by
reinsurers for certain losses incurred under insurance policies issued by the reinsurers. As indemnity reinsurance does not
discharge an insurer from its direct obligations to policyholders on risks insured, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance
companies remain directly liable. However, provided that the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s
property and casualty insurance companies is limited to the amount of risk that they retain. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies purchase their reinsurance only from reinsurers rated “A-" or better by A. M. Best Co., Inc. (“A.M. Best”),
at the time of purchase. A.M. Best is an organization that specializes in rating insurance and reinsurance companies.

For further discussion of the reinsurance programs, see Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” and Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pricing

Pricing levels for property and casualty insurance products are influenced by many factors, including the frequency and severity
of claims, state regulation and legislation, competition, general business and economic conditions, including market rates of
interest, inflation, expense levels, and judicial decisions. In addition, many state regulators require consideration of investment
income when approving or setting rates, which could reduce underwriting margins. See MD&A under the caption “Property &
Casualty Insurance.”



Competition

Based on the most recent annual data published by A.M. Best, as of the end of 2015, there were 1,205 property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States. Kemper’s property and casualty group was among the top 9% of property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States as measured by net written premiums, policyholders’ surplus and admitted assets in 2015.
Among all personal lines automobile insurance writers, Kemper’s property and casualty group was the 27th largest writer as
measured by net written premiums in 2015.

Rankings by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile
Measurement Rank Rank
INET AQMITEEA ASSELS....iivtieuiieiieitiese ettt e et ettt et e st e eaeeaeesbe e seesseeseesseesseesseessseasaeessesssessseenseenseensenns 101 91%
INEt WITHEN PTOMIUMIS .....ecuiiiiiiiiieiieteeciie sttt aeesbeebe e teessa e seessaessaeesaessseenseenseenseenseens 62 94
Capital AN SUIPIUS......ooiviitieiiiiiceece ettt ettt et a ettt ettt e s teete e st e seeteessessesseeseensesseas 102 91

In 2015, the U.S. property and casualty insurance industry’s estimated net premiums written were $525 billion, of which nearly
80% were accounted for by the top 50 groups of property and casualty insurance companies. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies wrote less than 1% of the industry’s 2015 premium volume.

The property and casualty insurance industry is highly competitive, particularly with respect to personal automobile insurance.
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies compete on the basis of, among other measures, (i) using suitable pricing
segmentation, (ii) maintaining underwriting discipline, (iii) settling claims timely and efficiently, (iv) offering products in
selected markets or geographies, (v) utilizing technological innovations for the marketing and sale of insurance, (vi) controlling
expenses, (vii) maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and other ratings agencies and (viii) providing quality services to
independent agents and policyholders. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “The insurance industry is highly
competitive, making it difficult to grow profitability and within expectations of investors.”

Life and Health Insurance Business

The Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment consists of Kemper’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, United Insurance Company
of America (“United Insurance”), The Reliable Life Insurance Company (‘“Reliable”), Union National Life Insurance Company
(“Union National Life’), Mutual Savings Life Insurance Company (‘“Mutual Savings Life”), United Casualty Insurance
Company of America (“United Casualty”), Union National Fire Insurance Company (“Union National Fire”), Mutual Savings
Fire Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Fire”) and Reserve National Insurance Company (“Reserve National”). As
discussed below, United Insurance, Reliable, Union National Life, Mutual Savings Life, United Casualty, Union National Fire
and Mutual Savings Fire (the “Kemper Home Service Companies™) distribute their products through a network of employee, or
“career” agents. Reserve National distributes its products through a network of independent agents and brokers. These career
agents, independent agents and brokers are paid commissions for their services.

Earned premiums from life insurance accounted for 17%, 19% and 21% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums
earned in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Revenues from life insurance accounted for 23%, 25% and 27% of the Company’s
consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. As shown in the following table, five
states provided 51% of the premium revenues in this segment in 2016.

Percentage
of Total

State Premiums
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Kemper Home Service Companies

The Kemper Home Service Companies, based in St. Louis, Missouri, focus on providing individual life and supplemental
accident and health insurance products to customers of modest incomes who desire basic protection for themselves and their



families. Their leading product is ordinary life insurance, including permanent and term insurance. Face amounts of these
policies are lower than those of policies typically sold to higher income customers by other companies in the life insurance
industry. Approximately 77% of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s premium revenues are generated by the Kemper Home
Service Companies.

The Kemper Home Service Companies employ nearly 2,200 career agents to distribute insurance products in 25 states and the
District of Columbia. These career agents are full-time employees who call on customers in their homes to sell insurance
products, provide services related to policies in force and collect premiums, typically monthly. Premiums average about $21 per
policy per month with an average face value of $5,400. Permanent and term policies are offered primarily on a non-
participating, guaranteed-cost basis. These career agents also distribute and/or service certain property insurance products for
the Kemper Home Service Companies.

Reserve National

Reserve National, based in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, is licensed in 49 states throughout the United States and has traditionally
specialized in the sale of Medicare Supplement insurance and limited health insurance coverages, such as fixed indemnity and
accident-only plans, primarily to individuals in rural areas who often do not have access to a broad array of accident and health
insurance products tailored to meet their individual and family needs. Reserve National’s traditional distribution channel
consists of approximately 400 independent agents.

Reserve National began expanding its distribution channels during 2013 by launching two marketing channel initiatives —
Kemper Senior Solutions and Kemper Benefits. Kemper Senior Solutions markets life insurance and home health care products
focusing on the individual, senior-age demographic of the market place. Kemper Benefits sells voluntary products in the
employer market place. Brokers and non-exclusive independent agents are utilized to market and distribute products in these
new distribution channels. Reserve National currently has approximately 4,000 independent agents appointed in connection
with these initiatives.

Reinsurance

Consistent with insurance industry practice, the Company’s life and health insurance companies utilize reinsurance
arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposures on larger risks in its
life and health insurance businesses. As the face amounts of its issued policies are relatively small, the ceded risks and
corresponding premiums are also relatively small, particularly when compared to other companies in the industry. The segment
is also exposed to losses from catastrophes arising from insurance policies distributed by career agents of the Kemper Home
Service Companies. Over the last several years, the Kemper Home Service Companies have been intentionally reducing their
exposure to catastrophic events through the run-off of their dwelling insurance business. Accordingly, except for reinsurance
provided by the FHCF for catastrophe losses in Florida, the Kemper Home Service Companies have not carried catastrophe
reinsurance since 2012.

Lapse Ratio

The lapse ratio is a measure of a life insurer’s loss of in-force policies. For a given year, this ratio is commonly computed as the
total face amount of individual life insurance policies lapsed, surrendered, expired and decreased during such year, less policies
increased and revived during such year, divided by the total face amount of policies at the beginning of the year plus the face
amount of policies issued and reinsurance assumed in the prior year. The Life & Health Insurance segment’s lapse ratio for
individual life insurance was 6%, 6% and 7% in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The customer base served by the Kemper Home Service Companies and competing life insurance companies tends to have a
higher incidence of lapse than other demographic segments of the population. Thus, to maintain or increase the level of its
business, the Kemper Home Service Companies must write a high volume of new policies.

Pricing

Premiums for life and health insurance products are based on assumptions with respect to mortality, morbidity, investment
yields, expenses, and lapses and are also affected by state laws and regulations, as well as competition. Pricing assumptions are
based on the experience of Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries, as well as the industry in general, depending on the
factor being considered. The actual profit or loss produced by a product will vary from the anticipated profit if the actual
experience differs from the assumptions used in pricing the product.



Premiums for policies sold by the Kemper Home Service Companies are set at levels designed to cover the relatively high cost
of “in-home” servicing of such policies. As a result, Kemper Home Service Companies’ premiums have a higher expense load
than the life insurance industry average.

Premiums for Medicare supplement and other accident and health policies must take into account the rising costs of medical
care. The annual rate of medical cost inflation has historically been higher than the general rate of inflation, necessitating
frequent rate increases, most of which are subject to approval by state regulators.

Competition

Based on the most recent data published by A.M. Best, as of the end of 2015, there were 448 life and health insurance company
groups in the United States. The Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment ranked in the top 22% of life and health
insurance company groups, as measured by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus. Rankings by
admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile
Measurement Rank Rank
INET AQMITEEA ASSELS....ivtieiiieiietieie ettt ettt et e et e et e et e eabeeaeesaeebeesteeeseesseessseesseessessseesseenseenseenseans 88 80%
INEt WITHEN PTOMIUMS .....ocuiiiiiiiieieciiecitectt ettt e ste e sbe e teesae e aeestaessaeesaeesseesbeesseenseenseens 96 78
Capital ANd SUIPIUS.....c.oiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt ettt e e tb e taeeabeebe e beesbeebeestsesssessseeaseenns 94 79

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries generally compete by using appropriate pricing, offering products to selected
markets or geographies, controlling expenses, maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and providing competitive services
to agents and policyholders.

Investments

The quality, nature and amount of the various types of investments that can be made by insurance companies are regulated by
state laws. Depending on the state, these laws permit investments in qualified assets, including, but not limited to, municipal,
state and federal government obligations, corporate bonds, real estate, preferred and common stocks, investment partnerships,
limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships. In addition, the quality, nature and amount of the various types
of investments held by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries affect the amount of asset risk calculated by regulators and rating
agencies in determining required capital. See “Regulation” immediately following this subsection and Item 1A., “Risk Factors,’
under the caption “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net
investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses.”

B

The Company employs a total return investment strategy, with an emphasis on yield, while maintaining liquidity to meet both
its short- and medium-term insurance obligations. See the discussions of the Company’s investments under the headings
“Investment Results,” “Investment Quality and Concentrations,” “Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Critical Accounting Estimates,” in the MD&A, “Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” in Item 7A and Note 4, “Investments,” Note 13, “Income from Investments,” and
Note 22, “Fair Value Measurements,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Regulation
Overview of State Regulation

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they conduct business. Such
regulation pertains to a variety of matters, including, but not limited to, policy forms, premium rate plans, licensing of agents,
licenses to transact business, market conduct, trade practices, claims practices, transactions with affiliates, payment of
dividends, investments and solvency. In addition, insurance regulatory authorities perform periodic examinations of an insurer’s
financial condition, market conduct and other affairs.

Approval of Policy Rates and Forms

The majority of Kemper’s insurance operations are in states requiring prior approval by regulators before proposed policy or
coverage forms and rates for property, casualty, or health insurance policies may be implemented and used. However, provided
that the policy form has been previously approved, rates proposed for life insurance generally become effective immediately
upon filing with a state, even though the same state may require prior rate approval for other types of insurance.
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Financial Reports and Standards

Insurance companies are required to report their financial condition and results of operation in accordance with statutory
accounting principles prescribed or permitted by state insurance regulators in conjunction with the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”). State insurance regulators also prescribe the form and content of statutory financial
statements, set minimum reserve and loss ratio requirements and establish standards for the types and amounts of investments.
In addition, state regulators require minimum capital and surplus levels and incorporate risk-based capital (“RBC”) standards
promulgated by the NAIC. These RBC standards are intended to assess the level of risk inherent in an insurance company’s
business and consider items such as asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk and other business risks relevant to its operations.
In accordance with RBC formulas, a company’s RBC requirements are calculated and compared to its total adjusted capital to
determine whether regulatory intervention is warranted. At December 31, 2016, the total adjusted capital of each of Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels required under applicable RBC rules.

Guaranty Funds and Risk Pools

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to pay assessments up to prescribed limits to fund policyholder losses or liabilities
of insolvent insurance companies under the guaranty fund laws of most states in which they transact business. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries are subject to certain fees imposed on health insurers by the federal Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act (“Affordable Care Act”), including the Health Insurance Providers Fee (subject to a moratorium on collection of the
fee otherwise due in 2017 pursuant to the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2016), but not the fees associated with the
Reinsurance, Risk Adjustment and Risk Corridor programs, as Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries do not have any policies subject
to those fees. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also required to participate in various involuntary pools or assigned risk
pools, principally involving windstorms and high risk drivers. In most states, the involuntary pool participation of Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries is set in proportion to their voluntary writings of related lines of business in such states. See Item 1A.,
“Risk Factors,” under the caption “Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of
operations, liquidity and/or financial condition” for a discussion of the impact of required participation in windstorm pools and
joint underwriting associations on the ability of the Company to manage its exposure to catastrophic events.

Dividends and Other Transactions with Affiliates

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are also subject to the insurance holding company laws of the states in which they are
domiciled or commercially domiciled. Certain dividends and distributions by an insurance subsidiary are subject to prior
approval by the insurance regulators of its state of domicile. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “The ability of
Kemper to service its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders and/or make repurchases of its stock may be materially
impacted by lack of timely and/or sufficient dividends received from its subsidiaries.” Other significant transactions between an
insurance subsidiary and its holding company or other affiliates may require approval by insurance regulators in the state of
domicile of each participating insurance subsidiary.

Cybersecurity Regulation

Insurance regulators have been focusing increased attention on data security during financial exams, and new laws and
regulations are pending that would impose new requirements and standards for protecting personally identifiable information of
insurance company policyholders. For example, the New York Department of Financial Services has proposed a comprehensive
cybersecurity regulation that is expected to become effective during 2017. In addition, the NAIC has adopted the Cybersecurity
Bill of Rights, a set of directives aimed at protecting consumer data, and is working on a new model data security law that is
expected to incorporate the directives and impose additional requirements on insurance companies to the extent ultimately
adopted by applicable state legislation. The NAIC has also strengthened and enhanced the cybersecurity guidance included in
its handbook for state insurance examiners. The Company anticipates a continuing focus on new regulatory and legislative
proposals at the state and federal levels that further regulate practices regarding privacy and security of personal information.

Holding Company Regulation, Including Enterprise Risk Management and Governance

Nearly half of all states have adopted extensive modifications to their holding company laws. These modifications impose new
reporting requirements on Kemper and substantially expand the oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators
to assess enterprise risks within the entire holding company system that may arise from operations of Kemper’s insurance and
non-insurance subsidiaries. They also impose new reporting requirements on Kemper as the ultimate controlling person of its
insurance company subsidiaries in respect of, among other things, affiliated transactions and divestiture of controlling interests
in such insurance companies.
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In addition, the Company is subject to new laws that require insurers to maintain an enterprise risk management (“ERM”)
framework, perform regular assessments of the adequacy of the ERM framework and the company’s solvency and file an
annual ERM assessment summary report. The Company is also required to submit an annual disclosure with its lead state
regulator with information about board structure, policies, meeting frequency and oversight of critical risk areas and practices
of Kemper and/or its insurance company subsidiaries.

Additional regulation has also resulted from other measures in recent years including, among other things, tort reform, the
federal Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively the “Health Care
Acts”), the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), consumer privacy and data
security requirements, credit score regulation, producer compensation regulations, cybersecurity and financial services
regulation initiatives.

Change in Control Requirements

State insurance laws also impose requirements that must be met prior to a change of control of an insurance company or
insurance holding company based on the insurer’s state of domicile and, in some cases, additional states in which it is deemed
commercially domiciled due to the substantial amount of business it conducts therein. These requirements may include the
advance filing of specific information with the state insurance regulators, a public hearing on the matter, and the review and
approval of the change of control by such regulators. The Company has insurance subsidiaries domiciled or deemed
commercially domiciled in Alabama, California, Illinois, Louisiana, Missouri, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas and
Wisconsin. In these states, except Alabama, “control” generally is presumed to exist through the direct or indirect ownership of
10% or more of the voting securities of an insurance company. Control is presumed to exist in Alabama with a 5% or more
ownership interest in such securities. Any purchase of Kemper’s shares that would result in the purchaser owning Kemper’s
voting securities in the foregoing percentages for the states indicated would be presumed to result in the acquisition of control
of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries in those states. Therefore, acquisitions subject to the 10% threshold generally would
require the prior approval of insurance regulators in each state in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled or
deemed commercially domiciled, including those in Alabama, while acquisitions subject to the 5% threshold generally would
require the prior approval of only Alabama regulators. Similarly, consistent with the Model Holding Company Act, several of
the states in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled have enacted legislation that requires either the
divesting and/or acquiring company to notify regulators of, and in some cases to receive regulatory approval for, a change in
control.

Many state statutes also require pre-acquisition notification to state insurance regulators of a change of control of an insurance
company licensed in the state if specific market concentration thresholds would be triggered by the acquisition. Such statutes
authorize the issuance of a cease and desist order with respect to the insurance company if certain conditions, such as undue
market concentration, would result from the acquisition. These regulatory requirements may deter, delay or prevent transactions
effecting control of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries, or the ownership of Kemper’s voting securities, including transactions
that could be advantageous to Kemper’s shareholders.

Federal Government Regulation

Kemper’s health insurance subsidiaries are subject to additional regulation by the federal government. For example, the Health
Care Acts, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, have established minimum loss ratios, rating restrictions, mandates for
essential health benefit coverages, and restrictions or prohibitions on pre-existing condition exclusions and annual and lifetime
policy limits for health insurance policies.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act, enacted in 2010, profoundly increases federal regulation of the financial services industry, of
which the insurance industry is a part. Among other things, the Dodd-Frank Act formed a Federal Insurance Office (“FIO”)
charged with monitoring the insurance industry and conducting a study on methods to modernize and improve the insurance
regulatory system in the United States. FIO’s report, delivered to Congress in 2013, concluded that a hybrid approach to
regulation, involving a combination of state and federal government action, could improve the U.S. insurance system by
attaining uniformity, efficiency and consistency, particularly with respect to solvency and market conduct regulation. A hybrid
approach was also recommended to address the perceived need for uniform supervision of insurance companies with national
and global activities. FIO established the Federal Advisory Committee on Insurance (“FACI”) whose mission is to provide
recommendations to FIO on issues it monitors for Congress. While the NAIC continues to promote the strengths of the U.S.
state-based insurance regulatory system, both FIO/FACI and international standard setting authorities such as the International
Association of Insurance Supervisors are actively seeking a role in shaping the future of the U.S. insurance regulatory
framework. It is not yet known whether or how these organizations’ recommendations might result in changes to the current
state-based system of insurance industry regulation or ultimately impact Kemper’s operations.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Kemper is exposed to numerous risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from recent results or anticipated
future results. The following discussion details the significant risk factors that are specific to the Company. In addition to those
described below, the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected by other
factors not presently known by, or considered material to, the Company. Readers are advised to consider all of these factors
along with the other information included in this 2016 Annual Report, including the factors set forth under the caption “Caution
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page 1, and to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on related
subjects in its filings with the SEC.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and the evolving legal and regulatory landscape in
which they operate could result in increased operating costs, reduced profitability and limited growth.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries operate under an extensive insurance regulatory system. Current laws and regulations
encompass a wide variety of matters, including policy forms, premium rates, licensing, market conduct, trade practices, claims
practices, reserve and loss ratio requirements, investment standards, statutory capital and surplus requirements, restrictions on
the payment of dividends, approvals of transactions involving a change in control of one or more insurance companies,
restrictions on transactions among affiliates and consumer privacy. They also require the filing of annual and quarterly financial
reports and holding company reports. Pre-approval requirements often restrict the companies from implementing premium rate
changes for property, casualty and health insurance policies, introducing new, or making changes to existing, policy forms and
many other actions. Insurance regulators conduct periodic examinations of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries and can suspend or
delay their operations or licenses, require corrective actions, and impose penalties or other remedies available for compliance
failures. For a more detailed discussion of the regulations applicable to Kemper’s subsidiaries and related emerging
developments, see “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 10.

These laws and regulations, and their interpretation by the various regulators and courts, are undergoing continual revision and
expansion. The legal and regulatory landscape within which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries conduct their businesses is often
unpredictable. As industry practices and regulatory, judicial, political, social and other conditions change, issues may emerge,
whether intended or not. These emerging practices, conditions and issues could adversely affect Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in a variety of ways, including, for example, by expansion of coverages beyond the underwriting intent, increasing
the number or size of claims, accelerating the payment of claims or adding to operational costs. Industry practices that were
once considered approved, compliant and reasonable may suddenly be deemed unacceptable by virtue of a court or regulatory
ruling or changes in regulatory enforcement policies and practices. It is not possible for the Company to predict such shifts in
legal or regulatory enforcement or to accurately estimate the impact they may have on the Company and its operations.

One area where the legal and regulatory landscape is experiencing significant change is in connection with the mandated use of
death verification databases (a “DMF”) by life insurance companies in their policy administration and claims handling
practices. In recent years, many states have adopted new laws requiring insurers to proactively use such databases, including the
Social Security Administration’s Death Master File, to varying degrees in order to ascertain if an insured may be deceased.
More than twenty states have adopted such laws, and Kemper cannot predict whether additional states will enact similar
legislation or, if enacted, what form such legislation may take. These laws require the insurer to initiate the claims process even
though the insureds’ beneficiaries have not submitted a claim, including proof of death, as required by regulator-approved
policy forms and the insurer was otherwise unaware of the insured’s death. In a related development, many states have
expanded the application of their unclaimed property laws, particularly as they relate to life insurance proceeds, and the
treasurers or controllers of a large number of states have engaged audit firms to examine the practices of life insurance
companies with respect to the reporting and remittance of such proceeds under unclaimed property laws. The push to alter
historic practices that were previously considered lawful and appropriate relative to both claims handling and remittance of life
insurance policy proceeds under unclaimed property laws has caused the Company to be involved in compliance audits, market
conduct examinations and litigation. In the third quarter of 2016, the Company voluntarily began implementing a
comprehensive process to compare life insurance records against a DMF and other databases to determine if any of its insured
may be deceased. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” and Note 23, “Contingencies,” to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

The financial services industry, including insurance companies and their holding company systems, remains under regulatory
scrutiny. While it is not possible to predict how new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws and regulations
may impact the operations of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, several developments have the potential to significantly impact
such operations. This includes increased regulatory focus on cybersecurity and state adoption of extensive modifications to state
holding company laws that substantially expand the oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators beyond
licensed insurance companies to their non-insurance affiliates and their organizations as a whole, particularly with respect to
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enterprise risk. In addition, the Health Care Acts have resulted in regulations affecting health insurers such as Reserve National,
and potential changes to the state insurance regulatory system may result from the Dodd-Frank Act. See the discussion of these
matters under “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 10.

These new developments and significant changes in, or new interpretations of, existing laws and regulations could make it more
expensive for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to conduct and grow their businesses.

Legal and regulatory proceedings are unpredictable and could produce one or more unexpected verdicts against the
Company that could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial results for any given period.

Kemper and its subsidiaries are from time to time involved in lawsuits, regulatory inquiries and other legal proceedings arising
out of the ordinary course of their businesses. Some of these proceedings may involve matters particular to Kemper or one or
more of its subsidiaries, while others may pertain to business practices in the industry in which Kemper and its subsidiaries
operate. Some lawsuits may seek class action status that, if granted, could expose the Company to potentially significant
liability by virtue of the size of the putative classes. These matters often raise difficult factual and legal issues and are subject to
uncertainties and complexities. The outcomes of these matters are difficult to predict, and the amounts or ranges of potential
loss at particular stages in the proceedings are in most cases difficult or impossible to ascertain. A further complication is that
even where the possibility of an adverse outcome is deemed to be remote using traditional legal analysis, juries sometimes
substitute their subjective views in place of facts and established legal principles. Given the unpredictability of the legal and
regulatory landscape in which the Company operates, there can be no assurance that one or more of these matters will not
produce a result that could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial results for any given period.

For information about the Company’s pending legal proceedings, see Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/or financial
condition.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are subject to claims arising out of catastrophes that may have a
significant effect on their results of operations, liquidity and financial condition. Catastrophes can be caused by various events,
including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, windstorms, earthquakes, hailstorms, explosions, severe winter weather and
wildfires and may include man-made events, such as terrorist attacks and hazardous material spills. The incidence, frequency
and severity of catastrophes are inherently unpredictable and may be impacted by the uncertain effects of climate change. The
extent of the Company’s losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposure in the geographic
area affected by the event and the severity of the event. The Company could experience more than one severe catastrophic
event in any given period.

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries are particularly exposed to risks of catastrophic mortality, such as pandemic or
other events that result in large numbers of deaths. In addition, the occurrence of such an event in a concentrated geographic
area could have a severe disruptive effect on the Company’s workforce and business operations. The likelihood and severity of
such events cannot be predicted and are difficult to estimate.

The property and casualty insurance subsidiaries use catastrophe modeling tools developed by third parties to project their
potential exposure to property damage resulting from catastrophic events under various scenarios. Such models are based on
various assumptions and judgments which may turn out to be wrong. The actual impact of one or more catastrophic events
could adversely and materially differ from these projections.

Changes in the availability and cost of catastrophe reinsurance and in the ability of reinsurers to meet their obligations
could result in Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries retaining more risk and could adversely and materially affect the
Company’s results of operations, financial condition and/or liquidity.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries seek to reduce their exposure to catastrophe losses through the purchase
of catastrophe reinsurance. Catastrophe reinsurance does not relieve such subsidiaries of their direct liability to their
policyholders. As long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for such subsidiaries is limited to the amount of
risk that they retain. While such subsidiaries’ principal reinsurers are each rated “A-" or better by A.M. Best at the time
reinsurance is purchased, the Company cannot be certain that reinsurers will pay the amounts due from them either now, in the
future, or on a timely basis. A reinsurer’s insolvency or inability to make payments under the terms of its reinsurance agreement
could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity.
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In addition, market conditions beyond the Company’s control determine the availability of the reinsurance protection that
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries may purchase. A decrease in the amount of reinsurance protection that
such subsidiaries purchase generally should increase their risk of a more severe loss. However, if the amount of available
reinsurance is reduced, such subsidiaries may be forced to incur additional expenses for reinsurance or may not be able to
obtain sufficient reinsurance on acceptable terms, which could adversely affect the ability of such subsidiaries to write future
insurance policies or result in their retaining more risk with respect to such policies.

The extent to which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries can manage their catastrophe exposure through underwriting
strategies may be limited by law or regulatory action and could adversely and materially affect the Company’s results of
operations, financial condition and/or liquidity.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries also manage their exposure to catastrophe losses through underwriting
strategies such as reducing exposures in, or withdrawing from, catastrophe-prone areas, establishing appropriate guidelines for
insurable structures, and setting appropriate rates, deductibles, exclusions and policy limits. The extent to which such
subsidiaries can manage their exposure through such strategies may be limited by law or regulatory action. For example, laws
and regulations may limit the rate or timing at which insurers may non-renew insurance policies in catastrophe-prone areas or
require insurers to participate in wind pools and joint underwriting associations. Generally, an insurer’s participation in such
pools and associations are based on the insurer’s market share determined on a state-wide basis. Accordingly, even though
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries may not incur a direct insured loss as a result of managing direct
catastrophe exposures, they may incur indirect losses from required participation in pools and associations. Laws and
regulations requiring prior approval of policy forms and premium rates may limit the ability of Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries to increase rates or deductibles on a timely basis, which may result in additional losses or lower returns
than otherwise would have occurred in an unregulated market. See the risk factor above under the title “Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and the evolving legal and regulatory landscape in which they operate could
result in increased operating costs, reduced profitability and limited growth.”

A downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries could materially and adversely affect the Company.

Third-party rating agencies assess the financial strength and rate the claims-paying ability of insurance companies based on
criteria established by the rating agencies. Third-party ratings are important competitive factors in the insurance industry.
Financial strength ratings are used to assess the financial strength and quality of insurers. Ratings agencies may downgrade the
ratings of Kemper and/or its insurance subsidiaries or require Kemper to retain more capital in its insurance businesses to
maintain existing ratings following developments that they deem negative. This can include factors directly related to the
Company, such as an increase in the catastrophic risk retained by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, or developments in industry
or general economic conditions. A downgrade by A.M. Best in the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, particularly those
operating in the preferred and standard market or offering homeowners insurance, could result in a substantial loss of business
if independent agents and brokers or policyholders of such subsidiaries move to other companies with higher claims-paying and
financial strength ratings. Any substantial loss of business could materially and adversely affect the financial condition and
results of operations of such subsidiaries. A downgrade in Kemper’s credit rating by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”’), Moody’s
Investors Services (“Moody’s”) or Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) may reduce Kemper’s ability to access the capital markets or may
increase the cost to refinance existing debt.

The insurance industry is highly competitive, making it difficult to grow profitability and within expectations of investors.

The Company’s insurance businesses face significant competition, and their ability to compete is affected by a variety of issues
relative to others in the industry, such as quality of management, product pricing, service quality, financial strength and name
recognition. Competitive success is based on many factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

*  Competitiveness of prices charged for insurance policies;

*  Sophistication of pricing segmentation;

*  Design and introduction of insurance products to meet emerging consumer trends;
*  Selection and retention of agents and other business partners;
»  Compensation paid to agents;

*  Underwriting discipline;

»  Selectiveness of sales markets;

»  Effectiveness of marketing materials and name recognition;

*  Product and technological innovation;

*  Ability to settle claims timely and efficiently;

*  Ability to detect and prevent fraudulent insurance claims;
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»  Effectiveness of deployment and use of information technology across all aspects of operations;

»  Ability to control operating expenses;

»  Financial strength ratings; and

*  Quality of services provided to, and ease of doing business with, independent agents and brokers or policyholders.

The inability to compete effectively in any of the Company’s insurance businesses could materially reduce the Company’s
customer base and revenues and could materially and adversely affect the future results and financial condition of the Company.

See “Competition” in Item 1 of Part I beginning on page 8 and page 10, for more information on the competitive rankings in the
property and casualty insurance markets and the life and health insurance markets, respectively, in the United States.

Technology initiatives, particularly large, multi-year initiatives, to address business developments and regulatory
requirements present significant economic and competitive challenges to the Company. Failure to complete and implement
such initiatives in a timely manner could result in incurring internal use software development costs that may not be
recoverable and the inability to meet emerging consumer and competitive needs which may result in the loss of business.

Data and analytics play an increasingly important role in the insurance industry. While technology developments can facilitate
the use of data and analytics, streamline business processes and ultimately reduce the cost of operations, technology initiatives
can present significant economic and organizational challenges to the Company and potential short-term cost and
implementation risks. In addition, projections of expenses and implementation schedules could change materially and costs
could escalate over time, while the ultimate utility of a technology initiative could deteriorate over time. For example, in 2015
and 2014, the Company wrote off costs that had been capitalized in connection with multi-year computer software development
projects related to systems that had been intended to replace certain aging systems of the Company’s Property & Casualty
Insurance segment. Accordingly, the Company is in the process of undertaking new multi-year projects to replace these aging
systems, as well as certain aging systems in its Life & Health Insurance segment.

In addition, due to the highly-regulated nature of the financial services industry, the Company faces rising costs and competing
time constraints in adapting technology to meet compliance requirements of new and proposed regulations. The costs to
develop and implement systems to replace the Company’s aging systems and to comply with new regulatory requirements as
needed over time are expected to be material. Due to the complexities involved and the results of the Company’s past attempts
to replace its aging systems, there can be no assurances that new multi-year projects will be successful and that the costs
incurred to develop and implement the replacement systems will be recoverable. Furthermore, failure to implement replacement
systems in a timely manner could result in loss of business from the Company’s inability to design and introduce new insurance
products to meet emerging consumer and competitive trends.

Failure to maintain the security of personal data may result in lost business, reputational harm, legal costs and regulatory
penalties.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries obtain and store vast amounts of personal data that can present significant risks to the
Company and its customers and employees. An increasing array of laws and regulations govern the use and storage of such
data, including, for example, social security numbers, credit card data and protected health information. Despite the
implementation of various security measures, the Company’s data systems, or those of its third party administrators and other
business partners working on behalf of the Company, may be vulnerable to security breaches due to the increasing
sophistication of cyber-attacks, viruses, malware, hackers and other external hazards, as well as equipment and system failures
and inadvertent errors, negligence or intentional misconduct of employees and/or contractors. The Company also relies on the
ability of its business partners to maintain secure systems and processes that comply with legal requirements and protect
personal data. These increased risks and expanding regulatory requirements related to personal data privacy and security expose
the Company to potential data loss and resulting damages, regulatory fines and other liabilities, reputational risk and significant
increases in compliance and litigation costs. Although Kemper maintains cyber risk insurance, there is no guarantee that it will
be sufficient to cover all of the costs of one or more data breach incidents that could occur.

In the event of non-compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, an information security framework for
organizations that handle cardholder information for the major debit, credit, prepaid, e-purse, ATM and point-of-sale cards, such
organizations could prevent Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries from collecting premium payments from customers by way of
such cards and impose significant fines on Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries.
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Failure to maintain the availability of critical systems may result in lost business, reputational harm, legal costs and
regulatory penallties.

The Company’s business operations rely on the continuous availability of its computer systems, including computer systems
used by third party administrators working on behalf of the Company. In addition to disruptions caused by cyber-attacks or
other data breaches, such systems may be adversely affected by natural and man-made catastrophes. The failure of the
Company, or its third party administrators or other business partners, to maintain business continuity in the wake of such events
may prevent the timely completion of critical processes across its operations, including, for example, insurance policy
administration, claims processing, billing, treasury and investment operations and payroll. These failures could result in
significant loss of business, fines and litigation.

The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net investment income and
cause realized and unrealized losses.

The Company maintains a diversified investment portfolio that is exposed to significant financial and capital market risks,
including interest rate (risk-free and spread), equity price, and liquidity, as well as risks from changes in tax laws and
regulations and other risks from changes in general economic conditions.

The interest rate environment has a significant impact on the Company’s financial results and position. In recent years, rates
have been at or near historic lows. A protracted low interest rate environment would continue to place pressure on net
investment income, particularly related to fixed income securities, short-term investments and limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships accounted for under the equity method of accounting (“Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments”) that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt of other companies. A decline in interest rates would generally
increase the carrying value of the Company’s fixed income securities and its Equity Method Limited Liability Investments that
exhibit debt-like characteristics, but it may adversely affect the Company’s investment income as it invests cash in new
investments that may yield less than the portfolio’s average rate. In a declining interest rate environment, borrowers may seek
to refinance their borrowings at lower rates and, accordingly, prepay or redeem securities the Company holds as investments
more quickly than the Company initially expected. Such prepayment or redemption action may cause the Company to reinvest
the redeemed proceeds in lower yielding investments. An increase in interest rates would generally reduce the carrying value
of a substantial portion of the Company’s investment portfolio, particularly fixed income securities and Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments.

The Company invests a portion of its investment portfolio in equity securities, which generally have more volatile returns than
fixed income securities and may experience sustained periods of depressed values. There are multiple factors that could
negatively impact the performance of the Company’s equity portfolio, including general economic conditions, industry or
sector deterioration and issuer-specific concerns. A decline in equity values may result in a decrease in dividend income,
realized losses upon sales of the securities, or other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities still held.

Interest rates and equity returns also have a significant impact on the Company’s pension and other postretirement employee
benefit plans. In addition to the impact on carrying values and yields of the underlying assets of the funded plans, interest rates
also impact the discounting of the projected and accumulated benefit obligations of the plans. A decrease in interest rates may
have a negative impact on the funded status of the plans.

The nature and cash flow needs of the Company and the insurance industry in general present certain liquidity risks that may
impact the return of the investment portfolio. If the Company were to experience several significant catastrophic events over a
relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in advance of their maturity dates to fund payments to
claimants, which could result in realized losses. Additionally, increases in illiquidity in the financial markets may increase
uncertainty in the valuations of the Company’s investments. This increases the risk that the fair values reported in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements may differ from the actual price that may be obtained in an orderly sales
transaction.

The Company has also benefited from certain tax laws related to its investment portfolio, including dividends received
deductions and tax-exempt municipal securities. Changes in tax laws may have a detrimental effect on the after-tax return of
the Company’s investment portfolio. A reduction in income tax rates also could also reduce the demand for tax-preference
securities and result in a decline in the value of the Company’s investment portfolio of such securities.

The Company’s entire investment portfolio is subject to broad risks inherent in the financial markets, including, but not limited
to, inflation, regulatory changes, inactive capital markets, governmental and social stability, economic outlooks,
unemployment and recession. Changes to these risks and how the market perceives them may impact the financial
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performance of the Company’s investments.

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are subject to various capital adequacy measurements that are significantly impacted by
various characteristics of their invested assets, including, but not limited to, asset type, class, duration and credit rating. The
Company’s insurance subsidiaries are also subject to various limitations on the amounts at which they can invest in individual
assets or certain asset classes in the aggregate. Asset risk is one factor used by insurance regulators and rating agencies to
determine required capital for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries. Accordingly, a deterioration in the quality of the investments
held by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries or an increase in the investment risk inherent in their investment portfolios could
increase capital requirements. See the risk factor below under the title “The ability of Kemper to service its debt, to pay
dividends to its shareholders and/or make repurchases of its stock may be materially impacted by lack of timely and/or
sufficient dividends received from its subsidiaries.” These factors may inhibit the Company from shifting its investment mix to
produce higher returns. The Company is also subject to concentration of investment risk to the extent that the portfolio is
heavily invested, at any particular time, in specific asset types, classes, industries, sectors or collateral types, among other
defining features. Developments and the market’s perception thereof in any of these concentrations may exacerbate the
negative effects on the Company’s investment portfolio compared to other companies.

The determination of the fair values of the Company’s investments and whether a decline in the fair value of an investment
is other-than-temporary are based on management’s judgment and may prove to be materially different than the actual
economic outcome.

The Company holds a significant amount of assets without readily available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair
value cannot be measured from actively quoted prices. These assets are generally deemed to require a higher degree of
judgment in measuring fair value. The assumptions used by management to measure fair values could turn out to be different
than the actual amounts that may be realized in an orderly transaction with a willing market participant could be either lower or
higher than the Company’s estimates of fair value.

The Company reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment is
other-than-temporary. This evaluation is based on subjective factors, assumptions and estimates and may be materially different
than the actual economic outcome, which may result in the Company recognizing additional losses in the future as new
information emerges or recognizing losses currently that may never materialize in the future in an orderly transaction with a
willing market participant.

Estimating losses and LAE for determining property and casualty insurance reserves, or determining premium rates, is
inherently uncertain, and the Company’s results of operations may be materially impacted if the Company’s insurance
reserves or premium rates are insufficient.

The Company establishes loss and LAE reserves to cover estimated liabilities, which remain unpaid as of the end of each
accounting period, and to investigate and settle all claims incurred under the property and casualty insurance policies that it has
issued. Loss and LAE reserves are established for claims that have been reported to the Company as of the end of the
accounting period, as well as for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to the Company. The estimates of
loss and LAE reserves are based on the Company’s assessment of the facts and circumstances known to it at the time, as well as
estimates of the impact of future trends in the severity of claims, the frequency of claims and other factors.

The process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves is complex and imprecise. The reserves established by the
Company are inherently uncertain estimates and could prove to be inadequate to cover its ultimate losses and expenses for
insured events that have occurred. The estimate of the ultimate cost of claims for insured events that have occurred must take
into consideration many factors that are dependent on the outcome of future events associated with the reporting, investigation
and settlement of claims. The impacts on the Company’s estimates of property and casualty insurance reserves from these
factors are difficult to assess accurately. A change in any one or more of the factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate loss
that is different than the previous projected ultimate loss and may have a material impact on the Company’s estimate of the
projected ultimate loss. Increases in the estimates of ultimate losses and LAE will decrease earnings, while decreases in such
estimates will increase earnings, as reported by the Company in the results of its operations for the periods in which the changes
to the estimates are made by the Company. See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and
Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” beginning on page 57 for a discussion of the
Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and
Casualty Insurance Reserves.

The Company’s actuaries also consider trends in the severity and frequency of claims and other factors when determining the
premium rates to charge for its property and casualty insurance products. An unanticipated change in any one or more of these
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factors or trends, as well as a change in competitive conditions, may also result in inadequate premium rates charged for
insurance policies issued by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries in the future. Such pricing inadequacies
could have a material impact on the Company’s operating results.

The ability of Kemper to service its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders and/or make repurchases of its stock may be
materially impacted by lack of timely and/or sufficient dividends received from its subsidiaries.

As a holding company, Kemper depends on the dividend income that it receives from its subsidiaries as the primary source of
funds to pay interest and principal on its outstanding debt obligations, to pay dividends to its shareholders and to make
repurchases of its stock. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory restrictions under state insurance
laws and regulations that limit their ability to declare and pay dividends. These laws and regulations impose minimum solvency
and liquidity requirements on dividends between affiliated companies and require prior notice to, and may require approval
from, state insurance regulators before dividends can be paid. In addition, third-party rating agencies monitor statutory capital
and surplus levels for capital adequacy. Even though a dividend may be payable without regulatory approval, an insurance
subsidiary may forgo paying a dividend to Kemper and retain the capital in its insurance subsidiaries to maintain or improve the
ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, or to offset increases in required capital from increases in premium volume or
investment risk. The inability of one or more of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to pay sufficient dividends to Kemper may
materially affect Kemper’s ability to pay its debt obligations on time, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make repurchases
of its stock.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

Owned Properties

Kemper’s subsidiaries together own and occupy seven buildings located in six states consisting of approximately 25,000 square
feet in the aggregate. One of Kemper’s subsidiaries owns one building totaling approximately 2,000 square feet which was
vacant at December 31, 2016. Kemper’s subsidiaries hold, solely for investment purposes, additional properties that are not
occupied by Kemper or its subsidiaries.

Leased Facilities

The Company leases five floors, or approximately 67,000 square feet, in a 41-story office building in Chicago for its corporate
headquarters and Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s headquarters. The lease expires in September 2023. Kemper’s
Property & Casualty Insurance segment leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 462,000 at 14
locations in nine states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in June 2025. Kemper’s Life & Health Insurance
segment leases facilities with aggregate square footage of approximately 472,000 at 127 locations in 28 states. The latest
expiration date of the existing leases is in January 2025. Kemper’s corporate data processing operation leases facilities with
aggregate square footage of approximately 36,000 square feet at two locations in two states. The latest expiration date of the
existing leases is in December 2018.

The properties described above are in good condition. The properties utilized in the Company’s operations consist of facilities
suitable for general office space, call centers and data processing operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Proceedings

Information concerning pending legal proceedings is incorporated herein by reference to Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities.

Market Information

Kemper’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol of “KMPR.” Quarterly
information pertaining to market prices of Kemper common stock in 2016 and 2015 is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
Common Stock Market Prices:
High. oo $ 36.73 $ 3320 $ 3952 § 4595 § 45.95
LOW ottt 23.51 28.42 30.87 35.30 23.51
ClOSC. .ttt ettt 29.57 30.98 39.32 44.30 44.30
Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Common Stock Market Prices:
HIgh . oo $ 40.13 § 40.12  $ 40.28 $ 41.65 $ 41.65
LOW ettt 34.31 35.06 34.08 34.43 34.08
CLOSC. ettt ettt 38.96 38.55 35.37 37.25 37.25
Holders

As of January 19, 2017, the number of record holders of Kemper’s common stock was 3,658.
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Dividends

Quarterly information pertaining to payment of dividends on Kemper’s common stock is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)....... $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 0.96
Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)....... $ 024 3% 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 0.96

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state insurance laws that may restrict the ability of these insurance
subsidiaries to pay dividends without prior regulatory approval. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 9,
“Shareholders’ Equity,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on Kemper’s ability and intent to pay
dividends.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Information pertaining to purchases of Kemper common stock for the three months ended December 31, 2016 follows.

Total Maximum

Number of Shares  Dollar Value of Shares

Average Purchased as Part that May Yet Be
Total Price of Publicly Purchased Under
Number of Shares Paid per Announced Plans  the Plans or Programs
Period Purchased (1) Share or Programs (1) (Dollars in Millions)
OCtODET 2016 ... — — — S 243.7
November 2016........covueurririeerieeeeeieeie e — — — 8§ 243.7
December 2016 ......ooooviviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 42,444  $ 4342 — 3 2437

(1) On August 6, 2014, Kemper’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 300 million of Kemper’s common
stock. The repurchase program has no expiration date. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

The preceding table includes 42,444 shares withheld or surrendered to satisfy the exercise price and/or tax withholding
obligations relating to the exercise of stock options under Kemper’s long-term equity-based compensation plans during the
quarter ended December 31, 2016.
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Kemper Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2011 in (i) Kemper common stock, (ii) the S&P MidCap 400
Index and (iii) the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index, in each case with dividends reinvested. Kemper is a constituent of
each of these two indices.

The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future
performance of Kemper common stock.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
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S50
50
12731111 12731112 12/3113 12/31/14 1231715 12731716
—.— Kemper Corporation —k— S&P MidCap 400 Index
+ S&P Supercompasite Insurance Index
Company / Index 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Kemper Corporation ............cceceeveereeeerieneseeeeneeneenns $ 100.00 $ 10432 $ 148.66 §$ 13483 §$ 142.71 $ 174.63
S&P MidCap 400 IndeX.......ccceeveevereeriieieieieeeeieens 100.00 117.88 157.37 172.74 168.98 204.03
S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index ............ccee..... 100.00 119.12 173.60 188.73 195.60 232.51
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR
Earned Premiums ........cccooooviieiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e

Net Investment INCOME .........oovveiiiniiiiiiiiniiiiieeceeeee,
Other INCOME........oovieiiiiciieiee e
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments........................
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings .................
Total REVENUES .....ccvvieieiieeiii et

Income from Continuing Operations. ..........cccceeeeeevereeneenne

Income from Discontinued Operations .............cceceeeveruenenne.
NEt INCOME ..
Per Unrestricted Share:
Income from Continuing Operations..........c.cc.ceeeeeruenenne.
Income from Discontinued Operations .............ccccceeeveene
NEt INCOME ..covvviiiiiiiiiiiiccceee
Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution:
Income from Continuing Operations...........ccceeveerveerneenne
Income from Discontinued Operations ..............c.ccveu.....
Net INCOME .....oonviiiiiiiiiiiiiicccc e
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share...........c.ccoc.o........
AT YEAR END
TOtal ASSELS....cveriiieiieiieiiitereee ettt
Insurance RESErves.......cocccovviviiiiieiiiiiiiiniciicicecsieeec

Unearned Premiums .......coccooveeveriniiieninineene e
Long-term Debt, Current and Non-current .............ceevennee.
All Other Liabilities ......cccovveeririinieieeieneicieeseneeeiceeen
Total Liabilities......ceeverireeieieieiieieiere et
Shareholders’ EQUILY ......ccooereririeiieie e
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity.........cccccoevuennee.

Book Value Per Share............oooovieiiiiiiiiiiiieeieceiee e

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
$ 2,2200 S 2,009.6 $ 18622 $ 2,0258 $ 2,107.1
298.3 302.6 309.1 314.7 295.9
3.2 3.7 1.4 0.8 0.8
33.1 52.1 39.1 99.1 65.4
(32.7) (27.2) (15.2) (13.9) (6.9)
$ 2,521.9 $ 23408 $ 21966 $ 24265 $ 24623
$ 127 $ 802 $ 1126 $ 2145 § 918
4.1 5.5 1.9 32 11.6
$ 168 $ 857 $ 1145 $ 2177 $ 1034
$ 025 $ 155§ 208 $ 375 $ 155
0.08 0.10 0.04 0.06 0.20
$ 033 $ 165 $ 212 $ 38 $ 175
$ 025 $ 155 8 208 $ 374 $ 154
0.08 0.10 0.04 0.06 0.20
$ 033 1.65 2.12 3.80 1.74
$ 09 S 09 $ 096 0.96 0.96

618.7 613.1 536.9 598.9 650.9
751.6 750.6 752.1 606.9 611.4
458.3 476.2 446.1 338.1 452.9
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Index to
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

Net Income was $16.8 million ($0.33 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to
$85.7 million ($1.65 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2015. Income from Continuing
Operations was $12.7 million ($0.25 per unrestricted common share) in 2016, compared to $80.2 million ($1.55 per
unrestricted common share) in 2015.

A reconciliation of Segment Net Operating Income to Consolidated Net Operating Income (a non-GAAP financial measure)
and to Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
in Income in Income
from 2015 from 2014
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 to 2016 2014 to 2015
Segment Net Operating Income (Loss):
Property & Casualty InSUrance..............coceevevevvereeerenennen. $ 29 $ 267 $  (29.6) § 249 % 1.8
Life & Health Insurance ...........ccoccevevieierenecieieeee 30.3 71.7 41.4) 91.8 (20.1)
Total Segment Net Operating Income..........ccoceeveceerernennen. 27.4 98.4 (71.0) 116.7 (18.3)
Unallocated Net Operating Loss ......ccoceveeieneneiinieicee (15.0) (28.5) 13.5 (19.6) (8.9)
Consolidated Net Operating Income ...........ccceevvevveneenneene 12.4 69.9 (57.5) 97.1 (27.2)
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments................... 21.5 33.9 (12.4) 254 8.5
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............. (21.2) 17.7) (3.5 9.9 (7.8)
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt........................ — (5.9 5.9 — 5.9
Income from Continuing Operations.............cceeeevevervennnne. 12.7 80.2 (67.5) 112.6 (32.4)
Income from Discontinued Operations .............cceceevervennnne. 4.1 5.5 (1.4) 1.9 3.6
NEt INCOME ... $ 168 $ 857 § (689) § 1145 §  (28.8)
Net Income
2016 Compared with 2015

The Company’s net income decreased by $68.9 million in 2016, compared to 2015. In the Property & Casualty Insurance
segment, segment net operating results deteriorated by $29.6 million due primarily to higher incurred catastrophe losses and
LAE (excluding reserve development) and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, partially
offset by lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums and the impact of the write-off of internal use software
in 2015. See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” beginning on page 30 for additional discussion of the segment’s results.
See MD&A, “Write-offs of Long-lived Assets,” beginning on page 51 for additional information related to the internal use
software write-off. In the Life & Health Insurance segment, segment net operating income decreased by $41.4 million due
primarily to a $50.5 million after-tax charge to recognize the impact of using death verification databases in the Company’s
operations, including to determine its IBNR liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses for life insurance
products, partially offset by the impact of an adjustment recorded in 2015 to correct deferred premium reserves on certain
limited pay life insurance policies and lower Insurance Expenses. See MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,” beginning on page
40 for additional discussion of the segment’s results. The Company’s results were also significantly and negatively impacted in
2016, compared to 2015, by lower net realized gains on sales of investments and positively impacted in 2016, compared to
2015, from a loss from early extinguishment of debt in 2015. See MD&A, “Investment Results,” beginning on page 45 and
MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” beginning on page 52 for additional discussion.

2015 Compared with 2014

The Company’s net income decreased by $28.8 million in 2015, compared to 2014. In the Property & Casualty Insurance
segment, segment net operating income increased by $1.8 million due primarily to a lower amount of write-offs of internal use
software, lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums and lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE
(excluding reserve development), partially offset by higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and
a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development. See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” beginning on
page 30 for additional discussion of the segment’s results. See MD&A, “Write-offs of Long-lived Assets,” beginning on page
51 for additional information related to the internal use software write-offs. In the Life & Health Insurance segment, segment

25



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

SUMMARY OF RESULTS (Continued)

net operating income decreased by $20.1 million due primarily to a $13.9 million after-tax dividend in 2014 from an investment
that had sold substantially all of its operations, an after-tax adjustment to earned premiums of $4.9 million recorded in the first
quarter of 2015 to correct deferred premium reserves on certain limited pay life insurance policies, and higher policyholders’
benefits on life insurance. See MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,” beginning on page 40 for additional discussion of the
segment’s results. The Company’s results were also significantly and negatively impacted in 2015, compared to 2014, by higher
net impairment losses recognized in earnings and a loss from early extinguishment of debt in 2015, partially offset by higher net
realized gains on sales of investments. See MD&A, “Investment Results,” beginning on page 45 and MD&A, “Liquidity and
Capital Resources,” beginning on page 52 for additional discussion.

Revenues
2016 Compared with 2015

Earned Premiums were $2,220.0 million in 2016, compared to $2,009.6 million in 2015, an increase of $210.4 million. Earned
Premiums increased by $199.6 million and $10.8 million in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment and Life & Health
Insurance segment, respectively. See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” beginning on page 30 and MD&A, “Life &
Health Insurance,” beginning on page 40 for discussion the changes in each segment’s earned premiums.

Net Investment Income decreased by $4.3 million in 2016 due primarily to lower investment returns from Alternative
Investments, lower levels and lower returns on investments in equity securities excluding alternative investments, and higher
level of investments in fixed income securities, partially offset by lower yields on fixed income securities. Net Investment
Income from Alternative Investments which consist of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, Fair Value Option
Investments and other limited liability investments included in Equity Securities decreased by $9.2 million. Alternative
investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and Fair Value Option Investments decreased by
$11.5 million and $2.1 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015,
while alternative investment income from other limited liability investments included in Equity Securities increased by $4.4
million. See MD&A, “Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Investment Income” beginning on page 45 for
additional discussion.

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments were $33.1 million in 2016, compared to $52.1 million in 2015. See MD&A,
“Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments” beginning on page 46 for additional
discussion. Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were $32.7
million and $27.2 million, respectively. See MD&A, “Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Impairment Losses
Recognized in Earnings” beginning on page 47 for additional discussion. The Company cannot predict when or if similar
investment gains or losses may occur in the future.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned Premiums were $2,009.6 million in 2015, compared to $1,862.2 million in 2014, an increase of $147.4 million. Earned
Premiums increased by $165.7 million in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment and decreased by $18.3 million. in the
Life & Health Insurance segment. See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” beginning on page 30 and MD&A, “Life &
Health Insurance,” beginning on page 40 for discussion the changes in each segment’s earned premiums.

Net Investment Income decreased by $6.5 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to lower investment income from
Alternative Investments, partially offset by higher investment income from investments in fixed income securities. Net
Investment Income from Alternative Investments decreased by $12.2 million due primarily to a $21.8 million dividend in 2014
from an investment that had sold substantially all of its operations, partially offset by higher investment income from Equity
Method Limited Liability Investments.See MD&A, “Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Investment Income”
beginning on page 45 for additional discussion.

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments were $52.1 million in 2015, compared to $39.1 million in 2014. See MD&A,
“Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments” beginning on page 46 for additional
discussion. Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings were $27.2 million in 2015, compared to $15.2 million in 2014. See
MD&A, “Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings” beginning on page 47
for additional discussion. The Company cannot predict when or if similar investment gains or losses may occur in the future.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more
likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty
insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
that follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The number of catastrophic events and catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by range of
loss and business segment for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are presented below.

Year Ended
Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31,2014
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and Number of Losses and

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:

Below $5 .. 39 § 37.6 37 % 43.6 27 $ 31.1

85 =810 i 2 13.5 3 24.7 3 20.4

ST0-$15 e — — — — 1 13.1

SI5 =820 i — — — — — —

$20 - 825 e — — — — — —

Greater Than $25 .......ccccovvvevieiiiiieie, 2 64.0 — — 1 339

Total ..o 43 § 1151 40 $ 68.3 32§ 98.5
Property & Casualty Insurance ..........c.ccc...... $ 109.6 $ 64.5 $ 96.5
Life & Health Insurance...........cccccocveienennenne. 5.5 3.8 2.0
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE................. $ 1151 $ 68.3 $ 98.5

2016 Compared with 2015

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE increased for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to
2015, due primarily to two significant catastrophe events in 2016 exceeding $25 million of losses (a hailstorm in Texas in
March with losses and LAE of $36.0 million and another hailstorm in Texas in April with losses and LAE of $28.0 million),
compared to no such events in 2015, partially offset by lower severity of events below $10 million of losses in 2016, compared
to 2015.

2015 Compared with 2014

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE decreased for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to
2014, due primarily to two significant catastrophe events in 2014 (one event with losses and LAE of $33.9 million and another
event with losses and LAE of $13.1 million), compared to no such events exceeding $10 million in 2015, partially offset by
higher frequency of events below $5 million of losses in 2015, compared to 2014. The event in the preceding table with $33.9
million in catastrophe losses and LAE in 2014 was incurred in multiple states, particularly Montana. The event in the preceding
table with $13.1 million in catastrophe losses and LAE in 2014 was primarily related to hail in Texas.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES (Continued)

Catastrophe Reinsurance

The Company primarily manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, modifications of, and/or
limitations to coverages and deductibles for certain perils in such regions and a primary catastrophe reinsurance program for the
Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Coverage for this segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in
various layers. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment also purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in
Florida at retentions lower than its primary catastrophe reinsurance program. The Life & Health Insurance segment also
purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida. Except for the coverage provided by the FHCEF, the Life
& Health Insurance segment has not carried any other catastrophe reinsurance since 2012, primarily due to actions taken by
KHSC to reduce its exposures to catastrophes.

See the “Reinsurance” subsections of the “Property and Casualty Insurance Business” and “Life and Health Insurance
Business” sections of Item 1(c), “Description of Business,” and Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on the Company’s reinsurance programs.

LOSS AND LAE RESERVE DEVELOPMENT

Increases (decreases) in the Company’s property and casualty loss and LAE reserves for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 to recognize adverse (favorable) loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years in continuing
operations, hereinafter also referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Property & Casualty Insurance:
NON-CAASTTOPINE ......veveveeeeeeeeceeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt ea s eaeeseaeseaeanena $ 49 § (5.00 $ (38.6)
CaAASITOPNE ..ottt et ettt ettt te et e ae e ab e e b e e aaeetbeerbeebeeteereas (19.2) (7.9) (15.8)
TOLAL L.tttk b ettt ettt a bbbt st et et et ntese s b esseseebenseneeneas (14.3) (12.9) (54.4)
Life & Health Insurance:
INON-CAASIIOPIEC ... .ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e e et e e beeabeebeesbeesseeeseesasessseessenaseans — 1.3 0.2)
CaAASITOPNE ..ottt ettt e v et ettt stb e e ab e tt e tbeeabeenaeeabeeebeebeebeenreas (0.1) 0.1 1.1
0] 7:1 PR RRU (0.1) 1.4 0.9
Increase (Decrease) in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years:
INON-CAtASIIOPIEC ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e e e b e e e esbeebeesbeesseeseesasesssessseseneans 4.9 3.7 (38.8)
CaAASITOPNE ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et e et e st e e b e e b e etbeerbeebeereereas (19.3) (7.8) (14.7)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years.........ccccoeevevvievieeniiennnnnne. $ (144) § (115 $ (53.9

See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,” and Note 6, “Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the Company’s reserve
development. See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” of this 2016 Annual Report for additional information pertaining to
the Company’s process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and the estimated variability
thereof, development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE, and a discussion of some of the variables that may
impact them.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, the Company is required to file consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). The Company is permitted to
include non-GAAP financial measures in its filings provided that they are defined along with an explanation of their usefulness
to investors, are no more prominent than the comparable GAAP financial measures and are reconciled to such GAAP financial
measures.

These non-GAARP financial measures should not be considered a substitute for the comparable GAAP financial measures, as
they do not fully recognize the overall profitability of the Company’s businesses.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES (Continued)
Underlying Combined Ratio

The following discussions of segment results use the non-GAAP financial measures of (i) Underlying Losses and LAE and

(i1) Underlying Combined Ratio. Underlying Losses and LAE (also referred to in the discussion as “Current Year Non-
catastrophe Losses and LAE”) exclude the impact of catastrophe losses and loss and LAE reserve development from prior years
from the Company’s Incurred Losses and LAE, which is the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure. The
Underlying Combined Ratio is computed by adding the Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio with the
Insurance Expense (including write-offs of long-lived assets) Ratio. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is
the Combined Ratio, which is computed by adding total incurred losses and LAE, including the impact of catastrophe losses
and loss and LAE reserve development from prior years, with the Insurance Expense (including write-offs of long-lived assets)
Ratio. The Company believes Underlying Losses and LAE and the Underlying Combined Ratio are useful to investors and are
used by management to reveal the trends in the Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance business that may be obscured by
catastrophe losses and prior year reserve development. These catastrophe losses may cause the Company’s loss trends to vary
significantly between periods as a result of their incidence of occurrence and magnitude, and can have a significant impact on
incurred losses and LAE and the combined ratio. Prior-year reserve developments are caused by unexpected loss development
on historical reserves. Because reserve development relates to the re-estimation of losses from earlier years, it has no bearing on
the performance of the Company’s insurance products that were in force in the current period. The Company believes it is
useful for investors to evaluate these components separately and in the aggregate when reviewing the Company’s underwriting
performance.

Consolidated Net Operating Income

Consolidated Net Operating Income is an after-tax, non-GAAP financial measure and is computed by excluding from Income
from Continuing Operations the after-tax impact of:

1) Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments;

2) Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings related to investments;

3) Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt; and

4) Significant non-recurring or infrequent items that may not be indicative of ongoing operations.

Significant non-recurring items are excluded when (a) the nature of the charge or gain is such that it is reasonably unlikely to
recur within two years, and (b) there has been no similar charge or gain within the prior two years. The most directly
comparable GAAP financial measure is Income from Continuing Operations. There were no applicable significant non-
recurring items that the Company excluded from the calculation of Consolidated Net Operating Income for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

The Company believes that Consolidated Net Operating Income provides investors with a valuable measure of its ongoing
performance because it reveals underlying operational performance trends that otherwise might be less apparent if the items
were not excluded. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings related to
investments included in the Company’s results may vary significantly between periods and are generally driven by business
decisions and external economic developments such as capital market conditions that impact the values of the Company’s
investments, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt is
driven by the Company’s financing and refinancing decisions and capital needs, as well as external economic developments
such as debt market conditions, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Significant non-
recurring items are excluded because, by their nature, they are not indicative of the Company’s business or economic trends.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE

Selected financial information for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Net Premiums WITHEIL . ..co.uviiiiiiiie ettt e e et et e e e etae e e e sateeeeeaneeeeas $1,620.9 $ 14062 $1,189.1
Earned PremuiUmIS .......cooiiuiiiiiiiieiee et e et e e e e e e aaeeeeeeaaeeeeenes $1,614.8 $14152 $1.2495
Net Investment INCOME .........ooiiiiiiiieiee e 72.4 73.3 72.7
Oher TNCOMIE ...ttt ettt et ee e 0.5 0.6 0.5
TOtAl REVEIUES. ......evviiiieieeiee et et e et e st e e e e et e e s eeaaeeesenes 1,687.7 1,489.1 1,322.7
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c..cccooviiiiiiieiicceeeceeeee e 1,223.9 1,034.6 845.2
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........cccooioiiiiiiiiiiiiceceee e 109.6 64.5 96.5
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c..cccoeoiiiiiiieiicececeeeee e 4.9 (5.0) (38.6)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........ccoooioiiiiiiiiiciiceeeee e (19.2) (7.9) (15.8)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........oooiiiiiiiiieeeee et 1,319.2 1,086.2 887.3
Insurance Expenses, Excluding Write-offs of Long-lived Assets.........cccceeevvevveeveenneenen. 385.7 368.1 353.7
Write-0ffs 0f LoNg-1iVed ASSELS.......ccviiiieiieiieiieie ettt — 11.1 54.6
Operating Profit (LOSS) ...ccuiiiieiieeiicie ettt ettt eaeebeeaaeeaveens 17.2) 23.7 27.1
Income Tax Benefit (EXPEnSe).......c.ccuieiieiieiieiieieeie ettt ae e eaees 14.3 3.0 2.2)
Segment Net Operating INCOME (LOSS).......c.ooveueeuiiuieeeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 29 $ 267 § 249
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccocvevievieeieniiiiiieieeieens 75.8% 73.2% 67.7%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccvevierieiiciiecieciccieeeeieeins 6.8 4.6 7.7
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccccceveviiiieiieciicciieieeeeeeen 0.3 (0.4) 3.1
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ccccccveveeeiiiiiiiieieeicccceeeeeen (1.2) (0.6) (1.3)
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio.......c.ccccoeiiieiiieiiieiieiieceeceesee e 81.7 76.8 71.0
Insurance Expense Ratio, Excluding Write-offs of Long-lived Assets............ccceeeveennnns 23.9 26.0 28.3
Impact on Ratio from Write-offs of Long-lived ASSEtS.......ccceverrierieeieeieiiieieeieeiens — 0.8 4.4
ComMDBINEd RAIO ...ttt se s eneas 105.6% 103.6% 103.7%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccoccvevievienieniiciiieieeieenns 75.8% 73.2% 67.7%
Insurance Expense Ratio, Excluding Write-offs of Long-lived Assets..........c..cceeeveenens 23.9 26.0 28.3
Impact on Ratio from Write-offs of Long-lived ASSEtS........ccevverierierienieiiieieeieeiens — 0.8 4.4
Underlying Combined RAtiO...........ccoccvivuiiuieiiiiiiiiiiiieieieetc ettt 99.7% 100.0% 100.4%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation -
Underlying Combined RaAtiO...........ccocoviiuiiuieiiiiiiii ittt 99.7% 100.0% 100.4%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccveevivvieiiieciieiieicicieceeee, 6.8 4.6 7.7
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccoeveeieieciiiiiiciciceecee, 0.3 (0.4) 3.1
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccooeeeeiiiiiiieiiiiiieceeieieee e (1.2) (0.6) (1.3)
Combined Ratio as REPOITEd .........ceeviivieiiiiiiiiieiieiee et 105.6% 103.6% 103.7%

30



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE (Continued)

CATASTROPHE FREQUENCY AND SEVERITY

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:

BeLOW 85 oo 39 % 33.0 37§ 40.9

85 = 10 e 2 13.2 3 23.6

10 - S5 e — — — —

SIS = B20 oo — — — —

820 = 825 e — — — —

Greater Than $25.........ooiiie e 2 63.4 — —

TO AL .ot ettt 43 $ 109.6 40 3 64.5

INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Insurance Reserves:

AULOMODILE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt as et s et etess et et et et ene et e et ennanas $ 7541 $§ 6563

HOMGOWIIETS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e st e s sbeesaeestesnbeesbeenseenseenseenseenseenseas 88.9 98.9

ORCT L.ttt ettt b et ettt e bt e s b et et e st e b e b e ke e st e b e eteesa et e eteere et e sbeeteenteneas 41.1 45.3
TNSUTANCE RESETVES ...eoviiiiieiiieiit ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e e e aaesebeesbeenseesbe e saeseeseenseessaenseenneesnns $ 8841 §$§ 8005
Insurance Reserves:

Loss Reserves:

7 T OO $ 5980 §$§ 537.1
Incurred But NOt REPOTIEA.......ccuiiiiiiiiiciiicie ettt be e 158.2 147.6

TOtAl LLOSS RESEIVES ....uiiiiiiiiiiiiciieetie ettt ettt ettt ettt te et esaeesteestbeesaeesaeesbeesbeesseesseesseenseenseenseas 756.2 684.7

LAE RESEIVES ...uviitiiiieiiietie ettt et e ettt et eb e eteesta e bt esteessaesseasssesssaesseessessseesseenseesseesseensaenseenseas 127.9 115.8
TNSUTANCE RESEIVES ....eiviiiiiieiiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e e ta e e b e e aaeesbeesbeesseesbeesseesseseessaesssesssenssenens $ 8841 $ 8005

See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and
Loss Adjustment Expenses” beginning on page 57 for additional information pertaining to the Company’s process of estimating
property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE
from prior accident years, also referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, estimated variability
of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and a discussion of some of the variables that may impact
development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE and the estimated variability of property and casualty
insurance reserves for losses and LAE.

Acquisition of Alliance United

As discussed in Note 3, “Acquisition of Business,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company completed its
acquisition of Alliance United on April 30, 2015. Alliance United is a provider of nonstandard personal automobile insurance in
California and has added significant scale to the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s premium base. The results of
Alliance United’s operations have been included in the Company’s consolidated results since the date of its acquisition, which
can obscure certain comparisons of year-over-year results, particularly when analyzing overall segment results as well as the
nonstandard personal automobile insurance line of business. To focus on the performance of the segment’s legacy business,
certain comparisons exclude Alliance United’s impact on the segment’s results.
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Overall
2016 Compared with 2015

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Segment Net Operating Loss of $2.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016, compared to Segment Net Operating Income of $26.7 million in 2015. Segment net operating results
deteriorated by $29.6 million due primarily to higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) and
higher net operating losses from Alliance United, largely due to it being included in 2016 results for the full year. The
deterioration was partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums in the legacy
business and the write-off of internal-use software in 2015.

Earned Premiums in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment increased by $199.6 million in 2016, compared to 2015.
Excluding the $235.9 million impact from Alliance United, earned premiums decreased by $36.3 million, as lower volume
accounted for a decrease of $55.6 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $19.3 million.
Excluding Alliance United, the lower volume was driven primarily by preferred personal automobile insurance, homeowners
insurance and nonstandard personal automobile insurance, which had volume decreases of $28.3 million, $11.9 million and
$9.0 million, respectively. Excluding Alliance United, the increase in average earned premium was driven primarily by
nonstandard personal automobile insurance, which had an increase of $15.3 million.

Net Investment Income in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment decreased by $0.9 million in 2016,, compared to 2015,
due primarily to lower investment income from Alternative Investments and a lower level of non-alternative investments,
partially offset by investment income from the investments acquired from the acquisition of, and the capital contributed to,
Alliance United and higher yields on non-alternative investments. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Net
Investment Income from Alternative Investments of $20.2 million in 2016, compared to $25.3 million in 2015.

Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 75.8% in 2016, an increase of 2.6 percentage points,
compared to 2015. Alliance United, which runs at a higher underlying losses and LAE ratio but lower insurance expense ratio,
added 8.4 percentage points to the overall underlying losses and LAE ratio in 2016, compared to adding 4.8 percentage points
in 2015. Excluding the impact of Alliance United, underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 67.4%
in 2016, compared to 68.4% in 2015, or a decrease of 1.0 percentage points, as all product lines improved with the exception of
preferred personal automobile insurance, which deteriorated. Underlying incurred losses and LAE exclude the impact of
catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $109.6
million in 2016, compared to $64.5 million in 2015, which is an increase of $45.1 million due primarily to two separate
hailstorms in Texas—one in March 2016 with estimated losses and LAE of $36.0 million and another in April 2016 with
estimated losses and LAE of $27.4 million. The increase was partially offset by reduced severity of catastrophic events with
losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) of less than $10 million in 2016, compared to 2015. Excluding the impact of
Alliance United, favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including favorable catastrophe reserve development of $19.2
million in 2016 and $7.9 million in 2015) was $19.4 million in 2016, compared to $20.6 million in 2015.

Insurance expenses were $385.7 million, or 23.9% of earned premiums, in 2016. Excluding a write-off of a long-lived asset,
insurance expenses were $368.1 million, or 26.0% of earned premiums, in 2015. The improvement in the ratio of 2.1
percentage points from 2015 to 2016 was due primarily to the inclusion of Alliance United, which runs at a lower insurance
expense ratio, for a full year in 2016. Excluding the impact of the write-off and Alliance United, insurance expenses decreased
by $12.7 million in 2016, compared to 2015, and decreased as a percentage of earned premiums from 28.8% in 2015 to 28.4%
in 2016.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to tax-exempt investment income, dividends received deductions and estimated indemnification recoveries recognized
in earnings pursuant to the Alliance United purchase agreement. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received
deductions were $23.7 million in 2016, compared to $22.6 million in 2015. Indemnification recoveries result in an adjustment
to the tax purchase price and are excluded from the determination of taxable income and income tax expense. Estimated
indemnification recoveries recognized in earnings were $0.7 million in 2016, all of which has been reported as a reduction of
Insurance Expenses. Estimated indemnification recoveries recognized in earnings were $10.4 million in 2015, of which $5.9
million has been reported as a reduction of Incurred Losses and LAE and $4.5 million has been recorded as a reduction of
Insurance Expenses.
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2015 Compared with 2014

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Segment Net Operating Income of $26.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015, compared to $24.9 million in 2014. Segment Net Operating Income improved by $1.8 million due
primarily to the impact of write-offs of internal use software, lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums and
lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development), partially offset by higher underlying losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development.

Earned Premiums in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment increased by $165.7 million. Excluding the $272.9 million
impact from Alliance United, earned premiums decreased by $107.2 million, as lower volume accounted for a decrease of
$127.4 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $20.2 million. Excluding Alliance United,
the lower volume was driven primarily by preferred personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and nonstandard
personal automobile insurance, which had volume decreases of $80.2 million, $32.0 million and $8.8 million, respectively.
Excluding Alliance United, the increase in average earned premium was driven primarily by nonstandard personal automobile
insurance, homeowners insurance and preferred personal automobile insurance, which had increases of $8.2 million, $5.9
million and $4.2 million, respectively.

Net Investment Income in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment increased by $0.6 million for the year ended

December 31, 2015, compared to the same period in 2014, due primarily to higher investment income from Alternative
Investments, higher yields on fixed income securities and investment income from the investments acquired from the
acquisition of and, the capital contributed to, Alliance United, partially offset by lower dividends on equity securities and lower
levels of allocated investments resulting from a decline in the level of capital needed to support the legacy business. The
Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Net Investment Income from Alternative Investments of $25.3 million in
2015, compared to $ 22.2 million in 2014.

Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 73.2% in 2015, an increase of 5.5 percentage points,
compared to 2014. Alliance United, which runs at a higher underlying losses and LAE ratio but lower insurance expense ratio,
added 4.8 percentage points to the overall underlying losses and LAE ratio. Excluding the impact of Alliance United,
underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 68.4% in 2015, compared to 67.7% in 2014, or an
increase of 0.7 percentage points, as nonstandard personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and commercial
automobile insurance deteriorated, while preferred personal automobile insurance and other personal insurance improved.
Underlying incurred losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development. Catastrophe
losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $64.5 million in 2015, compared to $96.5 million in 2014, which is a
decrease of $32.0 million due primarily to two catastrophe events in 2014 that exceeded $10.0 million of losses and LAE,
compared to no such events in 2015, partially offset by an increase in the number of catastrophe events in 2015 with losses and
LAE less than $5 million. Excluding the impact of Alliance United, favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including
favorable catastrophe reserve development of $7.9 million in 2015 and $15.8 million in 2014) was $20.6 million in 2015,
compared to $54.4 million in 2014.

Insurance expenses, including write-offs of long-lived assets, were $379.2 million in 2015, compared to $408.3 million in 2014,
which is a decrease of $29.1 million due primarily to the impact of write-offs of internal use software, lower variable costs in
line with a general decline in the size of the Company’s legacy business and cost-cutting measures implemented by the
Company, partially offset by the inclusion of Alliance United. The write-off of internal use software was $11.1 million in 2015,
compared to $54.6 million in 2014. See “Write-offs of Long-lived Assets” of the MD&A for further discussion. Excluding the
software write-offs, insurance expenses were $368.1 million, or 26.0% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $353.7
million, or 28.3% of earned premiums, in 2014. The inclusion of Alliance United accounted for a reduction of 3.0 percentage
points in the segment’s overall insurance expense ratio. Insurance expenses for Alliance United include a write-off of deferred
policy acquisition costs of $9.0 million due to a premium deficiency and legal expenses of $5.2 million, net of indemnification,
for a certain legal matter. See Note 3, “Acquisition of Business,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Excluding the
impact of the software write-offs and Alliance United, insurance expenses decreased by $24.2 million in 2015, compared to
2014, but increased, as a percentage of earned premiums, from 28.3% in 2014 to 28.8% in 2015. The increase in the ratio was
due primarily to the reduction in legacy earned premiums outpacing the reduction in fixed costs.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to tax-exempt investment income, dividends received deductions and estimated indemnification recoveries recognized
in earnings pursuant to the Alliance United purchase agreement. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received
deductions were $22.6 million in 2015, compared to $20.9 million in 2014. Indemnification recoveries result in an adjustment
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to the tax purchase price and are excluded from the determination of taxable income and income tax expense. Estimated
indemnification recoveries recognized in earnings were $10.4 million in 2015, of which $5.9 million has been reported as a
reduction of Incurred Losses and LAE and $4.5 million has been recorded as a reduction of Insurance Expenses.

Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance

Selected financial information for the preferred personal automobile insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
NEt PremiumMS WITEEIL . .....eove oottt ettt e et et eeae e eeeeas $ 426.1 $ 4345 § 4862
Earned PremMIUIMIS .. .oveiiieeeieee ettt e e et e e et e e e e e e e e e eaeeeeeseaeeeeenans $ 424.6 $ 4499 $ 5259

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........cccoooioviiioiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 3080 $§ 3195 § 3774
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiec ettt 11.6 3.0 8.9
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........c.oovoiiiiiiiiiiiiceccc e 4.9 (15.0) (31.5)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiec ettt 0.3) (0.2) (0.3)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE .........cccooiouioiiiiioiiceeeeceeee ettt $ 3242 $§ 3073 $ 3545

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........c.cccoeceeieviiiiieiecicnicieeien, 72.6% 70.9% 71.8%

Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccocvevviviieiiieniiiicecicc e, 2.7 0.7 1.7

Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccooveeieiiviiiiiicieieeeei, 1.2 (3.3) (6.0)

Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccocceeveviiiiiiieiiniiiiciceeee e 0.1) — (0.1)

Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio..........ccocceeviiiiiiiieiiiicccecieieeeeeee e 76.4% 68.3% 67.4%
2016 Compared with 2015

Earned premiums in preferred personal automobile insurance decreased by $25.3 million in 2016, compared to 2015, as lower
volume accounted for a decrease of $28.3 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $3.0
million. The run-off of the direct-to-consumer business accounted for 60% of the decrease in earned premiums attributed to
lower volume. Incurred losses and LAE were $324.2 million, or 76.4% of earned premiums, in 2016, compared to $307.3
million, or 68.3% of earned premiums, in 2015. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to
an unfavorable change in loss and LAE reserve development, higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve
development) and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of related earned premiums were 72.6% in 2016, compared to 70.9% in 2015, which was a deterioration of 1.7
percentage points due primarily to slightly higher severity of losses on most coverages. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
reserve development) were $11.6 million in 2016, compared to $3.0 million in 2015. This increase was driven primarily by the
two aforementioned hailstorms in Texas in 2016. Loss and LAE reserve development was adverse by $4.6 million in 2016,
compared to favorable development of $15.2 million in 2015.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in preferred personal automobile insurance decreased by $76.0 million in 2015, compared to 2014, as lower
volume accounted for a decrease of $80.2 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $4.2
million. The run-off of the direct-to-consumer business accounted for approximately 30% of the decrease in earned premiums
attributed to lower volume. Incurred losses and LAE were $307.3 million, or 68.3% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to
$354.5 million, or 67.4% of earned premiums, in 2014. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased
due to a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by lower incurred catastrophe losses and
LAE (excluding reserve development) and lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 70.9% in 2015, compared to 71.8% in 2014, which was an
improvement of 0.9 percentage points due primarily to higher average earned premium and lower frequency of claims on bodily
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injury, uninsured/underinsured motorists, property damage and comprehensive coverages, partially offset by higher severity of
losses on most coverages. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $3.0 million in 2015, compared
to $8.9 million in 2014. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $15.2 million in 2015, compared to $31.8 million in
2014.

Nonstandard Personal Automobile Insurance

Selected financial information for the nonstandard personal automobile insurance product line for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is presented in the following table. The results for the year ended December 31, 2015 for
Alliance United include only the last eight months of the period, which is the period since the date of acquisition.

2016 2015 2014
Alliance Alliance
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Legacy United Total Legacy United Total Legacy
Net Premiums Written.............cc....... $ 3177 $ 5149 $ 8326 $§ 3109 $ 2851 § 5960 $ 302.8
Earned Premiums.........cccccceeenenennne. $ 311.2 $ 5088 $ 820.0 $ 3049 § 2729 § 577.8 $§ 3055

Incurred Losses and LAE related to: .
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE. $ 236.1 $ 4782 § 7143 § 2476 § 2533 § 5009 § 238.6

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........ 5.6 0.1 5.7 3.7 — 3.7 3.8
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE. 1.7 5.1 6.8 5.8 7.7 13.5 0.5
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........ 0.1) — 0.1) 0.1) — (0.1) (0.3)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ......... $ 2433 § 4834 $ 7267 $ 2570 § 261.0 $ S518.0 $ 2426

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses

and LAE Ratio......c.ccoceoeininennnn. 75.9% 94.0% 87.1% 81.2% 92.8% 86.8% 78.1%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and

LAE Ratio oo 1.8 — 0.7 1.2 — 0.6 1.2
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses

and LAE Ratio......cccccecvinineninnnn 0.5 1.0 0.8 1.9 2.8 2.3 0.2
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and

LAE Ratio oo — — — — — — 0.1)
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio... 78.2% 95.0% 88.6% 84.3% 95.6% 89.7% 79.4%
2016 Compared with 2015

Earned Premiums on nonstandard personal automobile insurance increased by $242.2 million in 2016, compared to 2015.
Excluding the impact from Alliance United, Earned Premiums increased by $6.3 million as higher average earned premium
accounted for an increase of $15.3 million, while lower volume accounted for a decrease of $9.0 million. Incurred losses and
LAE were $726.7 million, or 88.6% of earned premiums, in 2016, compared to $518.0 million, or 89.7% of earned premiums,
in 2015. Excluding Alliance United, incurred losses and LAE were $243.3 million, or 78.2% of related earned premiums, in
2016, compared to $257.0 million, or 84.3% of related earned premiums, in 2015. Excluding the impact of Alliance United,
incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums and a lower level of adverse loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by higher
incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development). Excluding Alliance United, underlying losses and LAE
as a percentage of related earned premiums were 75.9% in 2016, compared to 81.2% in 2015, which was an improvement of
5.3 percentage points due primarily to higher average earned premium, lower frequency of claims across all coverages on non-
California policies and lower severity of property losses on California policies, partially offset by higher frequency of claims on
most coverages on California policies and higher severity of bodily injury losses on non-California policies. Catastrophe losses
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and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $5.7 million in 2016, compared to $3.7 million in 2015. Excluding Alliance
United, adverse loss and LAE reserve development was $1.6 million in 2016, compared to $5.7 million in 2015.

For Alliance United, underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of related earned premiums were 94.0% in 2016, compared to
92.8% in 2015, which was a deterioration of 1.2 percentage points. Alliance United’s underlying loss and LAE ratio continues
to be significantly higher than what had been reported by Alliance United prior to the acquisition date. Alliance United has
experienced significantly higher frequency of claims on all coverages and, to a lesser extent, higher severity of losses on most
coverages than the trend that Kemper had anticipated prior to the acquisition. Alliance United’s premium rates have become
inadequate due in part to the significant adverse changes in underlying frequency and severity trends. The Company continues
to analyze its experience against industry information as it becomes available and believes that Alliance United’s frequency
trend may be worse than industry due in part to anti-selection resulting from inadequate rates and higher growth rates for new
business, which tends to run at a higher underlying loss and LAE ratio than renewal business. In addition, Alliance United’s
results for the year ended December 31, 2016 include adverse loss and LAE reserve development of $5.1 million. Since the
acquisition, several events have resulted in the historical development factors becoming less reliable in predicting how losses
will ultimately emerge. For 2016, the primary driver of adverse development was a decrease in the ratio of claims closed
without payment, which has driven the Company’s selection of ultimate losses higher. In addition, payment development
patterns, as well as claim severity patterns, may have been influenced by an inadequate level of claims adjusters, as staffing
levels for Alliance United’s claims adjusters were not able to keep pace with Alliance United’s growth rate prior to and after the
acquisition date and the recent spike in frequency. The Company has taken and continues to take various actions to address
Alliance United’s performance, including increasing the staffing levels for claims adjusters, slowing growth rates for new
business, various agency management actions and filing and implementing rate increases. The Company anticipates it will take
several more pricing cycles to become rate adequate.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned Premiums on nonstandard personal automobile insurance increased by $272.3 million in 2015, compared to 2014,.
Excluding the impact from Alliance United, Earned Premiums decreased by $0.6 million as lower volume accounted for a
decrease of $8.8 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $8.2 million. Incurred losses and
LAE were $518.0 million, or 89.7% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $242.6 million, or 79.4% of earned premiums,
in 2014. Excluding Alliance United, incurred losses and LAE were $257.0 million, or 84.3% of related earned premiums, in
2015, compared to $242.6 million, or 79.4% of related earned premiums, in 2014. Excluding the impact of Alliance United,
incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to higher underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums and a higher level of adverse loss and LAE reserve development. Excluding Alliance United,
underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of related earned premiums were 81.2% in 2015, compared to 78.1% in 2014, which
was a deterioration of 3.1 percentage points due primarily to higher frequency of claims across all coverages and higher
severity of property damage losses, partially offset by higher average earned premium and lower severity of bodily injury
losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $3.7 million in 2015, compared to $3.8 million in
2014. Excluding Alliance United, adverse loss and LAE reserve development was $5.7 million in 2015, compared to $0.2
million in 2014.
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Homeowners Insurance

Selected financial information for the homeowners insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
NEt PremiumS WITEEIL .......eoveieeeeeeee oottt e e eee et e e e eee e e eneeas $ 2674 $ 2760 $ 296.5
Earned PremMIUIMIS .. .oveiiieeieee ettt e et e e e e e e e e e s eaeeeeeseaeeeeeeans $ 2719 $ 2863 $ 3124

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........c.oocooviiiiieiiiiceceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1355 § 1451 § 1565

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt 89.0 55.4 80.8
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........c.cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiece e 3.2) (3.3) (1.5)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooiiiiiiiiieiiec ettt (16.8) (7.5) (13.3)

Total Incurred LossSes and LAE ......cc.oooooiiiioie oo $ 204.5 $ 1897 § 2225

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccoeveveviiiieicicneceeien, 49.9% 50.7% 50.1%

Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccoevvivvieiiieniiniieicicece e, 32.7 19.4 259

Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccovvivieieviiiicicieiccecie, (1.2) (1.2) (0.5)

Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccoocveeeviiiiieieiiiiiecicieieeeeee (6.2) (2.6) 4.3)

Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio..........ccoccueviiriiiiieiiiieicecicieeteeeee e 75.2% 66.3% 71.2%
2016 Compared with 2015

Earned premiums in homeowners insurance decreased by $14.4 million in 2016, compared to 2015, as lower volume accounted
for a decrease of $11.9 million and lower average earned premium accounted for a decrease of $2.5 million. Incurred losses and
LAE were $204.5 million, or 75.2% of earned premiums, in 2016, compared to $189.7 million, or 66.3% of earned premiums,
in 2015. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to higher incurred catastrophe losses and
LAE (excluding reserve development), partially offset by a higher level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development and
lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
premiums were 49.9% in 2016, compared to 50.7% in 2015, which was an improvement of 0.8 percentage points due primarily
to lower frequency of claims, partially offset by higher severity of losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve
development) were $89.0 million in 2016, compared to $55.4 million in 2015. This increase was driven primarily by the two
aforementioned hailstorms in Texas in 2016. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $20.0 million in 2016,
compared to $10.8 million in 2015.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in homeowners insurance decreased by $26.1 million in 2015, compared to 2014, as lower volume accounted
for a decrease of $32.0 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $5.9 million. Incurred losses
and LAE were $189.7 million, or 66.3% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $222.5 million, or 71.2% of earned
premiums, in 2014. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower incurred catastrophe
losses and LAE (excluding reserve development), partially offset by a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve
development and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums were 50.7% in 2015, compared to 50.1% in 2014, which was a deterioration of 0.6 percentage
points due primarily to higher severity of losses, partially offset by lower frequency of claims and higher average earned
premium. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $55.4 million in 2015, compared to $80.8 million
in 2014. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $10.8 million in 2015, compared to $14.8 million in 2014.
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PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE (Continued)
Commercial Automobile Insurance

Selected financial information for the commercial automobile insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Net Premiums WIS .......ooiveiieeececeeeeceeeeeceeetce ettt $ 510 $ 541 § 556
Earned PremMilmS ........c.c.ooviviuiiieeiietieietetecetceeete ettt ae et s e se s s eaens $ 533 § 545 § 548
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........c.oocooviiiiieiiiiceceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 440 $ 457 $ 4406
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt 0.8 0.2 0.2
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiccccc e 2.5 1.8 (2.6)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiecee ettt 0.1 — —
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........coooiouioiiiiioiiieeeeeceeee ettt $ 472 $§$ 477 0§ 422
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccoeveveviiiieicicneceeien, 82.6% 83.8% 81.3%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccoevvivvieiiieniiniieicicece e, 1.5 0.4 0.4
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccovvivieieviiiicicieiccecie, 4.7 33 4.7
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccoceeeeviiiiieiieieniiiecieieieceee 0.2) — —
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio..........cccccueviiiiiiieiiiicccecieieeeeeee et 88.6% 87.5% 77.0%

2016 Compared with 2015

Earned premiums in commercial automobile insurance decreased by $1.2 million in 2016, compared to 2015, as lower volume
accounted for a decrease of $3.8 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $2.6 million.
Incurred losses and LAE were $47.2 million, or 88.6% of earned premiums, in 2016, compared to $47.7 million, or 87.5% of
earned premiums, in 2015. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due primarily to a higher
level of adverse loss and LAE reserve development and higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve
development), partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 82.6% in 2016, compared to 83.8% in 2015, which was an improvement of 1.2
percentage points due primarily to higher average earned premium and lower severity of losses, partially offset by higher
frequency of claims. Adverse loss and LAE reserve development was $2.4 million in 2016, compared to $1.8 million in 2015.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in commercial automobile insurance decreased by $0.3 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to a
slight decrease in volume, nearly offset by an increase in average earned premium. Incurred losses and LAE were $47.7
million, or 87.5% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $42.2 million, or 77.0% of earned premiums, in 2014. Incurred
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due primarily to adverse loss and LAE reserve development in
2015, compared to favorable development in 2014, and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums.
Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 83.8% in 2015, compared to 81.3% in 2014, which was a
deterioration of 2.5 percentage points due primarily to higher frequency of claims across all coverages, particularly bodily
injury, partially offset by lower severity of losses across most coverages, particularly bodily injury and comprehensive. Adverse
loss and LAE reserve development was $1.8 million in 2015, compared to favorable development of $2.6 million in 2014.
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PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE (Continued)
Other Personal Insurance

Other personal insurance products include umbrella, dwelling fire, inland marine, earthquake, boat owners and other liability
coverages. Selected financial information for other personal insurance product lines follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Net Premiums WITHEIL ......ooviiiiieeee ettt ettt ettt eee s $ 438 § 456 $ 480
Barned PreIMIUIIS ......oouviiieieeeeee ettt et e e e s eaee e e e e eeeaeeseaaeeens $ 450 $ 467 $ 509

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........cccoooviiiiiioiiiicceeceeeeeeeeeeeeee s $ 222 § 234 § 281
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccccooioiiiiiiicceeeeeeeee e 2.5 2.2 2.8
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE............cccooioiiiiiiiiiieeee e 6.1) (2.0) (3.5

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiicceceeeeeeeee et (1.9) (0.1) (1.9)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........ccooovoiiiiiieieeceeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 166 § 235 § 255
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccccvveveneiiiinincincncncenns 49.1% 50.1% 55.2%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccoocveviivieiiieninieieiee e, 5.6 4.7 55
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccocevieieiieniiieiieieccc e (13.6) 4.3) (6.9)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccccoeviieiieniieieieieieccecee e 4.2) 0.2) 3.7
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio........ccccocveriiiiiiieieiecccieeeec e 36.9% 50.3% 50.1%

2016 Compared with 2015

Earned premiums in other personal insurance decreased by $1.7 million in 2016, compared to 2015, as lower volume accounted
for a decrease of $2.6 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $0.9 million. Incurred losses
and LAE were $16.6 million, or 36.9% of earned premiums, in 2016, compared to $23.5 million, or 50.3% of earned premiums,
in 2015. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to a higher level of favorable loss and
LAE reserve development and, to a lesser extent, lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums.
Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 49.1% in 2016, compared to 50.1% in 2015, which was
an improvement of 1.0 percentage points due primarily to lower frequency of non-umbrella claims and lower severity of losses
on most coverages, partially offset by higher frequency of umbrella claims and lower average earned premium. Catastrophe
losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $2.5 million in 2016, compared to $2.2 million in 2015. Favorable loss
and LAE reserve development was $8.0 million in 2016, compared to $2.1 million in 2015.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in other personal insurance decreased by $4.2 million in 2015, compared to 2014, as lower volume accounted
for a decrease of $5.5 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $1.3 million. Incurred losses
and LAE were $23.5 million, or 50.3% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $25.5 million, or 50.1% of earned premiums,
in 2014. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to a lower level of favorable loss and LAE
reserve development, partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and lower
catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development). Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums
were 50.1% in 2015, compared to 55.2% in 2014, which was an improvement of 5.1 percentage points due primarily to lower
frequency of umbrella claims, partially offset by higher severity of losses across all coverages. Catastrophe losses and LAE
(excluding reserve development) were $2.2 million in 2015, compared to $2.8 million in 2014. Favorable loss and LAE reserve
development was $2.1 million in 2015, compared to $5.4 million in 2014.
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LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE

Selected financial information for the Life & Health Insurance segment is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Earned Premiums:
LIE ettt ettt ettt b e e reesb e b e eteere et e ebeereeseenseereeraeneen $ 3816 § 3741 $ 3876
Accident and Health ...........ocoovieiiiiiiiieccee e 149.4 144.9 148.6
PrOPITY ..ottt et ettt ettt at e st eab e et eb e et enten 74.2 75.4 76.5
Total Earned PremilmS .......cc.cooviiiiiiieiieciiecie ettt e eve et eseeveeetaesasessee e 605.2 594.4 612.7
Net INVestment INCOME. .......ocviiiiiiiieiieciie ettt ettt teesaeesaeeseaeessessseeanaens 213.2 214.2 218.7
Other INCOME .....oviiiiiieie ettt ettt e be et e e steesteeeseessbessbeenseesseenseeseesseenseennes 2.8 2.4 0.9
TOtAl REVEIIUES .....eeivieiieeit ettt ettt ettt et e s saestaesseessseenseenseenseensaeseeseennes 821.2 811.0 832.3
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE.........c.cccoovieiiiiiinienienieeeeee 461.6 381.3 374.4
INSUTANCE EXPEINISES ..vevvieiiieiiieiieiiestie sttt ettt ettt ettt et et esaeesateenteenseenbeebeeseenseenees 313.9 320.0 316.0
OPEIating PrOfit.....iiuieiiiiieiieieie sttt sttt ettt e se et e ssesbeessensesseeneenaens 45.7 109.7 141.9
INCOME TaX EXPEIISE.....eviiiiiiiiiiiiieitieieeitete ettt ettt ettt et e e e see (15.4) (38.0) (50.1)
Segment Net Operating INCOME ..........coveieiiirinieiiineictee ettt $ 303 $ 717 $ 918
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Insurance Reserves:
Future Policyholder BENETILS. ......cc.oiuiiuieiiiiciieiciecieete ettt ettt eb e ae s ere e $3,311.5 §$3,2784
Incurred Losses and LAE Reserves:
L ottt ettt et b e bt e st e b ea e e st e st e b e eaeentebeeteeneentenaenneas 141.9 41.2
Accident and HEalth ..........coooiiiiiiiiieiee ettt nneas 21.9 21.4
PLOPEILY .ottt ettt sttt 4.5 5.2
Total Incurred Losses and LAE RESEIVES .....cc.cccviiiiiiiiiiiieiiieiiieeieeie ettt sreesae e s e esae e ennas 168.3 67.8
TNSUTANCE RESEIVES ... .evviiiiiiieiie ettt e e et e e e e et e e s et ae e e e eateeeeesnaaseesesnaaeeessneaeeesannees $ 3,479.8 $ 3,346.2

Use of Death Verification Databases

In the third quarter of 2016, the Company’s Life & Health segment voluntarily began implementing a comprehensive process
under which it will cross-reference its life insurance policies against the DMF and other death verification databases to identify
potential situations where the beneficiaries may not have filed a claim following the death of an insured and initiate an outreach
process to identify and contact beneficiaries and settle claims. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 include a pre-tax charge of $77.8 million to recognize the initial
impact of using death verification databases in the Company’s operations, including to determine its IBNR liability for unpaid
claims and claims adjustment expenses for life insurance products. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes.” to the Consolidated Financial Statements under the sub-caption “Insurance Reserves” for additional
discussion.

2016 Compared with 2015

Earned Premiums in the Life & Health Insurance segment increased by $10.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016,
compared to 2015 due primarily to the impact of an adjustment of $7.6 million recorded in 2015 to correct deferred premium
reserves on certain limited pay life insurance policies.

Net Investment Income decreased by $1.0 million in 2016, compared to 2015, due primarily to lower yields on investments in
fixed income securities and lower levels of Alternative Investments, partially offset by higher levels of investments in non-
alternative investments. The weighted-average book yield on the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries’ investments
in fixed maturities was approximately 5.5% and 5.8% at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. A protracted low interest
rate environment, relative to the Life & Health Insurance segment’s fixed income portfolio, could adversely impact the
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LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE (Continued)

weighted-average book yield on these subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities. For example, the weighted-average book
yield on the subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities will decline if new money is invested at yields below the portfolio rate.
Also, the weighted-average book yield on the subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities will decline, to the extent that
investments maturing are not used for such purposes as paying claims and expenses, if the reinvested portion is at a yield that is
lower than the book yield of the maturing investment. To help illustrate the potential impact, the subsidiaries’ investments in
fixed maturities that are maturing over the next five years totaled $666.2 million at December 31, 2016. The weighted-average
book yield on such investments was 7.6% at December 31, 2016. The reinvestment rate for the subsidiaries’ investments in
fixed maturities was approximately 4.9% in 2016 with an average duration of 7.1 years at December 31, 2016.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE increased by $80.3 million in 2016, compared to 2015. Excluding the
impact of using death verification databases described above, Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE increased
by $2.5 million due primarily to higher policyholders’ benefits on life insurance, partially offset by lower incurred losses and
LAE on property insurance and accident and health insurance. Insurance Expenses in the Life & Health Insurance segment
decreased by $6.1 million due primarily to lower legal costs, partially offset by higher agent and field management
compensation costs for KHSC and the impact of an adjustment made in 2015 to deferred policy acquisition costs for Reserve
National. Segment Net Operating Income in the Life & Health Insurance segment was $30.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016, compared to $71.7 million in 2015.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned Premiums in the Life & Health Insurance segment decreased by $18.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
compared to the same period in 2014 due in part to the $7.6 million adjustment recorded in 2015 to correct deferred premium
reserves on certain limited pay life insurance policies. Excluding the adjustment, earned premiums decreased by $10.7 million
due primarily lower earned premiums on life insurance and accident and health insurance, and, to a lesser extent, property
insurance.

Net Investment Income decreased by $4.5 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to lower investment income from
Alternative Investments, partially offset by higher investment income from fixed income securities. Investment income from
Alternative Investments in 2014 included dividend income of $21.4 million from one company that had sold substantially all of
its operations.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE increased by $6.9 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to
higher policyholders’ benefits on life insurance and higher incurred losses and LAE on property insurance. Insurance Expenses
in the Life & Health Insurance segment increased by $4.0 million due primarily to higher legal costs and costs incurred in
connection with a project to digitize historical records, partially offset by lower salary expenses from a lower level of field staff
managers and district managers resulting from a consolidation of KHSC field operations substantially completed in the first
quarter of 2015 and lower agent incentive conference expense. Segment Net Operating Income in the Life & Health Insurance
segment was $71.7 million in 2015, compared to $91.8 million in 2014.
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Life Insurance

Selected financial information for the life insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Earned PIeMIUIMS .....c.oouiiiiieiiiiieitee sttt ettt se s be e seeneeneneeneas $ 3816 $ 3741 387.6
Net Investment INCOME .......c.ooiiiiiiiieie et 206.3 207.2 211.9
Oher TNCOMIE ...ttt eee e 2.3 1.9 0.8
TOtal REVEIUES. ...ttt ettt s st e e e eneeneeneens 590.2 583.2 600.3
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE ..........ccccccooviiiiieviiiciieieeeeeeen, 356.3 274.9 268.7
INSUTANCE EXPEINSES ...vieuiieeiiiiieiieeiieitie ettt ettt e esteeseesbeesaaessaesseesesesssennseenseens 211.3 221.7 214.6
OPErating Profit ......ocvieiiiiieiicceeeeee ettt st s ebe b e enaeeabeens 22.6 86.6 117.0
INCOME TaAX EXPENSE...uuiiiiiiiiiiieciieitieeiie ettt ettt te et teestaessaestaeseseesseenseenseens (7.5) (30.1) (41.4)
Total Product Line Net Operating INCOME.............ccoevvevvieriieeiiiiieiieiecieee e $ 151 $ 56.5 $ 75.6
2016 Compared with 2015

Earned premiums on life insurance increased by $7.5 million in 2016, compared to 2015, due primarily to an adjustment of $7.6
million recorded in the first quarter of 2015 to correct deferred premium reserves on certain limited pay life insurance policies.
Excluding the adjustment, earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $0.1 million as a decrease of $3.4 million from life
insurance products offered by KHSC was offset by an increase of $3.3 million from life insurance products offered by Reserve
National. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $356.3 million in 2016, compared to $274.9 million in 2015, an
increase of $81.4 million. Excluding the impact of using death verification databases described above, Policyholders’ Benefits
and Incurred Losses and LAE increased by $3.6 million. Insurance Expenses decreased by $10.4 million in 2016, compared to
2015, due primarily to lower legal costs, partially offset by higher agent and field management compensation costs for KHSC.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $13.5 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due in part to the $7.6 million
adjustment recorded in 2015 to correct deferred premium reserves on certain limited pay life insurance policies. Excluding the
adjustment, earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $5.9 million as a decrease of $8.9 million from life insurance
products offered by KHSC was partially offset by an increase of $3.0 million from life insurance products offered by Reserve
National due in part to the impact of the expansion of its distribution channels. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were
$274.9 million in 2015, compared to $268.7 million in 2014, an increase of $6.2 million due primarily to higher death claims
and a lower lapse ratio related to insurance policies issued by KHSC and higher volume of insurance from policies issued by
Reserve National. Insurance Expenses increased by $7.1 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to higher legal costs
and costs incurred in connection with a project to digitize historical records, partially offset by lower salary expenses from a
lower level of field staff managers and district managers resulting from a consolidation of KHSC field operations substantially
completed in the first quarter of 2015 and lower agent incentive conference expense.
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LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE (Continued)
Accident and Health Insurance

Selected financial information for the accident and health insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Earned PIeMIUIMS .....c.oouiiiiieiiiiieitee sttt ettt se s be e seeneeneneeneas $ 1494 $§ 1449 $ 1486
Net Investment INCOME .......c.ooiiiiiiiieie et 54 5.5 52
Oher TNCOMIE ...ttt ettt 0.5 0.5 0.1
TOtal REVEIUES. ....c.eiiieeieie ettt ettt ettt eee e e e eneeneeneens 155.3 150.9 153.9
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE ..........ccccccooviieiieiiiiciicieeeeeee, 80.3 80.8 81.1
INSUTANCE EXPEINSES...viiuiieiiieiieiiieciieeiie ettt ettt e teesteebe e teesaaessaesseesesesssensseenseans 67.6 63.8 65.8
OPETating Profit .....cocvieiiiiiiieeeeee ettt seb e e eabeens 7.4 6.3 7.0
INCOME TaAX EXPENSE......uiiviiiieiiieeiieeiie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e stbessaessaesesesssaesseenseens 2.5) 2.2) (2.6)
Total Product Line Net Operating INCOME............ccceevvieiieiieeieiie e $ 49 § 41 $ 4.4
2016 Compared with 2015

Earned premiums on accident and health insurance increased by $4.5 million in 2016, compared to 2015, due primarily to
higher volume. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $80.3 million, or 53.7% of accident and health insurance
earned premiums, in 2016, compared to $80.8 million, or 55.8% of accident and health insurance earned premiums, in 2015.
Incurred accident and health insurance losses decreased as a percentage of earned premiums due primarily to lower average
claim costs in other supplemental products and a lower level of hospitalization exposure, partially offset by higher frequency
and higher average claim costs in Medicare Supplement. Insurance Expenses increased by $3.8 million in 2016, compared to
2015, due primarily to the impact of an adjustment made in 2015 to Reserve National’s deferred policy acquisition costs and the
higher level of earned premiums.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums on accident and health insurance decreased by $3.7 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to
lower volume resulting from the non-renewal and run-off of certain health insurance products largely due to the impact of the
Health Care Acts, partially offset by higher volume of supplemental health insurance products and higher average earned
premium. In particular, provisions, effective in 2014, prohibiting the renewal of certain policies issued by Reserve National
after the issuance of the Health Care Acts and also establishing health insurance exchanges, and a provision that sets minimum
loss ratios for certain health insurance policies have adversely impacted Reserve National’s business. Such affected health
insurance products (the “HCA Affected Products”) accounted for $20.4 million, or 14%, of the segment’s accident and health
insurance earned premiums in 2015 and $30.8 million, or 21%, of the segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums
in 2014. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $80.8 million, or 55.8% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, in 2015, compared to $81.1 million, or 54.6% of accident and health insurance earned premiums, in 2014. Incurred
accident and health insurance losses increased as a percentage of earned premiums due primarily to higher average claim costs,
partially offset by the impact of a change in business mix resulting from the non-renewal and run-off of certain health insurance
products with higher loss ratios and the issuance of supplemental insurance products with lower loss ratios. Insurance Expenses
decreased by $2.0 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due in part to the impact of an adjustment made in 2015 to Reserve
National’s deferred policy acquisition costs.
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LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE (Continued)
Property Insurance

Selected financial information for the property insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Earned PremMItmIS .........c.oouiiuiiviiiieiieieee ettt ettt ettt ettt seeveeve s enneas $ 742 $§ 754 $§ 765
Net INvestment INCOME .........cccuieiiiiieiieie ettt et ae e e e e 1.5 1.5 1.6
TOtAl REVEIUES. ....cuvieiieiieiieciieeiteetie ettt ettt ettt e te et et e s tbeesaeesseeaseenbeessaenseenseas 75.7 76.9 78.1

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c.cccoeoiiiiiiieiiecieeeceeeee e 19.6 20.4 21.7
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........cccooioiiiiiiniiiicceeeee et 5.5 3.8 2.0
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c.ccccoeoiiiiiiienieiceeeeeee e — 1.3 0.2)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........ccccovoiiiiiiiiiciiceeeee e 0.1) 0.1 1.1
Total Incurred Losses and LAE .........cocoieiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeteee et 25.0 25.6 24.6
INSUTANCE EXPEINSES...vieuvieiiieiieiiieciieeiie sttt et et e e sta e e e teessaessaessaesssesssaesseenseans 35.0 345 35.6
OPETating Profit ......ocviiiiiiiiiieceecee ettt sttt seaeeaeenae b ens 15.7 16.8 17.9
INCOME TaAX EXPENSE.....uviiiiiiieiiieciieciie ettt ettt ettt ste et teestaessaessaeseseesseenseenseens 54 5.7 (6.1)
Total Product Line Net Operating INCOME............ccceevvieriierieeieiieiieeieee e $ 103 $§ 1.1 $§ 118

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccocvevievienieniiiiieeieeieenns 26.4% 27.2% 28.5%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccvevieviiiieiiecieeiccic e 7.4 5.0 2.6
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccccevviiiiiiiieciicciicieeeeeeeen — 1.7 0.3)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccceeveeeiiiiiiiiiiieeieccceeeeen 0.1) 0.1 1.4

Total Incurred Loss and LAE RatiO.......cccouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 33.7% 34.0% 32.2%

2016 Compared with 2015

Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by $1.2 million in 2016, compared to 2015, due primarily to lower volume
of insurance. Incurred losses and LAE on property insurance were $25.0 million, or 33.7% of property insurance earned
premiums, in 2016, compared to $25.6 million, or 34.0% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2015. Underlying losses
and LAE on property insurance were $19.6 million, or 26.4% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2016, compared to
$20.4 million, or 27.1% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2015. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development)
were $5.5 million in 2016, compared to $3.8 million in 2015. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $0.1 million in
2016, compared to unfavorable loss and LAE reserve development of $1.4 million in 2015.

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by $1.1 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to lower volume
of insurance, partially offset by higher premium rates in a few states. Incurred losses and LAE on property insurance were
$25.6 million, or 34.0% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $24.6 million, or 32.2% of property
insurance earned premiums, in 2014. Underlying losses and LAE on property insurance were $20.4 million, or 27.1% of
property insurance earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $21.7 million, or 28.4% of property insurance earned premiums, in
2014. and decreased due primarily to lower frequency and severity of fire insurance losses, partially offset by higher severity of
losses from storms that were not large enough to be classified as a catastrophe by ISO. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
development) were $3.8 million in 2015, compared to $2.0 million in 2014. Unfavorable loss and LAE reserve development
was $1.4 million in 2015, compared to $0.9 million in 2014.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS
Net Investment Income

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Investment Income (Loss):
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturiti€s..........c.ceveveriiereiereriiereeeieeeeeeeveeeseve e $ 2427 § 2362 $§ 2274
Dividends on Equity Securities Excluding Alternative Investments..........c.cccccvccnennencne 11.8 14.8 19.2
Alternative Investments:
Equity Method Limited Liability InVesStments............ccocveeerierereeienine e 7.5 19.0 9.0
Fair Value Option INVEStMENTS........ccceriiiiiieieiieieeiee e (1.9) 0.2 0.7)
Limited Liability Investments Included in Equity Securities ..........cccccevvvirviveieenennne. 22.0 17.6 40.7
Total Alternative INVESIMENTS. .....cc.eoiiiiriiiiiieieneriieie ettt 27.6 36.8 49.0
Short-term INVESTMENTS. .....c.ivuiiiiiiiiiiiiceeee ettt ettt 0.5 0.4 0.6
L0ans to POICYROIACTS .......c.eeviiiieiieiieieieeeeee et 21.6 21.1 20.5
REAI ESTALE ..eeuviiviiiieitieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e eabeeteesabeeabeeaseesseesbeebeenseenreas 11.8 11.9 12.1
ONET .ttt et et e e be e te e be e be e s tbeeabeetteetbeeabeenaeenbeenbeenbeenreenreas 0.3 — 0.1
Total INVeStMENt INCOME ........ccuiiiiieiiiiiiicieeie ettt be e e ebe e baesaeenaeeses 316.3 321.2 328.9
Investment Expenses:
REAL ESTALE ..c.eoueitiiieiiee ettt sttt 11.0 11.3 11.3
Other INvestmMent EXPENSES ......ccviiviiiiieiieiieieie ittt ettt aesre e sesseesneneens 7.0 7.3 8.5
Total INVeStMENt EXPENSES.....couiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeteeteee ettt sseeneennens 18.0 18.6 19.8
Net Investment INCOME..........ocieiiiiiicieieieee ettt enees $ 2983 § 302.6 $ 309.1
2016 Compared with 2015

Net Investment Income decreased by $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to 2015, due primarily to
lower investment returns from Alternative Investments, lower levels and lower returns on investments in equity securities
excluding alternative investments and lower yields on fixed income securities, partially offset by higher level of investments in
fixed income securities.

2015 Compared with 2014

Net Investment Income decreased by $6.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to
lower income from Alternative Investments and lower dividends on equity securities excluding Alternative Investments,
partially offset by higher investment income from fixed income securities. Net investment income from Alternative Investments
decreased by $12.2 million in 2015. Investment income from Alternative Investments in 2014 included dividend income of
$21.8 million from one company that had sold substantially all of its operations. Investment income from Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments, included in Alternative Investments, increased by $10.0 million in 2015 due primarily to higher
returns on two distressed debt funds. Investment income from fixed income securities increased by $8.8 million due primarily
to higher yields.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses)

The components of Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is
presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALES ...eneeeietiteteeeit ettt sttt ettt et es et be st ese e e e eneenes $ 380 $ 553 % 40.1
LLOSSES ON SAIES ....vivviieiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt ean e ens 5.1) (2.9) 2.5)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ............cccocevevveievieninieieneeeeeenee. 32.7) (27.2) (15.2)
Gain on Sale of SubSIAIATY.....c..coviiiiiiriiic e — — 1.6
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SeCULTLIES. ......ccuevvieuierierierieierie e 0.2 0.3) 0.1)
Net Gain Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income............cccoeevveevieneeneenennne. 0.4 24.9 23.9
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (LOSS) .....ooiiirieiiiniiieieicieeee e 2.5 (178.7) 233.6
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (LOSSES)........ccvevvieveeierierrieeeiesieeieeeeneeereereennens $ 21) $ (1538) $ 2575

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Fixed Maturities:

GINS ON SALES....c.vivieeiieiictecteeeeete ettt ettt ettt et e e teete et et e eteeae et e saeessesseseeseessensens $ 170 § 161 § 7.0

LL0SSES ON SIS ....eiiviiiieiieciie ettt ettt ettt e e b e e baebeenres (4.6) (1.1 0.2)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SAIES...cuviiiieiieiiecie ettt ettt ettt et sbe e st e steesetessbeenaeessesnseenseenseensean 19.9 39.2 33.1

LOSSES 0N SAICS ....vevievieiieciiciieiieie sttt ettt sttt st e b e eteeseesaesaessaessenseeseenneneens 0.3) (1.6) (2.0)
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SAIES...c.viitiiitiiciiiciie ettt ettt et eeae e bt e steeetseeteestsessbeesseesseesseesseesseenrens 1.1 — —

LLOSSES ON SAIES ....eouiiiiiiiiiciieciie et ettt ettt ettt e e et e rbeebaeaeenres — (0.2) 0.2)
Other Investments:

Gain on Sale of SUDSIAIATY ....c.eiviieiiiiieiiee et — — 1.6

LLOSSES ON SALES ....ieiviieiiie ettt ettt e an 0.2) — 0.1)

Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES) ..cvievierierieririeieiisrieeeiesteeteeeeeessesreeeesessesssesnens 0.2 0.3) 0.1
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS .........ccuevviiiiierieeieieieeie e $ 331 $ 521 $  39.1
GroSS GAINS ON SAIES ........cvoueiveeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt s $ 380 $ 553 § 417
GTOSS LOSSES ON SALES ...oviieiiieiieiietieeieeete ettt ettt ettt et e b e esaeeaaeesbeebeeseeseennes 5.1 (2.9 2.5)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUITHIES ......coueeuierieriirieieieeiieiceie e 0.2 (0.3) 0.1)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS .........ccvevviivieieriieiieieiecieeieee e $ 331 § 521 $ 391
Equity Securities

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes a net realized gain of $8.1
million from a transaction in which the Company’s investment in the common stock of a company was acquired by another
company for cash and shares of such acquiring company.

In 2015, the Company sold $149.9 million of equity securities due to portfolio allocation adjustments and tax planning
initiatives. The Company recognized Gains on Sales of Equity Securities of $31.4 million and Losses on Sales of Equity
Securities of $0.7 million resulting from such sales.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)

In 2014, the Company sold certain common stocks and other equity interests to reduce a concentration with an external
investment manager and to accelerate utilization of net operating loss carryforwards. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Equity
Securities for the year ended December 31, 2014 include net realized gains of $21.6 million from such sales.

Other sales activity in 2016, 2015 and 2014 was due to normal portfolio management.
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an
investment is other-than-temporary. Losses arising from other-than-temporary declines in fair value are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the declines are determined to be other-than-temporary.

Information pertaining to Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income
for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

2016 2015 2014
Number of Number of Number of
Issuers/ Issuers/ Issuers/

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Properties Amount Properties Amount Properties
FIX€d MALUITHES vvooeveeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo $ (26.6) 12§ (115 9 %8 (5.7) 21
EQUItY SECUITHES vvvvoorveeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseeeseseees (5.6) 14 (15.7) 25 (7.1) 22
Real EState.........oooviiiiiieeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeee e (0.5) 1 — — 2.4 1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............... $ (32.7) $ (27.2) $ (15.2)

Fixed Maturities

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2016 related to
Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $23.9 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds
of 11 issuers and credit losses of $2.7 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed
maturities of one issuer.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2015 related to
Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $4.3 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds
of four issuers and credit losses of $7.2 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed
maturities of six issuers.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2014 related to
Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $0.4 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds
of 18 issuers and credit losses of $5.3 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed
maturities of three issuers.

Real Estate

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2016 related to
Investments in Real Estate includes a loss of $0.5 million due to the Company’s intent to sell one property.

In 2014, the Company determined that the book value of one property was not recoverable based on the Company’s estimate of
the weighted-average, undiscounted cash flows from such property. Accordingly, the Company wrote down the property to its
estimated fair value and recognized an impairment loss of $2.4 million in 2014.
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INVESTMENT QUALITY AND CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is comprised primarily of high-grade municipal, corporate and agency
bonds. At December 31, 2016, 90% of the Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio was rated investment-grade, which is
defined as a security having a rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB from S&P; a rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa from Moody’s; or a rating
from the NAIC of 1 or 2.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the fixed maturity investment portfolio at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
NAIC Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
Rating S&P Equivalent Rating in Millions of Total in Millions of Total
1 AAA, AA, A e $ 3,280.4 64.0% § 3,222.5 66.4%
2 BBB .. 1,338.2 26.1 1,149.0 23.7
3-4 BB, B e 321.6 6.3 2224 4.6
5-6 CCC OF LOWET ..ot 184.7 3.6 258.4 53
Total Investments in Fixed Maturiti€S ........cccooovveeevveeeiieeeeeeeeeee e $ 5,124.9 100.0% $ 4,852.3 100.0%

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in below-investment-grade fixed maturities were $12.7 million and
$16.5 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in governmental fixed maturities at December 31,
2016 and 2015:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.................. $ 3363 51% §  320.6 5.0%
States and Political Subdivisions:

LS. ..ttt ettt ettt ettt b e e b e et e ebeebeeaeenes 655.3 9.9 673.5 10.5

Political SUDAIVISIONS .....ccuvieuiieiiiiiiieieeie ettt 174.7 2.6 177.3 2.8

Revenue BONdS.......ccccooiiiiiiiieiicicceee et 884.9 134 771.8 12.0
Foreign GOVEINMENTS. .......c.eevuieeiieiiieiiieeiieeiie et beeae e 34 0.1 —
Total Investments in Governmental Fixed Maturities ..........ccocvveeveennenn. $ 2,054.6 31.1% $ 1,943.2 30.3%

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed maturities by industry
at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
MaNUFACTUTING ......cvievieiieieeie ettt ettt ettt ese e s eseeseens $ 1,227.8 18.6% $ 1,160.4 18.0%
Finance, Insurance and Real EState .........cc.ccoovvvviiiiioiiiieeciieeeeeeeeeeee 742.6 11.2 707.4 11.0
SEIVICES ..vtvieiieetieieeitete et et et et ettt e eteste e e e s e seeseessesbeeseesaensesseesaenseseeseeneas 391.6 5.9 374.4 5.8
Transportation, Communication and Utilities...........cccocererveinininenencnnens 364.1 5.5 334.4 52
IMIIUIIE ..ttt ettt b et ettt saeeseessenseeseeseenaesenseeneenes 157.2 2.4 139.7 2.2
Retail Trade.......ccvevvieeieiieieeieceeee e 101.9 1.5 91.1 1.4
Wholesale Trade..........ccevieviiiieieiieiieieeeceeee e 69.2 1.0 80.6 1.3
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing...........ccccooovevieviniiiicieiceeeee 14.4 0.2 20.6 0.3
L@ 1 1<) SRR 1.5 — 0.5 —
Total Investments in Non-governmental Fixed Maturities........................ $ 3,070.3 46.3% $ 2,909.1 45.2%
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed maturities by range of
amount invested at December 31, 2016.

Number of Aggregate

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Issuers Fair Value
BRIOW 85 .ttt ettt a ettt h sttt n et s et s ne s senes 448 §  883.2
85 s 10 ettt ettt a ettt b Rt bttt se et ete st ne et se s ebene e 132 919.9
G110 = 820 ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt s et ettt ne ettt ebeneenas 66 886.2
820 = B30 ettt ettt ettt se sttt se et te et ne ettt ebene e 13 316.0
Greater TRAN $30.......c.ciiiiiiiiieiiieiet ettt ettt ettt ettt et se st es et s e se et ete e eseseeseseeeseneenas 2 65.0
TOLAL et h et et bt a e h ettt h bt tene ettt neeaeeteeenea 661 $ 3,070.3

The Company’s short-term investments primarily consist of overnight repurchase agreements, overnight interest bearing
accounts, certificates of deposits, U.S. Treasury securities with maturities of less than one year at the date of purchase and
money market funds. At December 31, 2016, the Company had $67.6 million invested in overnight repurchase agreements
primarily collateralized by securities issued by the U.S. government and government agencies and authorities, $79.1 million
invested in overnight interest bearing accounts with one of the Company’s custodial banks, $60.0 million invested in certificates
of deposits issued by a single bank, $46.1 million invested in U.S. Treasury securities with maturities of less than one year at
the date of purchase and $20.9 million invested in money market funds which primarily invest in U.S. Treasury securities.

At the time of borrowing, the repurchase agreements generally require the borrower to provide collateral to the Company at
least equal to the amount borrowed from the Company. The Company bears some investment risk in the event that a borrower
defaults and the value of collateral falls below the amount borrowed.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s ten largest exposures, excluding investments in U.S.
Government and Government Agencies and Authorities and Short-term Investments, at December 31, 2016.

Percentage
Fair of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Investments
Fixed Maturities:
States including their Political Subdivisions:
TIEXAS vttt ettt ettt ettt et et e et e et e e et e et e ettt b et et e ettt et e ete ettt e eteeat et e eteete et eeteetsens et e eaeeae et eteeaeenes $ 1015 1.5%
A T 411 RSP SRS P 86.0 1.3
L0111« OO SRRSP 82.6 1.3
LLOUISTANA ...ttt et b et b ettt bttt ebe et eae 81.7 1.2
[ Te) o4 - H OSSO P TP 80.7 1.2
L070] (0] - T Lo JU OO OO OO OO OSSOSO TSP SRS U PRSPPI 65.5 1.0
VITZINA ettt ettt ettt et e e st e et e et et e eseesten s e st eseeneesseeseesaenseeseeneensenseeneeneenseseeneenee 65.3 1.0
FIOTIAR .ttt e te et e te e s abesaaeetbeeebeeebeenbeenbeebeestaesaaenreees 63.5 1.0
WWISCOMSIN ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e st eetb e e e e b e esbeesseesseesseessaesssesssessseesseasseesseesseeseenseenseenns 57.2 0.9
Equity Securities—Other Equity Interests:
Vanguard Total Stock Market ETF........ccooooiiiiiiiieiicicieeeese ettt n 73.4 1.1
TIOMAL ..ttt bttt ettt b et beebe e $ 7574 11.5%
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INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES AND LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The Company owns investments in various limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest
in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. The Company’s investments in these limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships are reported either as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, Other Equity Interests
and included in Equity Securities, or Fair Value Option Investments depending on the accounting method used to report the
investment. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Additional information pertaining to these investments at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is presented below.

Unfunded
Commitment Reported Value in Millions
Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31,
Asset Class 2016 2016 2015
Reported as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus
Cumulative Undistributed Earnings:
DiStresSed DEDL......cuiieiiiieiet e $ — 3 654 $ 90.5
Mezzanine DEbt..........ocioiiiiiiiiiiiiiicee e 56.2 63.2 38.8
Secondary TranSaCtIONS ........ccveerveeriierieeriereentiesteeieeteereeaeeseebeesseesseenaeenees 19.6 27.3 38.5
SENIOT DEDE ...ttt 0.5 6.6 10.8
GIOWEh EQUILY .vevieeieieie ettt — 4.6 4.8
Leveraged BUyOUL........ocoiuieieiiei e — — 2.8
L33 T<) TSP SRRSSP — 8.8 4.4
Total Equity Method Limited Liability Investments............ccceceveneieeienenncnne. 76.3 175.9 190.6
Reported as Other Equity Interests at Fair Value:
Mezzanine DDt ........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiice e 85.6 97.6 83.8
SENIOT DEDE ...ttt 33.5 36.4 37.9
DiStressed DEbL......c.couiiiiieiiiiiieeee e 4.6 18.8 18.9
Secondary TranSaCtioNS .........c.eeveeeiereieieierieeteeeeee e eeeeee e seeeeenseseeeneenees 10.6 11.9 14.2
Leveraged BUuyouL........ooiiieieiiec et 0.9 6.5 5.9
ORI ettt ettt n e — 38.4 44.8
Total Reported as Other Equity Interests at Fair Value..........cccocoooeininnne. 135.2 209.6 205.5
Reported as Fair Value Option Investments:
Hedge FUNA.......ooiiiiiii ettt — 1114 164.5

Total Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships.... $ 2115  § 4969 $ 560.6

The Company expects that it will be required to fund its commitments over the next several years. The Company expects that
the proceeds from distributions from these investments will be the primary source of funding of such commitments.

The Company does not directly participate, as either a lender or borrower of securities, in any securities lending program. The
Company does not participate directly in credit default swaps. Except for a cash flow hedge entered into by the Company in
2016 in anticipation of a debt offering in 2017, the Company does not engage directly in hedging activities, including, but not
limited to, activities involving interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, commodities contracts, exchange traded
and over-the-counter options or warrants. The Company has limited exposure to such programs and activities by virtue of its
investments in the limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships noted above. See Note 7 “Debt,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of the cash flow hedge entered into by the Company in 2016 in
anticipation of a debt offering in 2017.
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WRITE-OFFS OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

In June 2015, the Company decided to cease funding for and abandon a computer software development project for the
Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Accordingly, the Company recorded a charge of $11.1 million before taxes
to write off such software in 2015.

In September 2014, the Company determined that it was no longer probable that certain software for the Property & Casualty
Insurance segment would be completed and/or fully implemented. Accordingly, the Company recorded a charge of $54.6
million before taxes to write off such software in 2014.

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

Interest and Other Expenses was $90.3 million, $107.6 million and $91.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014, respectively. Interest expense was $44.4 million, $46.5 million and $46.9 million for the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses were $45.9 million, $61.1 million and $44.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses decreased by $15.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016, compared to 2015, due primarily to lower pension expense from the effect of freezing benefit
accruals under the Company’s defined benefit pension plans and lower amortization of accumulated unrecognized pension
losses related to the Company’s defined benefit pension plans. See Note 16 “Pension Benefits” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Other Corporate Expenses increased by $16.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to 2014,
due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs and, to a lesser extent, higher compensation expense.

As discussed in Note 16, “Pension Benefits,” the Company had an Accumulated Actuarial Loss included in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”) of $152.2 million at December 31, 2015, which was being amortized over five years—the
remaining average service life of participants at December 31, 2015. As a result of freezing benefit accruals under the
Company’s defined benefit pension plan, the Accumulated Actuarial Loss of $144.7 million included in AOCI at December 31,
2016 is being amortized over 25 years—the remaining average estimated life expectancy of participants. Amortization of
accumulated actuarial losses included as a component of pension expense is anticipated to decrease by $4.2 million in 2017,
compared to 2016, due primarily to the change in amortization period resulting from the pension freeze.

In 2016, the Company changed its method for estimating the interest and service cost components of expense recognized for its
pension and other postretirement employee benefit plans. As a result, the Company elected to use a full yield curve approach to
estimate these components of benefit cost by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the determination of
the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. Historically, the interest and service cost components were estimated
using a single weighted-average discount rate derived from the yield curve used to measure the projected benefit obligation or
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, as relevant, at the beginning of the period. The change provides a more precise
measurement of interest and service costs by improving the correlation between projected benefit cash flows to the
corresponding spot yield curve rates. The Company has accounted for this change as a change in accounting estimate that is
inseparable from a change in accounting principle and, accordingly, recognized the effect prospectively in 2016. The change in
method for estimating the interest and service cost components decreased pension expense by $2.7 million in 2016, compared
to 2015, but had no impact on the measurement of benefit obligations.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rate from continuing operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the effects of tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions, interest related to unrecognized
tax benefits, estimated indemnification recoveries recognized in earnings pursuant to the Alliance United purchase agreement
and the net effects of state income taxes. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $28.0 million,
$27.9 million and $25.6 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Estimated indemnification recoveries recognized in
earnings result in an adjustment in the tax purchase price and are excluded from the determination of taxable income and
income tax expense. Such recoveries were $0.7 million and $10.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, respectively. Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes an interest benefit on
unrecognized tax benefits of $2.3 million from the settlement of certain tax years. State income tax expense, net of federal
benefit, from continuing operations was $0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. See
Note 15, “Income Taxes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of income taxes.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Debt

Kemper has a $225.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement expiring June 2, 2020. The credit agreement provides for
fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The credit agreement contains various
financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital
ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity Universal Insurance Company (“Trinity”).
Proceeds from advances under the credit agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of
existing indebtedness. Kemper did not borrow under its credit agreement during 2016, 2015 and 2014. There were no
outstanding borrowings under the credit agreement at December 31, 2016, and accordingly, $225.0 million was available for
future borrowings.

In February 2015, Kemper issued $250.0 million of its 4.35% senior notes due February 15, 2025. The net proceeds of the
issuance were $247.3 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield of 4.49%. The 2025 Senior Notes are
unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption
prices. Kemper used the net proceeds from the sale of the 2025 Senior Notes, together with available cash, to redeem in full the
$250.0 million outstanding principal amount of its 6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015. Kemper recognized a loss of
$9.1 million before income taxes in the first quarter of 2015 from the early redemption of these senior notes.

The outstanding principal balance, net of unamortized issuance costs, of Kemper’s debt was $751.6 million at December 31,
2016, of which, $360 million is scheduled to mature on May 15, 2017 (the “2017 Debt”), $250 million is scheduled to mature
on February 15, 2025 (the “2025 Debt”) and $150 million is scheduled to mature on February 27, 2054 (the “2054 Debt”). The
2017 Debt and 2025 Debt are currently redeemable at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. The 2054 Debt was
issued in 2014 and is subordinated to the 2017 Debt and 2025 Debt. Kemper cannot redeem the 2054 Debt prior to February 27,
2019 unless certain tax or rating agency events have occurred. See Note 7, “Debt,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information regarding Kemper’s debt.

The Company’s present intention is to issue at least $250 million of 10 year senior notes to refinance its $360 million 6.00%
Senior Notes maturing in the second quarter of 2017. For risk management purposes, during the fourth quarter of 2016, the
Company entered into a derivative transaction to hedge the risk of changes in the debt cash flows attributable to changes in the
benchmark U.S. Treasury during the period leading up to the probable debt issuance. See Note 7, “Debt,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information regarding such hedge.

Trinity and United Insurance are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) of Dallas and the FHLB of Chicago,
respectively. As members, Trinity and United Insurance may obtain advances from the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago,
respectively. Advances from the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago are subject to collateral requirements as specified in the
respective agreements with Trinity and United Insurance. From time to time, Trinity and United Insurance obtain advances from
the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago, respectively, for short-term liquidity needs. During 2016 and 2015, Trinity borrowed and
repaid $10.0 million and $77.5 million, respectively under its agreement with the FHLB of Dallas. During 2015, United
Insurance borrowed and repaid $21.0 million under its agreement with the FHLB of Chicago. There were no advances from the
FHLB of Dallas or Chicago outstanding at either December 31, 2016 or December 31, 2015.

Subsidiary Dividends

Under various state insurance laws, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may pay dividends without obtaining prior regulatory
approval based upon levels of statutory capital and surplus and/or net income, as defined by the applicable state law. Kemper’s
direct insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $104.5 million, $285.0 million and $217.5 million to Kemper in 2016, 2015 and
2014, respectively. In 2017, Kemper estimates that its direct insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $133 million in
dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval.

Acquisition of Alliance United Group

On April 30, 2015, Kemper completed its acquisition of Alliance United in a cash transaction for a total purchase price of $71.0
million, subject to certain post-closing indemnifications. After completing the transaction, Kemper contributed $75.0 million to
support the book of business acquired. Kemper contributed $30 million of additional capital in the fourth quarter of 2015 due
primarily to support Alliance United’s growing book of business and reductions in statutory capital resulting from the impacts
of development of pre-acquisition losses and LAE and non-admission of indemnification receivables. In 2016, Kemper
contributed $55 million of additional capital to Alliance United.
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Common Stock Repurchases and Dividends to Shareholders

On August 6, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the 2014 Repurchase Program under which Kemper is authorized to
repurchase up to $300 million of its common stock and terminated Kemper’s remaining authorization under the 2011
Repurchase Program.

During 2016, Kemper repurchased approximately 0.1 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $3.8 million in
open market transactions under the 2014 Repurchase Program. During 2015, Kemper repurchased approximately 1.2 million
shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $43.5 million in open market transactions under the 2014 Repurchase
Program. During 2014, Kemper repurchased approximately 3.2 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of
$115.5 million in open market transactions under the two repurchase programs. The Company had $243.7 million of remaining
capacity under the 2014 Repurchase Program at December 31, 2016.

Kemper paid a quarterly dividend to shareholders of $0.24 per common share in each quarter of 2016. Dividends paid were
$49.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Sources and Uses of Funds

Kemper directly held cash and investments totaling $298.7 million at December 31, 2016, compared to $341.2 million at
December 31, 2015. Sources available for the repayment of indebtedness, repurchases of common stock, future shareholder
dividend payments, additional capitalization of its direct insurance subsidiaries, and the payment of interest on Kemper’s senior
notes and subordinated debentures include cash and investments directly held by Kemper, receipt of dividends from Kemper’s
subsidiaries and borrowings under the credit agreement.

The primary sources of funds for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are premiums, investment income and proceeds from the
sales and maturity of investments, advances from the FHLBs of Dallas and Chicago, and capital contributions from Kemper.
The primary uses of funds are the payment of policyholder benefits under life insurance contracts, claims and claims-related
expenses under property and casualty insurance contracts and accident and health insurance contracts, the payment of
commissions and general expenses, the purchase of investments, repayments of advances from the FHLBs of Dallas and
Chicago and payment of dividends to Kemper. Generally, there is a time lag between when premiums are collected and when
policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid. In the third quarter of 2016, the Company’s Life & Health segment
voluntarily began implementing a comprehensive process under which it will cross-reference its life insurance policies against
the DMF and other death verification databases to identify potential situations where the beneficiaries may not have filed a
claim following the death of an insured and initiate an outreach process to identify and contact beneficiaries and settle claims.
The Company expects to pay approximately $80 million in claims over the next several years to complete the initial outreach
process. During periods of growth, insurance companies typically experience positive operating cash flows and are able to
invest a portion of their operating cash flows to fund future policyholder benefits and claims. During periods in which premium
revenues decline, insurance companies may experience negative cash flows from operations and may need to sell investments
to fund payments to policyholders and claimants. In addition, if the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
experience several significant catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in
advance of their maturity dates to fund payments, which could result in either investment gains or losses. Management believes
that its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries maintain adequate levels of liquidity in the event that they were to
experience several future catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $25.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to
2015. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $81.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared
to 2014.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities was $48.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to $100.8 million
for the same period in 2015. Net proceeds from advances from FHLB provided $10.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2016. Kemper used $10.0 million of cash to repay the FHLB advances for the year ended December 31, 2016. Kemper used
$357.3 million of cash to repay debt for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which $258.8 million was used to redeem the
2015 Senior Notes and $98.5 million to repay the FHLB advances. Net proceeds from the issuance of debt provided $345.8
million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which $247.3 million was related to the issuance of the 2025 Senior
Notes and $98.5 million from FHLB advances. Kemper used $3.8 million of cash during 2016 to repurchase shares of its
common stock, compared to $45.0 million in 2015, including $1.5 million of cash to settle repurchases made at the end of 2014.
Kemper used $49.2 million of cash to pay dividends for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to $49.7 million of cash
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used to pay dividends in the same period of 2015. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24 per common share for each quarter of
2016 and 2015.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities was $100.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $19.7 million
for the same period in 2014. Kemper used $357.3 million of cash to repay debt for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which
$258.8 million was used to redeem the 2015 Senior Notes and $98.5 million to repay the FHLB advances. Net proceeds from
the issuance of debt provided $345.8 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which $247.3 million was
related to the issuance of the 2025 Senior Notes and $98.5 million from FHLB advances, compared to net proceeds of $144.0
million related to the issuance of the 2054 Subordinated Debentures in 2014. Kemper used $45.0 million of cash in 2015,
including $1.5 million of cash to settle repurchases made at the end of 2014, to repurchase shares of its common stock,
compared to using $114.0 million of cash to repurchase shares of its common stock in 2014. Kemper used $49.7 million of cash
to pay dividends for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $51.8 million in 2014. The quarterly dividend rate was
$0.24 per common share for each quarter of 2015 and 2014.

Cash available for investment activities in total is dependent on cash flow from Operating Activities and Financing Activities
and the level of cash the Company elects to maintain. Net Cash Used by Investing Activities was $238.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016, compared to $28.6 million in 2015. Net cash used by acquisitions of short-term investments was
$18.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to net cash provided by dispositions of short term investments
of $104.9 million in 2015. Fixed Maturities investing activities used net cash of $318.0 million for the year ended

December 31, 2016, compared to $53.5 million in 2015. Equity Securities investing activities provided net cash of $68.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to $104.4 million in 2015. Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments investing activities provided net cash of $6.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to $0.5
million in 2015. Net cash provided by Fair Value Option Investments investing activities was $51.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016, compared to net cash used of $111.0 million in 2015. Net cash used to acquire Alliance United was $57.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2015. Purchases of Corporate-owned Life Insurance were $7.5 million for both the
year ended December 31, 2016 and the year ended December 31, 2015.

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities was $28.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $104.3 million in
2014. Net cash provided by dispositions of short-term investments was $104.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
compared to net cash of $63.9 million used by acquisitions of short-term investments in 2014. Fixed Maturities investing
activities used net cash of $53.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to providing net cash of $20.7
million in 2014. Equity Securities investing activities provided net cash of $104.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2015, compared to $10.1 million in 2014. Equity Method Limited Liability Investments investing activities provided net cash of
$0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $33.8 million in 2014. Fair Value Option Investments
investing activities used net cash of $111.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $54.0 million in 2014.
Net cash used to acquire Alliance United was $57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to net cash of $8.9
million provided by the disposition of a subsidiary in 2014. Purchases of Corporate-owned Life Insurance were $7.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $33.5 million in 2014,

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no material obligations under guarantee contracts. The Company has no material retained or contingent
interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity. The Company has no material obligations, including contingent
obligations, under contracts that would be accounted for as derivative instruments. The Company has no obligations, including
contingent obligations, arising out of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity held by, and material to, the Company,
where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or research
and development services with the Company. Accordingly, the Company has no material off-balance sheet arrangements.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Estimated cash disbursements pertaining to the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2016 are presented below.

Jan 1, 2017 Jan 1, 2018 Jan 1, 2020

to to to After

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2019 Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2021 Total
Long Term Debt Obligations...........cccceeveveeieereneenenn. $ 3600 $ — 3 — 3 400.0 $ 760.0
Capital Lease Obligations .........ccceceevveeriiereeneenneennen. 0.7 0.1 — — 0.8
Operating Lease Obligations..........cccceeveenieereeneeennen. 17.4 254 16.5 15.2 74.5
Purchase Obligations...........cccccvevevierienieeienieneeeennenn, 26.7 15.7 0.5 — 42.9
Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits................. 272.8 455.5 440.2 7,040.4 8,208.9
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves ................ 548.4 282.9 47.6 52.5 931.4
Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long

Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet under GAAP........cccooiriiii e, 30.6 44.9 44.1 397.8 517.4
Total Contractual Obligations ..............ceevevvereevennnnn. $ 1,256.6 $ 8245 $ 5489 $ 17,9059 $ 10,535.9

Amounts included in Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits within the contractual obligations table above represent the
estimated cash payments to be made to policyholders and beneficiaries. Such cash outflows are based on the Company’s current
assumptions for mortality, morbidity and policy lapse, but are undiscounted with respect to interest. Policies must remain in
force for the policyholder or beneficiary to receive the benefit under the policy. Depending on the terms of a particular policy,
future premiums from the policyholder may be required for the policy to remain in force. The Company estimates that future
cash inflows would total $4.0 billion using the same assumptions used to estimate the cash outflows. The Company’s Life
Insurance Reserves in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are generally based on the historical assumptions for
mortality and policy lapse rates and are on a discounted basis. Accordingly, the sum of the amounts presented above for Life
and Health Insurance Policy Benefits significantly exceeds the amount of Life and Health Insurance Reserves reported on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2016.

In addition to the purchase obligations included above, the Company had certain investment commitments totaling $214.7
million at December 31, 2016. The funding of such investment commitments is dependent on a number of factors, the timing of
which is indeterminate. The contractual obligations reported above also exclude the Company’s liability of $5.1 million for
unrecognized tax benefits. The Company cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period of related future
payments, if any, for such liability. Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long Term Liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet under GAAP primarily consist of interest obligations related to Long Term Debt Obligations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Kemper’s subsidiaries conduct their businesses in two industries: property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance.
Accordingly, the Company is subject to several industry-specific accounting principles under GAAP. The preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The process of estimation is inherently uncertain. Accordingly,
actual results could ultimately differ materially from the estimated amounts reported in a company’s financial statements.
Different assumptions are likely to result in different estimates of reported amounts. The Company’s critical accounting policies
most sensitive to estimates include the valuation of investments, the valuation of property and casualty insurance reserves for
losses and LAE, the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and the valuation of pension benefit obligations.

Valuation of Investments

The reported value of the Company’s investments was $6,607.5 million at December 31, 2016, of which $5,723.3 million, or
87%, was reported at fair value, $175.9 million, or 3%, was reported under the equity method of accounting, $294.2 million, or
4%, was reported at unpaid principal balance and $414.1 million, or 6%, was reported at cost or depreciated cost. Investments,
in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and overall market volatility risk. Accordingly, it is
reasonably possible that changes in the fair values of the Company’s investments reported at fair value will occur in the near
term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. Also, it is reasonably possible
that changes in the carrying values of the Company’s Equity Method Limited Liability Investments will occur in the near term
and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements because these issuers follow
specialized industry accounting rules which require that they report all of their investments at fair value (See Item 1A., “Risk
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Factors” under the title “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net
investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses™).

As more fully described under the heading, “Fair Value Measurements,” in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company uses a hierarchical framework which prioritizes
and ranks the market observability used in fair value measurements.

The fair value of the Company’s investments measured and reported at fair value was $5,723.3 million at December 31, 2016,
of which $4,861.5 million, or 85%, were investments that were based on quoted market prices or significant value drivers that
are observable, $581.7 million, or 10%, were investments where at least one significant value driver was unobservable and
$280.1 million or 5% were investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient.
Fair value measurements based on readily available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair value can be measured from
actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of
judgment, compared to fair value measurements based on significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value. The
prices that the Company might realize from actual sales of investments are likely to vary from their respective estimated fair
values at December 31, 2016 due to changing market conditions and limitations inherent in the estimation process.

The classification of a company’s investment in a financial instrument may affect its reported results. For investments classified
as trading or for financial instruments for which a company has elected the fair value option method of accounting, a company
is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported. Accordingly, both the reported and fair
values of the Company’s investments classified as trading were $5.3 million at December 31, 2016. Both the reported and fair
values of the Company’s investments accounted for under the fair value option method of accounting were $111.4 million at
December 31, 2016. For investments in fixed maturities classified as held to maturity, a company is required to carry the
investment at amortized cost, with only amortization occurring during the period recognized into income. None of the
Company’s investments in fixed maturities were classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2016. Changes in the fair value
of investments in fixed maturities classified as available for sale, investments in equity securities classified as available for sale
and an insurance entity’s investments in equity securities without readily determinable fair values are not recognized in income
during the period, but rather are recognized as a separate component of AOCI until realized. All of the Company’s investments
in fixed maturities were classified as available for sale at December 31, 2016. Except for investments accounted for under the
equity method of accounting or classified as trading, all of the Company’s investments in equity securities at December 31,
2016 are reported at fair value with changes in fair value reported in AOCI until realized. The Company’s investments
accounted for under the equity method of accounting consist of the Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments and are valued at cost plus cumulative undistributed comprehensive earnings or losses, and not at fair value.

Under GAAP, a company may elect to use the fair value option for some or all of its investments in financial instruments.
Under the fair value option, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported.
Had the Company elected the fair value option for all of its investments in financial instruments, the Company’s reported net
income for the year ended December 31, 2016, would have decreased by $1.5 million.

The Company regularly reviews its investments for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost or amortized cost is other than temporary. Such reviews are inherently uncertain in that the value of the
investment may not fully recover or may decline further in future periods. Some factors considered for fixed maturity and
equity securities in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other than temporary include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Fixed Maturity Securities

»  The financial condition, credit rating and prospects of the issuer;

*  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

*  The ability of the issuer to make scheduled principal and interest payments;

»  The volatility of the investment;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  The Company’s intentions to sell or not to sell the investment; and

*  The Company’s determination of whether it will be required to sell the investment before a full recovery in value.
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Equity Securities

*  The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;
*  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;
The volatility of the investment;
*  Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;
*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;
*  Market liquidity;
»  Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and
e The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

Changes in these factors from their December 31, 2016 evaluation date could result in the Company determining that a
temporary decline in the fair value of an investment held and evaluated at December 31, 2016 is no longer temporary at a
subsequent evaluation date. Such determination would result in an impairment loss recognized in earnings in the period such
determination is made.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability
for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. The
Company had $931.4 million and $862.8 million of gross loss and LAE reserves at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for the Company’s business segments at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Business Segments:

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .........ocuiiriieiieiieiie ettt ettt ettt e s eseeeiaesebeenseeseenseessaesseesseenseens $ 884.1 § 800.5

Life & Health TNSUTANCE. ......oouiiiiiiiiitieiieeeee ettt st 4.5 52
Total BUSINESS SEZIMEILS. ...cueiiuiiiiiieiieieetteiee sttt teette st e ette et eeabeebeesbeenbeesbeesseesseesseesssesnseensesnseenseenseenseenee 888.6 805.7
DiSCONINUEA OPETALIONS ... .c.viivieiieeieieitieiteteete et eteste bt eteetessesseestessesseeseessessesseessensessesseessensenseeseensensesseans 38.6 51.0
UNAILOCAtEA RESEIVES .....vievieiitieiieiieie ettt sttt et ese et esaeeteese et e ssesseensenseeseeneenaensenseans 4.2 6.1
Total Property and Casualty InSUrance RESEIVES. ........cccveuieieiiiieieiicie et $ 9314 § 8628

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain, and the actual
ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving
process is particularly imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging
and/or long-tailed exposures which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended.
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s discontinued operations are predominantly long-tailed
exposures, $16.7 million of which was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at
December 31, 2016.

The Company’s actuaries generally estimate reserves at least quarterly for most product lines and/or coverage levels using
accident quarters spanning 10 or more years, depending on the size of the product line and/or coverage level or emerging issues
relating to them. The Company’s actuaries use a variety of generally accepted actuarial loss reserving estimation
methodologies, including, but not limited to, the following:

* Incurred Loss Development Methodologys;

*  Paid Loss Development Methodology;

*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Incurred Loss Methodology;
*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Methodology; and
*  Frequency and Severity Methodology.

The Company’s actuaries generally review the results of at least four of the estimation methodologies, two based on paid data
and two based on incurred data, to initially estimate the ultimate losses and LAE for the current accident quarter and re-estimate
the ultimate losses and LAE for previous accident quarters to determine if changes in the previous estimates of the ultimate
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losses and LAE are indicated by the most recent data. In some cases, the methodologies produce a cluster of estimates with a
tight band of indicated possible outcomes. In other cases, however, the methodologies produce conflicting results and wider
bands of indicated possible outcomes, and the Company’s actuaries perform additional analyses before making their final
selections. However, such bands do not necessarily constitute a range of outcomes, nor does the Company’s management or the
Company’s actuaries calculate a range of outcomes.

The key assumption in these estimation methodologies is that patterns observed in prior periods are indicative of how losses
and LAE are expected to develop in the future and that such historical data can be used to predict and estimate ultimate losses
and LAE. However, changes in the Company’s business processes, by their very nature, are likely to affect the development
patterns, which generally results in the historical development factors becoming less reliable over time in predicting how losses
and LAE will ultimately develop. The ultimate impact of a single change in a business process is difficult to quantify and
detect, and even more difficult if several changes to business processes occur over several years. Initially after a change is
implemented, there are fewer data points, as compared to the historical data, for the Company’s actuaries to analyze. With fewer
data points to analyze, the Company’s actuaries cannot be certain that observed differences from the historical data trends are a
result of the change in business process or merely a random fluctuation in the data. As the Company’s actuaries observe more
data points following the change in business process, the Company’s actuaries can gain more confidence in whether the change
in business process is affecting the development pattern. The challenge for the Company’s actuaries is how much weight to
place on the development patterns based on the older historical data and how much weight to place on the development patterns
based on more recent data.

At a minimum, the Company’s actuaries analyze 45 product and/or coverage levels for over 40 separate current and prior
accident quarters for both losses and LAE using many of the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified above as well
as other generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In all, there are more than 10,000 combinations of accident
quarters, coverage levels, and generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies used to estimate the Company’s unpaid
losses and LAE. In some cases, the Company’s actuaries make adjustments to the loss reserving estimation methodologies
identified above or use additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE.

For each accident quarter, the point estimate selected by the Company’s actuaries is not necessarily one of the points produced
by any particular one of the methodologies utilized, but often is another point selected by the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, that takes into consideration each of the points produced by the several loss reserving estimation
methodologies used. In some cases, for a particular product, the current accident quarter may not have enough paid claims data
to rely upon, leading the Company’s actuaries to conclude that the incurred loss development methodology provides a better
estimate than the paid loss development methodology. Therefore, the Company’s actuaries may give more weight to the
incurred loss development methodology for that particular accident quarter. As an accident quarter ages for that same product,
the actuary may gain more confidence in the paid loss development methodology and begin to give more weight to the paid loss
development methodology. The Company’s actuaries’ quarterly selections are summed by product and/or coverage levels to
create the actuarial indication of the ultimate losses. More often than not, the actuarial indication for a particular product line
and accident quarter is most heavily weighted toward the incurred loss development methodology, particularly for short-tail
lines such as personal automobile insurance. Historically, the incurred loss development methodology has been more reliable in
predicting ultimate losses for short-tail lines, especially in the more recent accident quarters, compared with the paid loss
development methodology. However, in some circumstances changes can occur which impact numerous variables, including,
but not limited to, those variables identified below that are difficult to quantify and/or impact the predictive value of prior
development patterns relied upon in the incurred loss development methodology and paid loss development methodology. In
those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries must make adjustments to these loss reserving estimation methodologies or use
additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, may place more weight on the adjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies or other generally
accepted actuarial estimation methodologies until the newer development patterns fully emerge and the Company’s actuaries
can fully rely on the unadjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies. In the event of a wide variation among results
generated by the different projection methodologies, the Company’s actuaries further analyze the data using additional
techniques.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

In estimating reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many
variables that are difficult to quantify, such as:

*  Changes in the level of minimum case reserves, and the automatic aging of those minimum case reserves;

*  Changes to claims practices, including, but not limited to, changes in the reporting and impact of large losses, timing
of reported claims, changes in claims closing and re-opening patterns, adequacy of case reserves, implementation of
new systems for handling claims, turnover of claims department staffs, timing and depth of the audit review of claims
handling procedures;

»  Changes in underwriting practices;

*  Changes in the mix of business by state, class and policy limit within product line;

e Growth in new lines of business;

»  Changes in the attachment points of the Company’s reinsurance programs;

*  Medical costs, including, but not limited to, the ability to assess the extent of injuries and the impact of inflation;

*  Repair costs, including, but not limited to, the impact of inflation and the availability of labor and materials;

*  Changes in the judicial environment, including, but not limited to, the interpretation of policy provisions, the impact of
jury awards and changes in case law; and

»  Changes in state regulatory requirements.

A change in any one or more of the foregoing factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate net loss and LAE that is different
from the previously estimated reserve and/or previous frequency and severity trends. Such changes in estimates may be
material.

For example, the Company’s actuaries review frequency (number of claims per policy or exposure), severity (dollars of loss per
claim) and average premium (dollars of premium per exposure). Actual frequency and severity experienced will vary depending
on changes in mix by class of insured risk. Similarly, the actual frequency and rate of recovery from reinsurance will vary
depending on changes in the attachment point for reinsurance. In particular, in periods of high growth or expansion into new
markets, there may be additional uncertainty in estimating the ultimate losses and LAE. The contributing factors of this
potential risk are changes in the Company’s mix by policy limit and mix of business by state or jurisdiction.

Actuaries use historical experience and trends as predictors of how losses and LAE will emerge over time. However, historical
experience may not necessarily be indicative of how actual losses and LAE will emerge. Changes in case reserve adequacy,
changes in minimum case reserves and changes in internal claims handling procedures could impact the timing and recognition
of incurred claims and produce an estimate that is either too high or too low if not adjusted for by the actuary. For example, if,
due to changes in claims handling procedures, actual claims are settled more rapidly than they were settled historically, the
estimate produced by the paid loss development methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and
adjust for the impact of the changes in claims handling procedures. Similarly, if, due to changes in claims handling procedures,
actual claim reserves are set at levels higher than past experience, the estimate produced by the incurred loss development
methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and adjust for the impact of the changes in claims
handling procedures.

The final step in the quarterly loss and LAE reserving process involves a comprehensive review of the actuarial indications by
the Company’s corporate actuary and corporate management who apply their collective judgment and determine the appropriate
estimated level of reserves to record. Numerous factors are considered in this determination process, including, but not limited
to, the assessed reliability of key loss trends and assumptions that may be significantly influencing the current actuarial
indications, changes in claim handling practices or other changes that affect the timing of payment or development patterns,
changes in the mix of business, the maturity of the accident year, pertinent trends observed over the recent past, the level of
volatility within a particular line of business, the improvement or deterioration of actuarial indications in the current period as
compared to prior periods, and the amount of reserves related to third party pools for which the Company does not have access
to the underlying data and, accordingly, relies on calculations provided by such pools.

Estimated Variability of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and
LAE are fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE over time, also referred to as
“development,” will occur and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated
Financial Statements when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase
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in net income in the period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when the Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net
income.

Development for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, was:
Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Continuing Operations:

Property & Casualty Insurance:

Personal Automobile TNSUIANCE .........cocvieiiiiiiiicteee et $ (113) $ 1.8 $ 316

Homeowners Insurance 20.0 10.8 14.8

Commercial Automobile Insurance 2.4) (1.8) 2.6

Other Personal LINES.......c..coieiiiiuiiiiiiieeie ettt ettt ettt beeaeesaeebeebeeaeesreenes 8.0 2.1 5.4

Life & Health Insurance:

P LoD OIEY ettt ettt b ettt eneeneas 0.1 (1.4) 0.9)
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net 14.4 11.5 53.5
DiscontinUEd OPETaAtiONS. .........eeierieriieiieieeieesteerieesteseesteeeteeteeeteebeesseesseenseesseessaesseessneans 6.3 8.6 3.6
Total Favorable Development, NEt.........c.ccveviiriiiiieiiiieieiesieee et $ 207 $ 201 $ 571

See MD&A, “Loss and LAE Reserve Development,” “Property & Casualty Insurance,” and “Life & Health Insurance,” for
further information on development reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Although development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines, development in the Company’s personal automobile
insurance product line could have the most significant impact due to the relative size of its loss and LAE reserves. To further
illustrate the sensitivity of the Company’s reserves for personal automobile insurance losses and LAE to changes in the
cumulative development factors, for each quarterly evaluation point the Company’s actuaries calculated the variability of
cumulative development factors observed in the incurred loss development methodology using one standard deviation. The
Company believes that one standard deviation of variability is a reasonably likely scenario to measure variability for its loss and
LAE reserves under the incurred development method for personal automobile insurance. Assuming that the Company’s
personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves were based solely on the incurred loss development methodology and the
variability in the cumulative development factors occurred within one standard deviation, the Company estimates that the
Company’s personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves could have varied by $66.8 million in either direction at
December 31, 2016 for all accident years combined under this scenario. In addition to the factors described above, other factors
may also impact loss reserve development in future periods. These factors include governmental actions, including court
decisions interpreting existing laws, regulations or policy provisions, developments related to insurance policy claims and
coverage issues, adverse or favorable outcomes in pending claims litigation, the number and severity of insurance claims, the
impact of inflation on insurance claims and the impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting
associations and residual market assessments. Although the Company’s actuaries do not make specific numerical assumptions
about these factors, changes in these factors from past patterns will impact historical loss development factors and, in turn,
future loss reserve development. Significant favorable changes in one or more factors will lead to favorable future loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even below, the lower end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Significant unfavorable changes in one or more factors will lead to unfavorable loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even above, the higher end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Accordingly, due to these factors and the other factors enumerated throughout the MD&A and the
inherent limitations of the loss reserving estimation methodologies, the estimated and illustrated reserve variability may not
necessarily be indicative of the Company’s future reserve variability, which could ultimately be greater than the estimated and
illustrated variability. In addition, as previously noted, development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines over
time. Accordingly, the Company’s future reserve variability could ultimately be greater than the illustrated variability.
Additional information pertaining to the estimation of, and development of, the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this 2016 Annual Report under the heading “Property and Casualty Loss and Loss
Adjustment Expense Reserves.”
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Goodwill Recoverability

While the Company believes that none of its reporting units with material Goodwill are at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test, the process of determining whether or not an asset, such as Goodwill, is impaired or recoverable
relies on projections of future cash flows, operating results and market conditions. Such projections are inherently uncertain
and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash flows. In evaluating the recoverability of
Goodwill, the Company performs a discounted cash flow analysis for each of the Company’s reporting units carrying Goodwill.
The discounted cash value may be different from the fair value that would result from an actual transaction between a willing
buyer and a willing seller. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in discount rates and investment rates. Changes to
these rates might result in material changes in the valuation and determination of the recoverability of Goodwill. For example,
an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows will decrease the discounted cash value. There is likely to be a similar, but
not necessarily as large as, increase in the investment rate used to project the cash flows resulting from investment income
earned on the Company’s investments. Accordingly, an increase in the investment rate would increase the discounted cash
value.

Pension Benefit Obligations

The process of estimating the Company’s pension benefit obligations and pension benefit costs is inherently uncertain and the
actual cost of benefits may vary materially from the estimates recorded. These liabilities are particularly volatile due to their
long-term nature and are based on several assumptions. The main assumptions used in the valuation of the Company’s pension
benefit obligations and pension costs are:

»  Estimated mortality of the participants and beneficiaries eligible for benefits;

»  Estimated expected long-term rates of returns on investments;

*  Estimated compensation increases;

»  Estimated employee turnover; and

»  Estimated rate used to discount the expected benefit payment to a present value.

A change in any one or more of these assumptions is likely to result in a projected benefit obligation or pension cost that differs
from the actuarial estimates at December 31, 2016. Such changes in estimates may be material. For example, a one—percentage
point decrease in the Company’s estimated discount rate would increase the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2016 by
$87.5 million, while a one—percentage point increase in the rate would decrease the pension benefit obligation at December 31,
2016 by $69.8 million. A one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s estimated long-term rate of return on plan assets
would increase the pension expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 by $5.2 million, while a one—percentage point
increase in the rate would decrease pension expense by $5.2 million for the same period.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws and a limited number of
grandfathered standards, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the sole source of authoritative GAAP
recognized by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) that is applicable to the Company. The FASB issues
Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs”) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC.

The Company has adopted all recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates prior to January 1, 2017. See
Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes” for discussion on adoption of these ASUs and impacts to
the Company’s financial statements, which were not material. With the possible exceptions of ASU 2016-01, Financial
Instruments—Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, ASU
2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) and ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments, the Company does not expect the adoption of all other recently issued accounting
pronouncements with effective dates after December 31, 2016 to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
All other recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates after December 31, 2016 are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.

61



Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Quantitative Information About Market Risk

The Company’s consolidated balance sheets include four types of financial instruments subject to the material market risk
disclosures required by the SEC:

1. Investments in Fixed Maturities;

2. Investments in Equity Securities;

3. Fair Value Option Investments; and
4

Investments in Fixed Maturities and Debt are subject to material interest rate risk. The Company’s Investments in Equity
Securities include common and preferred stocks and, accordingly, are subject to material equity price risk and interest rate risk,
respectively. The Company’s Fair Value Option Investments include hedge funds that are subject to material equity price risk.

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive financial instruments are divided into two categories: financial instruments
acquired for trading purposes and financial instruments acquired for purposes other than trading. The Company’s market risk
sensitive financial instruments are generally classified as held for purposes other than trading. The Company has no significant
holdings of financial instruments acquired for trading purposes. The Company has no significant holdings of derivatives.

The Company measures its sensitivity to market risk by evaluating the change in its financial assets and liabilities relative to
fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. The evaluation is made using instantaneous changes in interest rates and equity
prices on a static balance sheet to determine the effect such changes would have on the Company’s market value at risk and the
resulting pre-tax effect on Shareholders’ Equity. The changes chosen represent the Company’s view of adverse changes which
are reasonably possible over a one-year period. The selection of the changes chosen should not be construed as the Company’s
prediction of future market events, but rather an illustration of the impact of such possible events.

For the interest rate sensitivity analysis presented below, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100
basis points in the yield curve at both December 31, 2016 and 2015 for Investments in Fixed Maturities. Such 100 basis point
increase in the yield curve may not necessarily result in a corresponding 100 basis point increase in the interest rate for all
investments in fixed maturities. For example, a 100 basis point increase in the yield curve for risk-free, taxable investments in
fixed maturities may not result in a 100 basis point increase for tax-exempt investments in fixed maturities. For Investments in
Fixed Maturities, the Company also anticipated changes in cash flows due to changes in the likelihood that investments would
be called or prepaid prior to their contractual maturity. All other variables were held constant. For preferred stock equity
securities, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100 basis points in market interest rates from their
levels at both December 31, 2016 and 2015. All other variables were held constant. For Debt, the Company assumed an adverse
and instantaneous decrease of 100 basis points in market interest rates from their levels at December 31, 2016 and 2015. All
other variables were held constant. The Company measured equity price sensitivity assuming an adverse and instantaneous 30%
decrease in the Standard and Poor’s Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) from its level at December 31, 2016 and 2015, with all other
variables held constant. The Company’s investments in common stock equity securities were correlated with the S&P 500 using
the portfolio’s weighted-average beta of 1.00 and 0.99 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Beta measures a stock’s
relative volatility in relation to the rest of the stock market, with the S&P 500 having a beta coefficient of 1.00. The common
stock portfolio’s weighted-average beta was calculated using each security’s beta for the five-year periods ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, and weighted on the fair value of such securities at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. For equity
securities without observable market inputs, the Company assumed a beta of 1.00 at December 31, 2016 and 2015. The
Company’s Fair Value Option Investments were correlated with the S&P 500 using such portfolio’s weighted-average beta of
0.08 and 0.14 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which was calculated for each hedge fund in the portfolio and
weighted on the respective fair value of each of the hedge funds.
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The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2016 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s. ...........cccovveereereeeeveeeeeeeeeeereereeeeere e $ 51249 § (3134) $ — $ 3134
Investments in EqUity SECUTItIeS........ccoevierviriieieierie e 481.7 (5.4) (120.7) (126.1)
Fair Value Option Investments. 111.4 — 2.5) 2.5)
LIABILITIES
DIEDE .ttt ees $ 7709 $ 245 $ — 3 24.5

The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2015 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s. ............ccoceereeieeiiiiieieieeieee e $ 48523 $ (307.6) $ — $ (307.6)
Investments in Equity SECUrities.........ccoceiiiieiereneiieeeee e 523.2 (7.2) (126.0) (133.2)
Fair Value Option INVEStMENtS.........cccuevieriiiieeiieie e 164.5 — (6.7) (6.7)
LIABILITIES
DIEDE .ttt $ 7813 $ 330 $ — $ 33.0

The market risk sensitivity analysis assumes that the composition of the Company’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities,
including, but not limited to, credit quality, and the equity price sensitive assets existing at the beginning of the period remains
constant over the period being measured. It also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is uniform across the yield
curve regardless of the time to maturity. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market interest rates. Also, any
future correlation, either in the near term or the long term, between the Company’s common stock equity securities and fair
value option portfolios and the S&P 500 may differ from the historical correlation as represented by the weighted-average
historical beta of the common stock equity securities and fair value option portfolios. Accordingly, the market risk sensitivity
analysis may not be indicative of, is not intended to provide, and does not provide, a precise forecast of the effect of changes of
market rates on the Company’s income or shareholders’ equity. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the
Company may undertake in response to changes in interest rates or equity prices.

To the extent that any adverse 100 basis point change occurs in increments over a period of time instead of instantaneously, the
adverse impact on fair values would be partially mitigated because some of the underlying financial instruments would have
matured. For example, proceeds from any maturing assets could be reinvested and any new liabilities would be incurred at the
then current interest rates.

Qualitative Information About Market Risk

Market risk is a broad term related to economic losses due to adverse changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is
inherent to all financial instruments. SEC disclosure rules focus on only one element of market risk—price risk. Price risk
relates to changes in the level of prices due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates or other factors
that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price underlying the financial instrument. The Company’s primary market
risk exposures are to changes in interest rates and equity prices.

The Company manages its interest rate exposures with respect to Investments in Fixed Maturities by investing primarily in
investment-grade securities of moderate effective duration.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

2016 2015

Assets:
Investments:

Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2016 - $4,846.8; 2015 - $4,560.7)................ $ 51249 §$ 4,852.3

Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2016 - $434.4; 2015 - $486.9).......ccvevveieeveeeieerenee. 481.7 523.2

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative Undistributed

BAIMINEZS ...ttt et ettt ettt st e et e e tb e et e e b e eabeesbeebe e aaeeaeenteestaeeraeeaneenreen 175.9 190.6

Fair Value Option INVESTMENTS.........cc.eiiiiiiiiiiiieiieciieciie sttt eve e ere e beesaeeeaeesaee e 1114 164.5

Short-term Investments at Cost which Approximates Fair Value..........c..ccceeeevieeienieniennene. 273.7 255.7

Other INVESTMENTS ......oocuiiiiiiiieeie ettt ettt et e et e eebeeabeesbeesseesbeeseeseebeesssesseesseenens 439.9 4432
TOtAl INVESTIMIEIIES. .. ..eeeiieieieee ettt et e et e e e et e e e e et e e e eeaaeeessenataeeesnseeesesnaneeeean 6,607.5 6,429.5
CASI ettt ettt a et b et n bttt b et e st s e st enseseeneesenteneas 115.7 161.7
Receivables from POliCYhOIAETS .........c.oovuiieiiiiiiiiiceccec et 336.5 3324
Other RECEIVADIES .....c.viiiiiiieiiiiic sttt ettt ettt e et e et e eabe e be e beesseesseesesassseesseenneens 198.6 193.2
Deferred Policy ACqUISTHON COSES......cuuiiiiiieeeieiieeiieie et eieeteeteesteesteesreesteesrsessaesseeseseessaesseenneens 332.0 316.4
GOOAWILL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt e st teesesa e st eseeseebessesteseesessesseseesensensaseas 323.0 323.0
CUITent INCOME TaAX ASSEES...cueiiuiiiuiieiieieetieieeiteesteesteesteeeteeeeteetbeebeessseseeseesssesseesseesssasssessseesseens 15.5 9.5
Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS......ciiiiieiieiieeieeiieiie et e eteeteeteeteebeesbeesteesseesseesssesseesssesssessseesseesseens 25.8 31.9
ONET ASSEES ....vieuiieutieti et et et et e et e et e etteebeebeebe e st esbeesseessseesseesbeesbeesssesseesseesseseesseesssasssasssennseans 255.9 238.5
TOTAL ASSEES. ...ttt ettt et e e et et e et e et st e e e e e et e e et e e et e e eaaeeaeeas $ 8,210.5 $ 8,036.1

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:

Insurance Reserves:

Life AN HEAITN ...ttt et e e e et et esae et e s eeeeeaeerenaens $ 34753 $ 3,341.0
Property and CasUAILY .......c.cccuieiieiieii ettt e e sbe e be e aeeeaeesaeenees 931.4 862.8
TOtal INSUIANCE RESEIVES .....oiiiueiiiiieieiiee ettt ettt e et e e et e e e e e aaaeeeeenaaeeeeas 4,406.7 4,203.8
UNEANEd PremMITMS. ... .cciiiiieiieciietiesti ettt et e et e eeteebeeaeesbeebeeteesseeseesssesssesssesssassseesseenseens 618.7 613.1
Liabilities for Unrecognized Tax Benetits..........cceeviiiiiieiiiiieiiciiecieeceeseeee e 5.1 3.8
Long-term Debt, Current and Non-current, at Amortized Cost (Fair Value: 2016 - $770.9; 2015
2 8783 ettt ettt b et bbbt et b et st et e b et eneere et bensens 751.6 750.6
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities.........c.ccvereriirieiieniiiiiieiesie et 453.2 472.4
TOLAL LIADIIIEIES ..ottt et e et e e et e e e et eeseeaaeeeeseaaeeeeseaneeeeesaaeeeeas 6,235.3 6,043.7
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value Per Share, 100 Million Shares Authorized; 51,270,940
Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 51,326,751 Shares Issued and
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .. ..ottt ees 5.1 5.1
Paid-IN CAPILAL ....oovviviieiiiciece ettt ettt et ettt et e te et e ereeaaennen 660.3 654.0
Retained EArmings .......cccueeiiiiieiieie ettt ettt eb e e e eab e esbeeaeese e beessaesseenneenens 1,172.8 1,209.0
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME...........ccviiiiiiieiiiiii e 137.0 124.3
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY........cccuiiiieiieiieii ettt ettt et e e e teestaesseesteeseaessseenaesaneens 1,975.2 1,992.4
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUItY.........cccueivieiieiiiiiieiiiiieie e $ 8,210.5 $ 8,036.1

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2016 2015 2014
Revenues:
Earned PremiUMIS.........c.ooiiiuiiiiiiiieie ettt e e ettt e e e e eaaeeaaaeaan $2,220.0 $2,009.6 $ 1,862.2
Net [nvestment INCOME............ccuieiieiiiiieiieie ettt ae et sseenseenes 298.3 302.6 309.1
Other INCOME ..ottt ettt ettt e sbeeteess s e saeersennens 3.2 3.7 1.4
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ...........cceeveviiiiieriiiiiicieeieiceee e 33.1 52.1 39.1
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment LOSSES..........ccccoveeuieiiriiiiiieiicreeeeeeere e (33.0) (27.4) (15.2)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.............ccoeveveeurenrnns 0.3 0.2 —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............c.ccceevevveviiivieieniiniecieieeeeeeeennn (32.7) (27.2) (15.2)
TOtAl REVEIIUES ...t ettt et e e et s e e e et e saae e et e e eaneeenees 2,521.9 2,340.8 2,196.6
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses................. 1,780.8 1,467.6 1,261.7
INSUTANCE EXPEINSES......viiiiiiiieiiiieiieeie ettt ettt ettt et steestaesteestaessaeesaeessessseenseenseenseas 647.3 645.1 628.4
Write-off of Long-11ved ASSELS........ciiieiiicrieieiccieeteeee ettt — 11.1 54.6
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt............ccccoeciiviiiiiiiiiiiiicceeceeee e — 9.1 —
Interest and Other EXPENSES ......c.cciivieiiiiierieieieiie ettt ettt sve e sesve e ennens 90.3 107.6 91.7
TOtAl EXPEISES. ....cvivieeiiiiiteetieiteete ettt ettt ettt ettt e eteesa e b et e eaeessesbeeteessesseeseessesseseeseeneas 2,518.4 2,240.5 2,036.4
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes..........cccceeveeieieriieeeierienreeeeennn. 35 100.3 160.2
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE).......ccuevviiuiiiiiiiiiieeiieieeie ettt ettt 9.2 (20.1) (47.6)
Income from Continuing OPErations............c.cevirveeeeriirrieeeierreereeeetesseereessesaesreesessesseeseennes 12.7 80.2 112.6
Income from Discontinued OPErations ..............cceeveverriereeierrinrieeetesreereeeesse e esessesseeseennes 4.1 55 1.9
NEEINCOMMIE ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt et s st et s s s s sesens $ 168 $ 857 §$§ 1145
Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share: -
BUSIC 1.ttt b ettt bbbttt b bt s s s s $ 025 § 155 $§ 208
DHIUEEA oo $ 025 S 155 § 208
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC 1.ttt ettt bbbttt s bt s s s enas $ 033 $§ 165 $ 212
DAIULEA ¢ $ 033 5§ 165 § 212
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share ............c.cccvoveioveuiiereieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 09 $ 096 $ 096

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For The Years Ended December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
NEE INCOIMIE ...ttt ettt ettt ea et et es e s et e eae s e eneenes $ 168 $ 857 $ 1145

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES)......c.coiiuierieriiiiiiiieiieieeieeee ettt 2.2) (177.3) 234.6
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments.............ceccvevviiiiieieriiireeeciesie e 0.3) (1.4) (1.0)
Decrease (Increase) in Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ......................... 20.5 26.1 (98.5)
Gain on Cash FIOW Hedge........cccooviiviiiiiiiiccceeeeeee et 1.6 — —
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes..........cccoovveeeieviiiieeeieiieieennns 19.6 (152.6) 135.1
Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPense)..........ccocveeevviviieieieniiieieieeeeeeens (6.9) 54.2 47.7)
Other Comprehensive INCOmEe (LOSS)......cccveiiriieieiiiiiciieieie ettt 12.7 (98.4) 87.4
Total Comprehensive INCOME (LOSS)......c.covevreiuerieeereeeteeeeeeteeeteeeeee e eteasetetes e eseeereaeenas $ 295 $§ (12.7) $ 2019

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Operating Activities:
INEE TICOITIE ..ttt bttt b et es e s st esenens $ 168 $ 857 § 1145
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Increase in Deferred Policy AcquiSition COStS........ccueeuieierierieieierie e (15.6) (13.1) 0.4)
Amortization of Intangible Assets ACQUITEd........cccveviiviieriieriieieeieeeee e 5.9 15.4 7.2
Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments............c.cccccoeecennene (7.5) (19.0) 9.0)
Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability
TNVESTMENLS ..c..viiuiieiieiiieiiie ettt sttt ettt e b 15.7 8.6 217
Decrease (Increase) in Value of Fair Value Option Investments reported in Investment
INICOMIC ...ttt ettt ettt ae e a et e st et e b e s ene e st e s et eseeseese e eneeneesenes 1.9 0.3) 0.7
Amortization of Investment Securities and Depreciation of Investment Real Estate ..... 16.2 16.1 15.4
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ........ccovevverieieriiiieieeeeceee e 33.1) (52.1) (39.1)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........cccvevvevienvenienienienieiieeieeeeeene 32.7 27.2 15.2
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt...........ccccoviriiiiniiieieee e — 9.1 —
Depreciation of Property and EQUIPMENTt .........cccoooieiiiiiiiiiiiceee e 13.6 13.5 16.0
Write-0ffs of Long-lived ASSELS.......cccveieieriiiiiiieieieee et eaees — 11.1 54.6
Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivables...........ooveeeeiiiiiieieeiiciceieee e (11.0) 49.6 46.2
Increase (Decrease) in InSUrance RESETVES .........ccveeuieriieiiieieeieeiceeeeee e 201.8 39.6 (54.7)
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Premiums.........cc.eovvereienienieeierienie e 5.6 9.4) (62.0)
Change in INCOME TaAXES......cuirtiiieieiieiieee ettt eee (6.5) (21.8) 11.2
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities...........cccoeveevivevieniennnnn. 33 22.6 (20.3)
ORET, NEE ...ttt ettt ettt b st et e ebessesteseebesbe st ese et eesesseseenessens 0.7 32.2 16.4
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACtVILIES ......cueevieriieriieiieriieiieeie ettt eie e esieeseeenaee s 240.5 215.0 133.6
Investing Activities:
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturiti€s ........c.ceeoverueruirierienienieienee e 532.3 627.8 573.7
Purchases of FIXed MatUritieS .......co.eeiviiiviiirieeieeeiee et eve vt eae e (850.3) (681.3) (553.0)
Sales Of EQUILY SE@CUITHICS ... ccueeuieierieitieiietiett ettt ettt e e see s eneeeee e 158.9 238.4 2453
Purchases of EQUItY SECUITHIES .....ecovieuieiieiieiiieiie sttt ettt enae e eenes (90.1) (134.0) (235.2)
Acquisition and Improvements of Investment Real Estate ...........c.cccecnenencinincnccncnns 2.2) (1.8) 2.1
Sales of Investment Real ESTate ..........ccoueiuiiiiiiriiiiiieee e 7.5 7.7 0.9
Sales of and Return of Investment of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments......... 41.0 32.9 55.2
Acquisitions of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments ............ccccoeoereniiierenencane (34.6) (32.4) (21.4)
Sales of Fair Value Option INVESIMENTS.........cccveeriiiriieriieiieriiesieeieeiie e eie e sae e 72.2 — 6.9
Purchases of Fair Value Option INVEStMENtS...........ccecvevieieierieiieieiese e (21.0) (111.0) (60.9)
Decrease (Increase) in Short-term INVEStMENtS .........cccevevieiieriieiiieieciereeeeeeee e (18.0) 104.9 (63.9)
Acquisition of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired..........coocvevveriiieiieiiiniiieieeee s — (57.6) —
Disposition of Business, Net of Cash DiSpoSed........ccovieieieriiieieieie e — — 8.9
Increase in Other INVESTMENTS .......ccviiiiiiriieriieierie ettt ae e eeees 5.7 3.2) (8.0)
Purchase of Corporate-owned Life INSUTANCE ........ccuevviriieieieiiiiieieiere e (7.5) (7.5) (33.5)
ACqQUISTHON Of SOFEWATE ...cvviiiiiiiieiecie ettt ettt seaeenaeesaeeenes (17.6) (8.9) (11.3)
OFNET, NET ...ttt sttt b bttt b ettt sbe st et st ebe b e (3.0) (2.6) (5.9)
Net Cash Used by INVESting ACHIVITIES ....ccverveiuieieiieiieiieiesie ettt (238.1) (28.6) (104.3)
Financing Activities:
Net Proceeds from Issuances 0f DEbt ..........cccueiiiviiieiiiiieieiet e 10.0 345.8 144.0
Repayments Of DEDt.........coouiiiiiiieiice ettt (10.0) (357.3) —
Common Stock RePUICHASES..........ccviiieiieiieieieeicecee ettt 3.8 (45.0) (114.0)
Dividends and Dividend Equivalents Paid.............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii e (49.2) (49.7) (51.8)
Cash Exercise Of StOCK OPHIONS ......ocviviiiiieiieitesiiesieetese sttt ettt saee s 3.5 3.9 0.5
OBNET, NET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st ese e s et e st et e be b esseseese s esseseeseesensansesesenes 1.1 1.5 1.6
Net Cash Used by FINancing ACIVILIES .......eecveerueeiiieriieriieriiesiesieeeeeeie e ereeeeereesieesseesseenaeens (48.4) (100.8) (19.7)
Increase (Decrease) N Cash.......cc.ioiuiiiuiiiiiiiicciccecce ettt (46.0) 85.6 9.6
Cash, Beginning Of Year .......cccoeiiiiiieieiet et 161.7 76.1 66.5
Cash, ENA OF Y@AT......coiiiii ittt ettt ettt $ 1157 §$ 161.7 $ 76.1

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

68



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For The Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Accumulated
Number Other Total

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN MILLIONS, of Common Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS Shares Stock Capital  Earnings Income Equity
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2013 ............c.c.c..... 557§ 56 § 6948 $ 12158 § 1353 $ 2,051.5
Net INCOme ... — — — 114.5 — 114.5
Other Comprehensive Income (Note 12) ................... — — — — 87.4 87.4
Cash Dividends to Sharcholders ($0.96 per share).... — — — (51.8) — (51.8)
Repurchases of Common Stock ...........cccccevvvevrienennnee (3.2) (0.4) (40.2) (74.9) — (115.5)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 10).............. — — 6.4 — 6.4
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOLE 10) .. 0.1) — 0.9 0.9) — (1.8)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2014 524§ 52§ 660.1 $ 1,202.7 $ 2227 $ 2,090.7
Net INCOME ... — — — 85.7 — 85.7
Other Comprehensive Loss (Note 12)........ccccceeveunnee — — — — (98.4) (98.4)
Cash Dividends and Dividend Equivalents to

Shareholders ($0.96 per share)............cccccceeeeene. _ _ _ (49.7) _ (49.7)
Repurchases of Common Stock .........cccccceeeinncnnne (1.2) 0.1) (15.5) (27.9) — (43.5)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 10).............. — — 6.5 — 6.5
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOtE 10)....cuiiiiiiiiiiiiecccceccecee 0.1 — 2.9 (1.8) — 1.1
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2015 513§ 51§ 6540 $ 1,209.0 $ 1243 $ 1,992.4
Net InCome ......oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie — — — 16.8 — 16.8
Other Comprehensive Income (Note 12) ................... — — — — 12.7 12.7
Cash Dividends and Dividend Equivalents to

Shareholders ($0.96 per share)............cccccceeeeee. — — — 49.2) — (49.2)
Repurchases of Common Stock .........ccceveverieiennene. 0.1) — (1.8) (2.0 — 3.8
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 10).............. — — 4.7 — — 4.7
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOEE 10)..eemiiiiciiiiiiccceee e 0.1 — 34 (1.8) — 1.6
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2016 ........................ 513§ 51 $§ 6603 $ 1,1728 § 1370 $ 1,975.2

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statements included herein have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries
(individually and collectively referred to herein as the “Company’’). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ materially from
those estimates and assumptions.

The fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities, Investments in Equity Securities, Fair Value Option
Investments, Short-term Investments, Trading Securities, derivative instrument included in Other Assets and Debt are estimated
using a hierarchical framework which prioritizes and ranks market price observability. The carrying amounts reported in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value for Cash, Short-term Investments and certain other assets and other
liabilities because of their short-term nature. The actual value at which financial instruments could be sold or settled with a
willing buyer or seller may differ from estimated fair values depending on a number of factors, including, but not limited to,
current and future economic conditions, the quantity sold or settled, the presence of an active market and the availability of a
willing buyer or seller.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses ("LAE") for property and casualty
insurance is inherently uncertain, and the actual ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the
estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly imprecise for claims involving long-tailed exposures, which
may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Management considers a variety of
factors, including, but not limited to, past claims experience, current claim trends and relevant legal, economic and social
conditions, in estimating reserves. A change in any one or more factors is likely to result in the ultimate net claim costs to differ
from the estimated reserve. Changes in such estimates may be material and would be recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when such estimates change.

The process of determining whether an asset is impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows, operating
results and market conditions. Projections are inherently uncertain, and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ
materially from projected cash flows. As a result, the Company’s assessment of the impairment of long-lived assets is
susceptible to the risk inherent in making such projections.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Investments

Investments in Fixed Maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks. Investments in Fixed Maturities are
classified as available for sale and reported at fair value. Net Investment Income, including amortization of purchased
premiums and accretion of market discounts, on Investments in Fixed Maturities is recognized as interest over the period that it
is earned using the effective yield method.

Investments in Equity Securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and other equity interests and are
reported at fair value. Investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks with readily determinable fair values are
classified as available for sale. Dividend income on investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks is recognized
on the ex-dividend date. Other equity interests primarily consist of exchange traded funds and interests in limited liability
companies and limited partnerships in which the Company’s interests are deemed minor. The Company’s share of distributed
earnings from other equity interests is recognized as dividend income when received.

Unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of applicable deferred income taxes, on fixed maturities and equity securities
classified as available for sale is reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”) included in Shareholders’
Equity.

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

Fair Value Option Investments include investments in certain hedge funds, which the Company has elected the fair value option
(“FVO”) to account for such investments. Under the FVO method of accounting, the Company reports changes in the fair value
of such investments in Net Investment Income in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The hedge funds are designed to
preserve liquidity, while providing higher returns than Kemper would otherwise expect to earn had it invested in other short-
term investments.

Short-term Investments include certificates of deposits and other fixed maturities that mature within one year from the date of
purchase, U.S. Treasury bills, money market mutual funds, overnight interest bearing accounts, and repurchase agreements.
Short-term Investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.

Other Investments primarily include loans to policyholders and real estate. Loans to policyholders are carried at unpaid
principal balance. Real estate is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Real estate is depreciated over the estimated
useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of depreciation. Real estate is evaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss on real estate is recognized when the
carrying value exceeds the sum of undiscounted projected future cash flows as well as the fair value, or, in the case of a
property classified as held for sale, when the carrying value exceeds the fair value, net of costs to sell.

Gains and losses on sales of investments are computed on the specific identification method and are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the sales occur. The Company regularly reviews its investment
portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than temporary. Losses are computed
on the specific identification method and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the decline is
determined to be other than temporary. The portion of an impairment of an investment in a fixed maturity attributed to a credit
loss is reported in Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Income, with the portion
of the impairment that is not attributed to a credit loss reported in AOCI.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a hierarchical framework which prioritizes and ranks the market observability of inputs used in fair value
measurements. Market price observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability and the
characteristics specific to the asset or liability being measured. Assets and liabilities with readily available, active, quoted
market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree
of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. The Company classifies the inputs
used to measure fair value into one of three levels as follows:

* Level 1 — Quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-derived prices whose
inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable; and

*  Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability being measured.

Observable inputs are based on market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the
Company’s market assumptions. Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases,
the inputs used to measure an asset or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Such determination requires significant management judgment. However, in accordance
with GAAP, the Company is not permitted to use management judgment to adjust quoted market prices in an active market.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs directly associated with the successful acquisition of business, principally commissions and certain premium taxes and
policy issuance costs, are deferred. Costs deferred on property and casualty insurance contracts and short duration health
insurance contracts are amortized over the period in which premiums are earned. Costs deferred on traditional life insurance
products and other long-duration insurance contracts are primarily amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the
related policies in proportion to the ratio of the annual premiums to the total premiums anticipated, which is estimated using the
same assumptions used in calculating policy reserves.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)
Goodwill

The cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of net assets acquired is reported as Goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
rather is tested for recoverability annually or when certain triggering events require testing.

Insurance Reserves

Reserves for losses and LAE on property and casualty insurance coverage and health insurance coverage represent the
estimated claim cost and loss adjustment expense necessary to cover the ultimate net cost of investigating and settling all losses
incurred and unpaid at the end of any given accounting period. Such estimates are based on individual case estimates for
reported claims and estimates for incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) losses, including expected development on reported
claims. These estimates are adjusted in the aggregate for ultimate loss expectations based on historical experience patterns and
current economic trends, with any change in the estimated ultimate liabilities being reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Income in the period of change. Changes in such estimates may be material.

For traditional life insurance products, the reserves for future policy benefits are estimated on the net level premium method
using assumptions as of the issue date for mortality, interest, policy lapses and expenses, including provisions for adverse
mortality. These assumptions vary by such characteristics as plan, age at issue and policy duration. Mortality assumptions are
based on the Company’s historical experience and industry standards. Interest rate assumptions principally range from 3% to
7%. Lapse rate assumptions are based on actual and industry experience. Insurance Reserves for life insurance products are
comprised of reserves for future policy benefits plus an estimate of the Company’s liability for unpaid life insurance claims and
claims adjustment expenses, which includes an estimate for IBNR life insurance claims. Prior to the third quarter of 2016,
except when required by applicable law, the Company did not utilize the database of reported deaths maintained by the Social
Security Administration or any other comparable database (a “Death Master File” or “DMF”) in its operations, including to
determine its IBNR liability for life insurance products. Instead of using such a database, the Company calculated its IBNR
liability for life insurance products using Company-specific historical information, which included analyzing average paid
claims and the average lag between date of death and the date reported to the Company for claims for which proof of death had
been provided. In the third quarter of 2016, the Company initiated a voluntary enhancement of its claims handling procedures
for its life insurance policies. The Company is now utilizing a DMF to identify potential situations where the Company has yet
to be notified of an insured’s death and, as appropriate, initiating an outreach process to identify and contact beneficiaries and
settle claims. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses for the year ended December 31,
2016 include a charge of $77.8 million to recognize the initial impact of using a DMF in the Company’s operations, including
to determine its IBNR liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses for life insurance products.

Other Receivables

Other Receivables primarily include reinsurance recoverables and accrued investment income. Reinsurance Recoverables were
$106.4 million and $108.3 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Accrued Investment Income was $70.8 million
and $68.5 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Other Assets

Other Assets primarily include property and equipment, internal use software, insurance licenses acquired in business
combinations, the value of other intangible assets acquired, corporate-owned life insurance and prepaid expenses.

Property and equipment is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets, generally using the straight-line or double declining
balance methods of depreciation depending on the asset involved.

Internal use software is amortized over the useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of amortization. Write-offs of
Long-lived Assets for the year ended December 31, 2015 was a charge of $11.1 million to write off the costs of a computer
software development project that was abandoned by the Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Write-offs of
Long-lived Assets for the year ended December 31, 2014 was a charge of $54.6 million to write off certain software for the
Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment after the Company determined that it was no longer probable that the
software would be fully implemented.

Insurance licenses acquired in business combinations and other indefinite life intangibles are not amortized, but rather tested
periodically for recoverability.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

Corporate-owned life insurance is reported at cash surrender value with changes due to cost of insurance and investment
experience reported in Other Income in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in life insurance in force acquired (“Life VIF”)
based on actuarial estimates of the present value of estimated net cash flows. Life VIF was $28.9 million and $32.5 million at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Life VIF is amortized using the effective interest method using interest rates
consistent with the rates in the underlying insurance contracts. The Company estimates that it will record Life VIF amortization,
net of interest, of $3.1 million in 2017, $2.8 million in 2018, $2.4 million in 2019, $2.0 million in 2020 and $1.8 million in
2021. The Company evaluates the Life VIF for recoverability annually.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance Customer
Relationships Acquired (“P&C Customer Relationships™) based on the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
customer relationships acquired. P&C Customer Relationships was $9.0 million and $11.2 million at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. P&C Customer Relationships is amortized using the effective interest method. P&C Customer Relationships
is tested for recoverability using undiscounted projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated fair value if the
carrying value exceeds the sum of such projections of undiscounted cash flows.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance Broker
Relationships Acquired (“P&C Broker Relationships™) based on the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
broker relationships acquired. P&C Broker Relationships was $16.8 million and $18.1 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. P&C Broker Relationships is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. P&C Broker Relationships is tested
for recoverability using undiscounted projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated fair value if the carrying
value exceeds the sum of such projections of undiscounted cash flows.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities primarily include accrued salaries and commissions, pension benefits, postretirement
medical benefits and accrued taxes, licenses and fees.

Recognition of Earned Premiums and Related Expenses

Property and casualty insurance and short duration health insurance premiums are deferred when written and recognized and
earned ratably over the periods to which the premiums relate. Unearned Premiums represent the portion of the premiums
written related to the unexpired portion of policies in force which has been deferred and is reported as a liability. The Company
performs a premium deficiency analysis typically at a product line level, namely automobile insurance, homeowners insurance
and other insurance, which is consistent with the manner in which the Company acquires and services policies and measures
profitability. Anticipated investment income is excluded from such analysis. A premium deficiency is recognized when the sum
of expected claim costs, claim adjustment expenses, unamortized deferred policy acquisition costs and maintenance costs
exceeds the related unearned premiums by first reducing related deferred policy acquisition costs to an amount, but not below
zero, at which the premium deficiency would not exist. If a premium deficiency remains after first reducing deferred policy
acquisition costs, a premium deficiency reserve is established and reported as a liability in the Company’s financial statements.
The Company’s deferred policy acquisition costs in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 include
reductions of $9.7 million and $9.0 million, respectively, due to premium deficiencies with respect to Alliance United’s
personal automobile book of business.

Traditional life insurance premiums are recognized as revenue when due. Policyholders’ benefits are associated with related
premiums to result in recognition of profits over the periods for which the benefits are provided using the net level premium
method.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses include provisions for future policy benefits under
life and certain accident and health insurance contracts and provisions for reported claims, estimates for IBNR claims and loss
adjustment expenses. Benefit payments in excess of policy account balances are expensed.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries reinsure certain risks above certain retention levels with
other insurance enterprises. These reinsurance agreements do not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their legal
obligations to the policyholder. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are included in Other Receivables.
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Gains related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the life of the underlying reinsured
policies. Losses related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are recognized immediately. Any gain or loss associated with
reinsurance agreements for which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have been legally relieved of their obligations to the
policyholder is recognized in the period of relief.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance, if any, is maintained for the portion of deferred income tax
assets that the Company does not expect to recover. Increases, if any, in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets
are recognized as income tax expense. Decreases, if any, in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are
recognized as income tax benefit. The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized
in income in the period in which the change is enacted.

The Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken, or expected to be
taken, in an income tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense.

Change in Accounting and Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2016, the Company changed its method for estimating the interest and service cost components of expense
recognized for its pension and other postretirement employee benefit plans. As a result, the Company elected to use a full yield
curve approach to estimate these components of benefit cost by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the
determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. Prior to 2016, the interest and service cost
components were estimated using a single weighted-average discount rate derived from the yield curve used to measure the
projected benefit obligation or accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, as relevant, at the beginning of the period. The
change provides a more precise measurement of interest and service costs by improving the correlation between projected
benefit cash flows to the corresponding spot yield curve rates. The Company has accounted for this change as a change in
accounting estimate that is inseparable from a change in accounting principle and, accordingly, recognized the effect
prospectively in 2016. The change in method for estimating the interest and service cost components decreased pension expense
for the year ended December 31, 2016 by approximately $2.7 million, but had no impact on the measurement of benefit
obligations.

In February 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standard Update (“ASU”) 2015-02,
Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis. The amendments in ASU 2015-02 affect reporting
entities that are required to evaluate whether they should consolidate certain legal entities. All legal entities are subject to
reevaluation under the revised consolidation model. Specifically, the amendments modify the evaluation of whether limited
partnerships and similar legal entities are variable interest entities (“VIEs”) or voting interest entities while also eliminating the
presumption that a general partner should consolidate a limited partnership. ASU 2015-02 may also affect the consolidation
analysis of reporting entities that are involved with VIEs, particularly those that have fee arrangements and related party
relationships. The Company's adoption and initial application as of January 1, 2016 resulted in no changes to the legal entities
that the Company consolidates.

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-07 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820), Disclosures for Investments in Certain
Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent). ASU 2015-07 removes the requirement to categorize
within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value per share practical
expedient. The amendments also remove the requirement to make certain disclosures for all investments that are eligible to be
measured at fair value using the net asset value per share practical expedient. Rather, those disclosures are limited to
investments for which the entity has elected to measure the fair value using that practical expedient. The Company adopted
ASU 2015-07 in the first quarter of 2016 and applied its provisions on a retrospective basis. Except for the change in disclosure
requirements, adoption of ASU 2015-07 did not impact the Company’s financial statements. The presentation of certain prior
year amounts and disclosures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation for the current year.

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-09, Financial Services—Insurance (Topic 944): Disclosures about Short-Duration
Contracts. ASU 2015-09 requires insurers to provide additional disclosures about short-duration insurance contracts, focusing

74



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

particularly on the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses. Insurers are required to disclose tables showing
incurred and paid claims development information by accident year for the number of years that claims typically remain
outstanding, although not to exceed ten years, as well as a reconciliation of this information to the balance sheet. Additional
disclosures are also required on the total of IBNR liabilities, including expected development on reported claims, reserving
methodologies, quantitative information about claim frequency, qualitative description of the methodologies used for
determining claim frequency and average annual percentage payout of incurred claims by age. ASU 2015-09 is effective for
annual periods beginning after December 31, 2015 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15,
2016. Except for the additional disclosure requirements, adoption of ASU 2015-09 did not impact the Company’s financial
statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments—QOverall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. ASU 2016-01 addresses certain aspects of recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. Most significantly, ASU 2016-01 requires companies to
measure equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in
consolidation of the investee) at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. However, an entity may choose
to measure equity investments that do not have readily-determinable fair values at cost minus impairment, if any, plus or minus
changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a similar investment of the same
issuer. ASU 2016-01 also simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily-determinable fair values
by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment. When a qualitative assessment indicates that impairment exists, an
entity is required to measure the investment at fair value.

ASU 2016-01 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal
years. The Company currently records its Investments in Equity Securities at fair value with net unrealized appreciation or
depreciation reported in AOCI in Shareholders’ Equity. The Company’s Investments in Equity Securities include securities with
readily-determinable fair values and securities without readily-determinable fair values. Until the Company adopts ASU
2016-01 and makes its elections for Investments in Equity Securities that do not have readily-determinable fair values, it cannot
determine the impact of the adoption on its consolidated balance sheet. Subsequent to adoption, ASU 2016-01 is expected to
cause increased volatility in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), by amending the Accounting Standards

Codification (“ASC”) and creating a new topic on accounting for leases. ASU 2016-02 introduces a lessee model that requires
most leases to be reported on the balance sheet of a lessee. ASU 2016-02 also aligns many of the underlying principles of the
new lessor model with those in ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the FASB’s new revenue recognition
standard (e.g., those related to evaluating when profit can be recognized). Furthermore, ASU 2016-02 addresses other concerns
related to the current leases model. For example, ASU 2016-02 eliminates the requirement in current GAAP for an entity to use
bright-line tests in determining lease classification. ASU 2016-02 also requires lessors to increase the transparency of their
exposure to changes in value of their residual assets and how they manage that exposure. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods within those years with early adoption permitted. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on its financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718), which simplifies several
aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the accounting for income taxes, forfeitures and
statutory tax withholding requirements, as well as classification in the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 is effective for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods with early adoption
permitted. The Company does not anticipate adoption to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016-13 replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a
methodology that utilizes expected credit losses to provide for an allowance for credit losses for financial instruments and
requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. The
amendments in this ASU require a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) measured at amortized cost basis to be
presented at the net amount expected to be collected. The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is deducted
from the amortized cost basis of the financial asset(s) to present the net carrying value at the amount expected to be collected on
the financial asset. The income statement includes the measurement of credit losses for newly recognized financial assets, as
well as the expected increases or decreases of expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. Credit losses on
available-for-sale debt securities are measured in a manner similar to current GAAP, although the ASU requires that they be
presented as an allowance rather than as a write-down. In situations where the estimate of credit loss on an available-for-sale
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debt security declines, entities will be able to record the reversal to income in the current period, which GAAP currently
prohibits. ASU 2016-13 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and interim periods within those
annual periods with early adoption permitted for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2018 and interim periods within
such year. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on its financial statements.

The Company has adopted all recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates prior to January 1, 2017. There
were no adoptions of such accounting pronouncements in 2016 that had a material impact on the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements. With the possible exceptions of ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments—Overall (Subtopic 825-10):
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) and ASU
2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, the
Company does not expect the adoption of all other recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates after
December 31, 2016 to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

NOTE 3. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On April 30, 2015, Kemper acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Alliance United Group and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Alliance United Insurance Company and Alliance United Insurance Services, (individually and collectively
referred to herein as “Alliance United”) in a cash transaction for a total purchase price of $71.0 million, of which $17.5 million
was placed in escrow to secure the sellers’ potential indemnification obligations under the purchase agreement. After
completing the transaction, Kemper contributed $75.0 million to support the book of business acquired and commuted a quota
share reinsurance agreement whereby Alliance United ceded a portion of its business to an unaffiliated reinsurer. The results of
Alliance United are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date of acquisition and are reported in the
Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Alliance United is a provider of nonstandard personal automobile
insurance in California. As a result of the acquisition, the Company increased its presence in the California nonstandard
automobile insurance market by gaining access to additional brokers and gained expertise in serving the Hispanic market.

The Company has completed the allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The final
allocation of the purchase price to the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

IIIVESTIMEIILS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e st e e taeete e e et e esbeesbeeabeesbe e beeseesseesssaesseesseeaseesbeesseesseenbeenbeeaeeseesssesssenaseasaaan $ 187.0
AN .ttt ettt et e et e e be e beebeeabe e beeheeate e bt e ateeatteetteeabeeabeenbeenbeebe e beeaeebeesteeeraenaaeaanaas 134
Receivables from POIICYNOIACTS ..........oouiiiiiiiiiciieee ettt ettt e s taeeteeeabeesbeenseenseeanas 44.4
OtheT RECEIVADIES. ... .ccuiiiiiiiiieieeie ettt b e et e et e et e e be e bt esaeesaeeesseesseesseesbeesseesseesbeesseesseseesssesssesssensnean 52.8
Value of Intangible Assets Acquired (Reported in Other ASSES)......c.ccvviviiiiiieiiieiiereesie ettt ere e 32.6
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt et et et eeae et et e et e e st et e et e eteess et e eaeeseesseteeseesseseeseeteenseseereenean 11.2
CUITENT INCOME TAXES......uviiiieiieiieitiecteeetteetee st e et e eiteeteebeebeesseesbeesseeseesseesssaesseessessseesseesseesseesseessaesseseesssesssesssesssens 14
ONET ASSEES...cuuiitiietieetie ettt et et et e e steeeteesteesteeetseesaeeeseesbeesseesseesbeesssessaesseessseesseesseesseesbeenseesseenbeesbeeseeseesssessaeeanennnaan 5.9
Property and Casualty INSUIanCe RESEIVES. .........iccuiiiiiiiieiiciieiiectieeeeett ettt et steeste e ste e steesaaesseesaseesbeenseenseennas (155.8)
UNEArNE PIEIMIUIMS ......cuoiiiiiiiiie ettt et et e e e ettt e e et e e e eaeeeeaeeeeaeeeeseeeeaeeeenteeeeneeeenneeeeseeeenns (85.6)
Liabilities fOr INCOME TaAXES........eeeiiiieeeiee ettt et e e et e ettt e e et e e e e e eaeeeeaeeeeaeeeeaeeeenseeeeneeeenneeeeneeeenns (1.5)
Accrued Expenses and Other LIiabilities ..........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieciiecie ettt ettt s tae st esebeesbeenaeenseennas (34.8)

TOtAl PUICHASE PIICE .....evviiiiieeeiee ettt e e ettt e ettt e e e e aaa e e e s eaa e e e e semsaeeeeeasaeeseesaaseessasaseeeesnees $ 71.0

Under the purchase agreement, the Company is indemnified up to $12.5 million on an after-tax basis for, among other things,
breaches of customary representations and warranties, loss and LAE reserve development and pre-closing income taxes. In
addition, the Company is indemnified up to $5.0 million on an after-tax basis, for certain employment related matters. Other
Receivables in the preceding table include an indemnification receivable of $5.4 million. Other Receivables in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 include an indemnification receivable of $16.0 million and $15.9 million,
respectively.
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The carrying amount, net of accumulated amortization, of the intangible assets acquired by class at December 31, 2016,
December 31, 2015 and the acquisition date are presented below.

Dec 31, Dec 31, Acqlﬁ:ition
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 Date
P&C Broker RelationShips............ovoiiviuiiiieiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 16.8 $ 18.1 § 18.9
Value of In FOIce POLICIES........cciiiiiiiiiciiicie ettt — 0.2 9.2
OBNET ittt ettt e e b e e ab e e b e eabeebeesbe e be e be e teeeteestaeerbeeaaeenreens 2.5 3.7 4.5
Value of Intangible ASSets ACQUITEd.........c.oceiiieiiiuieieiiee ettt $ 193 § 220 $ 32.6

P&C Broker Relationships are being amortized over 15 years on a straight-line basis. Value of In Force Policies (“P&C VIF”)
was amortized pro ratably as premiums were earned over the remaining terms of the underlying policies. Other intangible assets
acquired are generally being amortized on a straight-line basis over 2 years to 5 years.

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2016 were:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities............cccccvee. $ 3212 § 223 § (7.2) $ 3363
States and Political SUbAiVISIONS ........cc.ccovuiiiiiiiiiiiccieccee e 1,640.6 88.4 (14.1) 1,7149
FOreign GOVEIMIMENLS. .......eoviivieiieieetieeieiesieeieeetestessesreesaessesseessessessesseeseensensessens 3.5 — 0.1) 3.4
Corporate Securities:

Bonds and NOTES ........oooovieioeiieeeee e 2,758.9 209.9 (24.0) 2,944.8

Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .....c.oovvvieiieiiiiieieeeceeeeeeee e 0.5 0.1 — 0.6

Collateralized Loan Obligations .........ccceeeeieriererieieieee e 121.2 2.7 (1.1) 122.8

Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed...........ooceveniiiiiiiiiniiiiiceece 0.9 1.2 — 2.1
Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s...........ooueevvievireereeireeeieeeieeereeeveeeeee et $4846.8 $ 324.6 $ (46.5) $5,124.9

Included in the fair value of Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2016 are $0.9 million of
collateralized debt obligations and $1.2 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2015 were:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.................co....... $§ 2980 $ 262 $§ (3.6) $ 3206
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS .......ccouviiiiiiiiieeieieeeeeeeee e 1,513.7 111.6 2.7 1,622.6
Corporate Securities:
BoONdS and NOLES ....cooiueiiieieeeiiee et e e e e e s s eeaaeesesnaes 2,651.5 202.0 (40.7) 2,812.8
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ........ccooeviviieierieniiieieeec e 3.7 0.1 — 3.8
Collateralized Loan Obligations ...........cecveeeviererieiienieeiieeeeesie e eeeee e 90.0 0.3 (3.0) 87.3
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed..........coccoeveviiieieninieieeeeeeee e 3.8 1.4 — 5.2
Investments in FIXed Maturiti€S. ........uvviiiiuieieiiieieeeeeeeeee e eeeeeee e e $4,560.7 $ 3416 $ (50.0) $4,852.3

Included in the fair value of Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2015 are $3.8 million of
collateralized debt obligations, $1.3 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities and $0.1 million of
other asset-backed securities.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities included unsettled purchases of Investments in Fixed Maturities of $0.1 million and
$5.6 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Other Receivables included unsettled sales of Investments in Fixed
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Maturities of $2.7 million at December 31, 2016. There were no unsettled sales of Investments in Fixed Maturities at
December 31, 2015.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2016 by
contractual maturity were:

Amortized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Fair Value
DUE 1N ONE Y EAT OF LLESS....eeeeiieiieeeee ettt ettt e e e e e et e e e e e eeaeeeeaeeeeaeeeas $ 1016 $ 1028
Due after One Year t0 FIVE Y EaIS.......ooouiiiiiii oottt e e et e e e e eas 836.7 867.0
Due after FIve YEars 10 TN Y AIS........coouuiiiiiiiiieeeeieeee ettt e et e et e et eeeetae e e e eeaaaeeseeaaeeeseetaneeeenees 1,608.6 1,652.4
DUC AFEET TN Y RIS .. .iiiiiiieeiie ettt et ettt e et e et e e et e e eabeeeateeeeaseseasaeeaasaeenseeeeaseesnreeaas 2,038.2 2,233.0
Mortgage- and Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date...........ccocveveeveenenieienieenenenn 261.7 269.7
Investments i FIXe€d MAtUITHIES .........oooveiieieeeieeeeeeee ettt e eae e e e e eaae e eneeeeaeeeeneeeenneeereeens $ 4846.8 $ 5,124.9

The expected maturities of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investments in Mortgage-
and Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date at December 31, 2016 consisted of securities issued by the
Government National Mortgage Association with a fair value of $126.2 million, securities issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association with a fair value of $13.9 million, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
with a fair value of $4.8 million and securities of other non-governmental issuers with a fair value of $124.8 million.

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2016
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate..........c..cccoooviiviiiiiiiiiiieeiceic e $ 581 $ 23 $ 08) $ 596
Other INAUSIIIES ....vecvvieevierieeieeeeeete ettt ettt ettt et eae e 18.5 4.9 0.5) 22.9
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate...............cccoooviiiiiiiioieieeecce e, 31.2 23 — 33.5
Other INAUSTIIES ..o 7.2 4.6 (0.1) 11.7
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded FUnds.........ccccooviiiieiieiiieiieecceceeetee e 136.1 9.6 1.3) 144.4
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships............ccccceevvennennne. 183.3 29.2 2.9 209.6
Investments in EQUItY SECUIILIES........cvieierieriiriieieieee ettt $ 4344 $§ 529 § (5.6) $ 481.7
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Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2015
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real BState..............cccooveveiiveuieieeieeeeceeeceeeeeeeeena $ 808 3 49 § (08) $ 849
Other INAUSIIIES ....veevvieiiieieerieeieeriee ettt eenaeenaeennes 17.1 2.7 (0.8) 19.0
Common Stocks:
MANUFACTUTINE ...ttt ettt e e b e eseeseenseeseeneas 0.7 1.0 — 1.7
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate..........c.cccccovieviieviiciieiieciecicceeeee. 18.9 5.3 (1.0) 23.2
Other INAUSIIIES .....eeveeeeeie et 8.7 33 0.2) 11.8
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccoooooieiiiiiiieee e 179.7 1.1 (3.7 177.1
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships...........ccccccoevveeneenne. 181.0 25.0 (0.5) 205.5
Investments in EQUItY SECUIILIES........cvieievieriiirieieiecie et $§ 4869 § 433 § (7.0) $ 5232

Other Receivables included unsettled sales of Investments in Equity Securities of $0.2 million at December 31, 2016. There
were no unsettled sales of Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2015. There were no unsettled purchases of
Investments in Equity Securities at either December 31, 2016 or December 31, 2015.

An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2016 is
presented below.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULhOTIHES ..o $ 117.7 $ (7.2) $ 1.1 $ — §$ 1188 $ (7.2)
States and Political Subdivisions..............cc........... 432.7 (14.1) 0.3 — 433.0 (14.1)
Foreign Governments............cccocceeeeereiesveeneenneenne. 2.1 (0.1) — — 2.1 (0.1)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes ..........ccceevvevieriienieiieeieeeene. 663.3 (16.6) 107.3 (7.4) 770.6 (24.0)
Collateralized Loan Obligations ....................... 19.9 0.7) 214 0.4) 41.3 1.1
Total Fixed Maturities...........cocvevveeviereenieiieeieenneenne. 1,235.7 (38.7) 130.1 (7.8) 1,365.8 (46.5)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 15.6 (0.5) 7.3 (0.3) 22.9 (0.8)
Other IndusStries...........oooveeeieeeieceeeeeeeeeeeen, 5.3 0.5) — — 5.3 (0.5)
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 2.8 — — — 2.8 —
Other Industries...........cooveeeieeeiiceceeeeeeeeen, 0.6 (0.1) 0.5 — 1.1 (0.1)
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds..........ccccocvevvievennenne. — — 18.6 (1.3) 18.6 (1.3)
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.........cccoevevveeieciereneeieieeee e 13.9 0.7) 33.8 2.2) 47.7 2.9)
Total Equity SECUrities........ccvevierierreeieieiesieeieieeeee 38.2 (1.8) 60.2 3.8) 98.4 (5.6)
TOtAl..ceieieeeee e $1,2739 § (40.5) $ 1903 $ (11.6) $ 14642 $ (52.1)
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The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment
is other than temporary. The portions of the declines in the fair values of investments that are determined to be other than temporary
are reported as losses in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the periods when such determinations are made.

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company has determined to be temporary at December 31, 2016, were $46.5
million, of which $7.8 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were unrealized losses of $0.1 million at December 31, 2016 related to securities for which the Company has recognized
credit losses in earnings in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months.” There were no unrealized losses at
December 31, 2016 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in the preceding table
under the heading “12 Months or Longer.” Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $33.8 million and below-
investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $12.7 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed
maturities at December 31, 2016. For below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the
unrealized loss amount, on average, was approximately 5% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31,
2016, the Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company
would be required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the
Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2016 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of
the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would
not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in
the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the
evaluation date.

For equity securities, the Company considers various factors when determining whether a decline in the fair value is other than
temporary, including, but not limited to:

» The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

* The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

* The volatility of the investment;

e Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

* Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  Market liquidity;

» Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

* The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

With respect to Investments in Equity Securities, the Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in
preferred and common stocks at December 31, 2016 were temporary based on various factors, including the relative short
length and magnitude of the losses and overall market volatility. The Company’s investments in other equity interests include
investments in limited liability companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest in mezzanine debt, distressed debt, and
secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company believes that some of its investments in the
limited liability companies and limited partnerships exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company
also considers when evaluating these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors in the preceding
paragraph, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities
presented in the preceding table were temporary at December 31, 2016.
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NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2015 is
presented below.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTIEICS ... $§ 566 $ (16) % 241 § (200 $ 807 $§ (3.6
States and Political Subdivisions...............c.ccoeun.... 131.0 (2.6) 0.9 0.1) 131.9 2.7
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes..........cccovvvieieieiiieieieieeeins 783.8 (26.0) 133.6 (14.7) 917.4 (40.7)
Redeemable Preferred Stocks..........ccccvevvevennenns — — — — — —
Collateralized Loan Obligations........................ 57.4 2.9) 0.8 0.1) 58.2 3.0)
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed................... — — 0.3 — 0.3 —
Total Fixed Maturities..........ccocevveveeeevieneeeeiereenee 1,028.8 (33.1) 159.7 (16.9)  1,188.5 (50.0)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 2.7 — 12.3 (0.8) 15.0 (0.8)
Other IndUStHIES .....ocveeeeeiiiieicieiececeeee e 7.3 (0.8) — — 7.3 (0.8)
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 16.3 (1.0) — — 16.3 (1.0)
Other IndUStries ......ceeveiieiieiieieiceeceeeereee 2.8 (0.2) — — 2.8 (0.2)
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds ..........cccccvevieiiinnnnnnns 135.2 3.7 — — 135.2 3.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......cccceeeeeviecieeiecie e, 2.7 0.5) — — 2.7 0.5)
Total Equity Securities...........cocuevrerereeeeirieieieeeene 167.0 (6.2) 12.3 (0.8) 179.3 (7.0)
TOtal e $1,1958 § (393) § 1720 § (17.7) $1,367.8 § (57.0)

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company determined to be temporary at December 31, 2015, were $50.0
million, of which $16.9 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were unrealized losses of $0.2 million at December 31, 2015 related to securities for which the Company has recognized
credit losses in earnings in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months.” There were no unrealized losses at
December 31, 2015 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in the preceding table
under the heading “12 Months or Longer.” Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $33.5 million and below-
investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $16.5 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed
maturities at December 31, 2015. For below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the
unrealized loss amount, on average, was less than 8% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2015, the
Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be
required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the
Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2015 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of
the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would
not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in
the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the
evaluation date.

With respect to Investments in Equity Securities, the Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments at
December 31, 2015 were temporary based on various factors, including the relative short length and magnitude of the losses
and overall market volatility, as well as, the debt-like characteristics of investments in certain other equity interests.
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The following table sets forth the pre-tax amount of Other Than Temporary Impairments (“OTTI”) credit losses, recognized in
Retained Earnings for Investments in Fixed Maturities held by the Company as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, for
which a portion of the OTTI loss related to factors other than credit has been recognized in AOCI, and the corresponding
changes in such amounts.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Cumulative Balance of Pre-tax Credit Losses Recognized in Retained Earnings at

Be@inNNing Of YEaL........cuiiviieeeeeceeeeeee ettt eaeenes $ 51 $ 53§ 9.9
Pre-tax Credit Losses on Fixed Maturities without Pre-tax Credit Losses Included in

Cumulative Balance at Beginning of Year..........ccoccvevievierierieieieneceeieeee e 2.7 0.2 24
Additional Pre-tax Credit Losses on Fixed Maturities with Pre-tax Credit Losses Included

in Cumulative Balance at Beginning of Year............cccccevvivvieieiiiiiieicieee e — — 0.6

Reductions for Change in Impairment Status:

From Status of Credit Loss to Status of Intent-to-sell or Required-to-sell........................ (6.3) (0.4) 2.4)
Reductions for Investments Sold DUring Year...........ccoccveveviiiiieeieiiniiieieieieere e 0.1) — (5.2)

Balance at ENA OF Y AL .....oouveeee ettt ettt et $ 14 § 51§ 53

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments are generally of a passive nature in
that the Company does not take an active role in the management of the investment entity. In 2016 and 2015, aggregate
investment income (losses) from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments exceeded 10% of the Company’s pretax
consolidated net income. Accordingly, the Company is disclosing aggregated summarized financial data for its Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments. Such aggregated summarized financial data does not represent the Company’s proportionate
share of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investment assets or earnings. Aggregate total assets of the Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested totaled $2,618.1 million and $3,801.7 million as of

December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Aggregate total liabilities of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in
which the Company invested totaled $828.0 million and $879.1 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Aggregate net income of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested totaled $85.0
million, $159.6 million and $96.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The aggregate
summarized financial data is based on the most recent and sufficiently-timely financial information available to the Company as
of the respective reporting dates and periods. The Company’s maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2016 is limited to the
total carrying value of $175.9 million. In addition, the Company had outstanding commitments totaling approximately $76.3
million to fund Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at December 31, 2016.

The carrying values of the Company’s Other Investments at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015

Loans to Policyholders at Unpaid Principal...........cooiiieieiiiiiieieieeeeeeseeee e $ 2942 § 2884
Real Estate at Depreciated COSt.....uuiiiiiiiiieiieeieeie ettt ettt eie et eteesteestaeseaesseessaeesaeessessseenseeseeseenes 140.2 149.8
Trading Securities at Fair VAIUC.........ccoeiiiiiiiiieceeee ettt 5.3 4.7
L0 11 1 TS, OO OO OO SO SO TP PSSOURRRPI 0.2 0.3

TOTAL ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt ettt e eae et et et e et et eeteeaeeneans $ 4399 §$§ 4432
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NOTE 5. GOODWILL

Goodwill balances by business segment at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Property & Casualty INSUTANCE............ccveiiiiiiieieeieeie ettt ettt ete et estaeseaeeaaessaeesseesseesseesseesseesseenseenns $ 103.6 $ 103.6
Life & Health INSUTANCE ......ccveeiieiieiieeiieciie sttt ettt te et estaesaaesaaeesaeesbeesaeesseesseeseenseeseenns 219.4 219.4

TOTAL .ttt ettt et b e ettt ettt ettt sttt be e $ 323.0 $§ 323.0

The Company tests goodwill for recoverability on an annual basis at the beginning of the first quarter and, if circumstances or
events indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may have declined below its carrying value, such tests are performed at
intervening interim periods. The Company principally used projections of discounted future cash flows to estimate the fair
values of the reporting units tested. For each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the
reporting unit, and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was recoverable at the aforementioned dates tested.

NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES

The Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability
for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. Such
estimates are based on individual case estimates for reported claims and estimates for IBNR losses, including expected
development on reported claims.

The determination of individual case reserves differs by line of business. For preferred personal automobile insurance,
homeowners insurance and other personal insurance, case reserves are set by adjusters and are based on the adjusters’ estimates
of the amount for which the claims will ultimately be paid. For non-standard personal automobile insurance and commercial
automobile insurance, case reserves are set primarily using statistical reserves that are based on studies of historical average
paid amounts by state, coverage and product. However, when such reserves exceed certain thresholds they are set manually by
adjusters.

The Company’s actuaries generally estimate ultimate losses and LAE and, therefore, reserves at least quarterly for most product
lines and/or coverage levels using accident quarters spanning 10 or more years, depending on the size of the product line and/or
coverage level or emerging issues relating to them. The Company’s actuaries use a variety of generally accepted actuarial loss
reserving estimation methodologies to estimate the ultimate losses and LAE for the current accident quarter and re-estimate the
ultimate losses and LAE for previous accident quarters to determine if changes in the previous estimates of the ultimate losses
and LAE are indicated by the most recent data.

The key assumption in these estimation methodologies is that patterns observed in prior periods are indicative of how losses
and LAE are expected to develop in the future and that such historical data can be used to predict and estimate ultimate losses
and LAE. However, changes in the Company’s business processes, by their very nature, are likely to affect the development
patterns, which generally results in the historical development factors becoming less reliable over time in predicting how losses
and LAE will ultimately develop. The Company’s actuaries use professional judgment in determining how much weight to
place on the development patterns based on the older historical data and how much weight to place on the development patterns
based on more recent data. In some cases, the Company’s actuaries make adjustments to the loss reserving estimation
methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE.

The Company’s actuaries’ quarterly selections are summed by product and/or coverage levels to create the actuarial indication
of the ultimate losses and LAE. Paid amounts are then subtracted from the ultimates to compute the reserves for property and
casualty insurance losses and LAE. These results are reviewed by the Company’s corporate actuary and corporate management
who apply their collective judgment and determine the appropriate estimated level of reserves to record. Numerous factors are
considered in this determination process, including, but not limited to, the assessed reliability of key loss trends and
assumptions that may be significantly influencing the current actuarial indications, changes in claim handling practices or other
changes that affect the timing of payment or development patterns, changes in the mix of business, the maturity of the accident
year, pertinent trends observed over the recent past, the level of volatility within a particular line of business, the improvement
or deterioration of actuarial indications in the current period as compared to prior periods, and the amount of reserves related to
third party pools for which the Company does not have access to the underlying data and, accordingly, relies on calculations
provided by such pools.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES (Continued)

LAE are fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE over time, also referred to as
“development,” will occur and may be material.

The following tables contain information about incurred and paid claims development as of and for the year December 31,
2016, net of reinsurance and indemnification, as well as cumulative claim frequency and the total of IBNR liabilities, including
expected development on reported claims included within the net incurred losses and allocated LAE amounts. The tables are
grouped by major product line and, if relevant, coverage. The information about incurred and paid claims development for the
years ended December 31, 2012 through 2015 is presented as supplementary information and is unaudited.

Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance—Liability

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT CUMULATIVE INCURRED CLAIMS As of December 31, 2016
. Total of IBNR
Incurred Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance Liabilities Plus
For the Years Ended December 31, Expected Cumulative
Development Number of
2012 2013 2014 2015 on Reported Incurred
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016 Claims Claims
2012 $ 3050 $ 2909 § 2844 % 2822 $ 282.1 $ 0.8 56,772
2013 o 265.4 251.1 250.1 251.6 — 51,126
2014 e 202.1 198.3 200.2 0.9 39,865
20 LS e 168.3 171.8 6.3 32,484
2006 ettt ettt ettt e 162.1 26.9 30,278
TOTAL ..ttt ettt 1,067.8

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance
For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014 2015
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016

2012............ $ 117.8 $ 207.6 § 2455 % 2643 $ 272.9
2013 107.2 182.2 216.3 234.1
2014 e 85.8 143.3 168.8
20 ]S e 73.1 122.4
2006 e ettt ettt et b e ne 61.2
TOLALL .ttt ettt re et ene s 859.4

Outstanding Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves on Accident Years before
2012, Net of REINSUTANCE .....cvvivieceiiieiieiieciie ettt 10.9
Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves, Net of Reinsurance.............cccoccoeovvevveeennnn. $ 219.3
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Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT CUMULATIVE INCURRED CLAIMS As of December 31, 2016
Total of IBNR
Incurred Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance PRI
! For the Years Ended December 31, e Llalf:);ll;te}:tsel(;lus Cumulative
Development Number of
2012 2013 2014 2015 on Reported Incurred
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016 Claims Claims
2012.............. $ 1639 $ 1639 § 1641 $ 1642 $ 1643 $ 0.1 89,703
2013 e 139.7 138.5 138.5 138.4 0.1 78,779
2014 e 122.0 121.6 1214 0.1 67,205
2005 e et ereeereeeaaas 101.2 100.7 0.4) 53,419
2016 oo e e e 106.6 4.2) 49,267
TOUAL. .ttt ettt e et et e e e e naeenb e et e e beebeenrs 631.4

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance
For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014 2015
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016
2012.............. $ 160.5 $ 1644 § 1642 $ 1642 $ 164.3
2013 o 137.0 138.9 138.6 138.5
2014 e 121.0 121.8 121.5
2005 e ettt ere e raas 100.1 101.0
2006 oottt e et e et e et e ebeebaebeebeeataeeaaenaae e 105.2
TOUAL. .ttt ettt et e et tb e et e et e enb e et e ebeereenrs 630.5
Outstanding Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves on Accident Years before
2012, Net Of REINSUTANCE .........veeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeee e 0.1)

Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves, Net of Reinsurance.............cccoeocvevevveeeneens $ 0.8
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Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Liability"

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT CUMULATIVE INCURRED CLAIMS

As of December 31, 2016

Total of IBNR
Incurred Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification P
For the Years Ended December 31, Llaé);lll)te}:tseglus Cumulative
Development Number of
2012 2013 2014 2015 on Reported Incurred
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016 Claims Claims
2012 ... $ 2430 $ 2421 $ 2420 $ 2430 $ 2440 $ 0.2 63,019
2013 e 250.5 247.1 248.3 249.5 0.5 67,058
2014 e 255.0 262.9 267.1 5.4 76,846
205 e 379.4 379.8 10.4 91,832
20T6. e et e e et etaeeeareeeans 435.7 72.2 108,062
0] 7Y OO RRRRRRR PR 1,576.1

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification
For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014 2015
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016

2012.........e.. $ 112.8 § 202.6 $ 2289 % 2389 § 242.6
2013 e 117.8 208.2 233.8 244.2
2014 e 117.4 210.8 245.5
2015 e et 167.7 304.7
20L6 ittt ettt b e b e te b e teereeta et e eaeereesbebeeneenes 168.9
0] 7Y OO RROPRRRRRRPRRN 1,205.9

Outstanding Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves on Accident Years before
2012, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification ...........cccccoeovvvveeiieineeeeiennnenn. 1.5
Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification.... $ 371.7

! Table retrospectively includes Alliance United’s historical incurred and paid accident year claim information for all periods

presented.
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Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage'

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT CUMULATIVE INCURRED CLAIMS As of December 31, 2016
Total of IBNR
Incurred Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification PP
For the Years Ended December 31, Llal;);lll)t;:tseglus Cumulative
Development Number of
2012 2013 2014 2015 on Reported Incurred
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016 Claims Claims
2012............. $ 964 $ 98.1 $ 98.4 $ 983 § 98.2 § — 35,840
2013 o 100.1 100.3 100.0 99.8 0.1) 36,179
2014 .o 105.8 104.7 104.3 0.7) 38,042
20 LS e ettt 143.2 143.3 (1.6) 42,863
2006 ettt st ettt et b e bt et enbeenneennee e 177.9 4.0) 52,039
TOtAL .ttt r e b eneens 623.5

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification
For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014 2015
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016

2012............. $ 912 $ 983 % 982 % 982 $ 98.2
2013 e 93.4 100.2 99.9 99.7
2014t 97.1 105.9 105.1
2015 e ettt 130.0 143.8
2000ttt b et ettt e ereereesa et e eneeneensenteeneenes 167.4
TOtAL .ttt ettt et b et eneens 614.2

Outstanding Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves on Accident Years before
2012, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification ..............ccceeeveeiiiieeneeneenen. _
Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification.... $ 9.3

! Table retrospectively includes Alliance United’s historical incurred and paid accident year claim information for all periods

presented.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES (Continued)

Homeowners Insurance

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT CUMULATIVE INCURRED CLAIMS As of December 31, 2016
Total of IBNR
Incurred Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance P
For the Years Ended December 31, Lla];);lll)te}:tse]:llus Cumulative
Development Number of
2012 2013 2014 2015 on Reported Incurred
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016 Claims Claims
2012............ $ 2502 $ 2359 $ 231.0 $ 2275 $ 226.7 $ 0.1 27,833
2013 e 180.8 172.8 169.4 167.5 0.1) 21,976
2014 e 211.1 208.5 205.0 0.1) 22,432
2005 e 178.9 164.9 (1.8) 17,432
2076 ettt e e e ta e e e be e e aae e eraeeeareeaans 200.3 9.7 16,769
TOAL .ttt ettt et ve e as 964.4

Cumulative Paid Losses and Allocated LAE, Net of Reinsurance
For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2013 2014 2015
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2016
2012............. $ 1659 $ 216.0 $ 2223 % 2252 $ 225.8
2013 e 122.4 156.5 162.5 164.7
2004 et 149.2 194.4 200.1
2015 et 116.9 154.4
2016 oottt ettt b et ra e ae e taeta e eaeere e s e b e eneens 141.2
TOtAL ..ottt ettt et beereens 886.2
Outstanding Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves on Accident Years before
2012, Net Of REINSUTANCE ......cocvvvieeieieieeeeeeeee e et eeeree e eevaeeeeens 3.5
Loss and Allocated LAE Reserves, Net of Reinsurance................coccoeeeveeeneenns $ 81.7

The claim counts in the preceding tables are cumulative incurred claim counts as of December 31, 2016 and are equal to both
(1) reported claims minus claims closed without payment as well as (ii) open claims plus claims closed with payment. As such,
the difference between these claim counts and final claim counts once all claims have been identified and settled will tend to be
higher in recent accident years, particularly the most recent accident year, due to claims closed without payment. Certain
product lines, particularly the Company’s non-standard personal automobile insurance, tend to have a higher percentage of
claims closed without payment.

The Company's claims are counted at the feature level. As such, each claimant and each coverage is counted separately. For
example, if for one occurrence, the Company's policyholder is at fault for damage to his/her own vehicle, another party's
vehicle and three injured parties, there may be five features—three for bodily injury liability, one for property damage liability
and one for first-party collision coverage. There may also be another feature for first-party medical payments.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES (Continued)

The following table reconciles the net incurred and paid claims development tables presented above to the Company's liability
for Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2016.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification:
Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance—Liability ........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicceee e $ 2193
Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage...........ccccceeiiiiiieiiiiicieeeee e 0.8
Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Liability...........cccoeviiriiiiiiiiiieiieie et 371.7
Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage..............ccoecueeviieviieniieiieiiecieceeeee e 9.3
HOMEOWNETS INSUTAINCE ...ttt ettt et sttt ettt et e et et e st e eesseeseemeenseeseemeentenseeseeneenseaneeneeneenes 81.7
(013313 SRS 124.7

) 1 PRSP SRS 807.5

Reinsurance and Indemnification Recoverables on Unpaid Losses and Allocated LAE:

Preferred Personal Automobile InSurance—Liability..........cccociirieriiriiiieiieiiiieieieec e 28.3

Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage.............cccceviiieieriiniiieieieeeeeee e —

Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Liability ..........cccoociiirieiiiriiieieiecieeeee e 10.6

Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage.............cccccveierieriieierienieiieieeee e (0.6)

HOMEOWNETS INSUTAINCE ...ttt et sttt eh ettt ettt bt b et b eie e —

OTRCT ettt h bbbt btttk h e bt h ke b et h e bttt h bbbttt ebe e 8.7
TOLAL .ot h bbbttt b et bt bbbt bt ettt s bt bt h e bbbttt e st eae et 47.0
Insurance Lines other than Short-QUIAtION ............ooiiiiiiieec ettt enes —
UNAIIOCAEA LAE ... .ottt ettt ettt ekttt s et et e e st e bt st e e eae ettt et e st es e et et eneeneebenneneenea 76.9
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Gross of Reinsurance and Indemnification ............cccceceeeveneiicnenenne, $ 9314
The following is supplementary information about average historical claims duration as of December 31, 2016.

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Incurred Claims by Age, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification (Unaudited)

Years 1 2 3 4 5
Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance—Liability.........cccccvevvervenvennnene 41.5% 722% 858% 93.4%  96.7%
Preferred Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage.................... 98.9% 100.3% 100.1% 100.0% 100.0%
Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Liability............ccceeuenne..e. 44.1% 814% 93.1% 979% 99.4%
Non-standard Personal Automobile Insurance—Physical Damage............. 92.9% 100.6% 100.3% 99.9% 100.0%
Homeowners INSUTANCE. .......cccuevuiriiiiriininiiiieieneeteee e 721%  943% 97.6% 98.8%  99.6%
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Property and Casualty Insurance Reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Beginning Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves:

Gross of Reinsurance and Indemnification at Beginning of Year.........cccccceevvevvenvenenne. $ 8628 § 7339 § 8435

Less Reinsurance Recoverables and Indemnification at Beginning of Year..................... 52.0 54.9 63.4
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at

BegINNing Of Y AT .......occiiiiieiieie ettt ettt ettt et aeesteessaeesaeeneeseseens 810.8 679.0 780.1
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves Acquired, Net of Reinsurance and

INAeMNITICATION. ...ttt et — 125.4 —

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

CoNtiNUING OPETATIONS ....eevveeerieriieriieeiteriesteeteeteeteesteesseesseessaessresssesseessseasseesseeseenses 1,358.6 1,123.3 965.4
Prior Years:
ContiNUING OPEIALIONS .....vevvivierierieiesteeteetesteeteeeeseseeseesaessesseeseessessessesssessensessesssessens (14.4) (11.5) (53.9)
Discontinued OPETrations ..........cc.eeeerierierieieieetieteiesteeteetestesseseeeseeseeseeseesessesseessenees (6.3) (8.6) (3.6)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE related to Prior Years........coocveveriiieieienieieeecenee. (20.7) (20.1) (57.1)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ........oooo oot 1,337.9 1,103.2 908.3

Paid Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

ContiNUING OPETATIONS ...veevveeurieiieriieeiiesie st eteeteeteeteesteesseesseessresseesseesssesnseesesseenses 831.0 723.2 639.8
Prior Years:
ContiNUING OPEIATIONS .....eevvereieeieieierieetietestesteeeesesseeseesaessesseeseessessessesssessensesseessensens 431.9 366.2 360.4
Discontinued OPErations ..........cc.eeierierieiieieieeteeeestesteeteeeestesseseeeseesesseeseeaensesseeneenees 4.6 7.4 9.2
Total Paid Losses and LAE related to Prior Years.......cccoevveeveeieeiieieeieeieereeeeeeeee e 436.5 373.6 369.6
Total Paid Losses and LAE..........c.ooiiiiiiiiee e 1,267.5 1,096.8 1,009.4
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at
BN O YOI ... ittt ettt ta e e st stbeeaaeenaeeareens 881.2 810.8 679.0
Plus Reinsurance and Indemnification Recoverables at End of Year...........cc...cccooeieennn, 50.2 52.0 54.9
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Gross of Reinsurance and Indemnification at

BN OF Y AT ...t ettt et ettt ettt eae et $ 9314 § 8628 $ 7339

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are estimated based on historical experience patterns and current economic trends.
Actual loss experience and loss trends are likely to differ from these historical experience patterns and economic conditions.
Loss experience and loss trends emerge over several years from the dates of loss inception. The Company monitors such
emerging loss trends on a quarterly basis. Changes in such estimates are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income in
the period of change.

In 2016, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $20.7 million to recognize favorable
development of loss and LAE reserves from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed
favorably by $16.8 million, and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.9 million.
Personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed adversely by $11.3 million due primarily to the emergence of
loss patterns that were worse than expected for liability insurance for the 2015 and 2014 accident years and, to a lesser extent,
the 2013 and 2012 accident years. Homeowners insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $20.0 million due
primarily to $16.8 million of favorable development on catastrophes primarily for the 2015 accident year and, to a lesser extent,
the 2014 accident year. Other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $8.1 million due primarily to the
emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012 accident years. Commercial lines
insurance loss and LAE reserves included adverse development of $2.4 million from continuing operations and favorable
development of $6.3 million from discontinued operations.

In 2015, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $20.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years, including the impact of adverse development of $7.7 million, net of
estimated indemnification recoveries, related to Alliance United for periods prior to the date of its acquisition. Personal lines
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insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $13.3 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves
developed favorably by $6.8 million. Personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $1.8
million, net of the adverse development related to Alliance United, homeowners insurance loss and LAE reserves developed
favorably by $10.8 million, and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $0.7 million. Excluding the
adverse development related to Alliance United for periods prior to the date of its acquisition, personal lines insurance losses
and LAE reserves developed favorably by $21.0 million due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than
expected for the 2013, 2012 and 2011 accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves included adverse
development of $1.8 million from continuing operations and favorable development of $8.6 million from discontinued
operations.

In 2014, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $57.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $50.9 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $6.2 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $31.6 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $14.8 million, and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $4.5
million. The personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more
favorable loss patterns than expected for the three most recent prior accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE
reserves included favorable development of $2.6 million from continuing operations and $3.6 million from discontinued
operations. Commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2013, 2011 and 2010 accident years.

The Company cannot predict whether loss and LAE reserves will develop favorably or unfavorably from the amounts reported
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company believes that any such development will not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, but could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial results
for a given period.

Reinsurance and indemnification recoverables on property and casualty insurance reserves were $50.2 million and $52.0
million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. These recoverables are concentrated with several reinsurers, the vast
majority of which are highly rated by one or more of the principal investor and/or insurance company rating agencies. While
most of these recoverables were unsecured at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the agreements with the reinsurers generally
provide for some form of collateralization upon the occurrence of certain events.

NOTE 7. DEBT

The Company designates debt obligations as either short-term or long-term based on maturity date at issuance. Total amortized
cost of Long-term Debt, Current and Non-current, outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Senior Notes:
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 c..oovieieieiieeiecieeece ettt ettt ssaeenaeenne s $ 3598 $ 359.1
4.35% Senior Notes due February 15, 2025 .......ccviiiioieiieieeeeseeteestee sttt 247.7 247.4
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ..........ccoooviivieieieeiiiieeeieeee ettt 144.1 144.1
Total Long-term Debt, Current and Non-current, OutStanding..............c.ccevivieieviiiiieeieeieeeeeeee s $ 7516 $ 750.6
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Interest Expense, including facility fees, accretion of discount and amortization of issuance costs, for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement...........ococveeevevevevieeeverieeeeeeeeeeeseeeeenenenns $ 08 $ 08 $ 0.8
Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas...........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiieieicciiceecc e — — —
Federal Home Loan Bank of ChiCago .........ccccccivieiiiiiiiieieiecieeeeiee et — — —
Senior NOtEs Payable: ........coiiiiiiiiiiiieieieic ettt e

6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .. ....oooviiiiiiiiecieeceee e — 3.7 15.5

6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....ccocieiiriiiieieieieeeeere e 22.3 222 22.2

4.35% Senior Notes due February 15, 2025 ......cooieieviiiieieieececeeeeee e 111 9.5 —
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ..........cccoovivieievienieieieieee e, 11.1 11.1 9.4
Interest Expense before Capitalization of INTErest..........ccueeririneirinineeeeseeeeese e 45.3 473 47.9
Capitalization Of INTETESt.......c.ccuiiiiiiiieiieieiesieee ettt ettt sre s esseereenaessens 0.9) (0.8) (1.0)
Total INEreSt EXPENSE.....c.oivivivevieiiteeieeteeeeeetcee ettt ettt ettt sttt ae et eas et es s esean e $ 444 § 465 $ 469

Interest Paid, including facility fees, for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AgIreement............ocveeeierieieeieienieeeeieie e $ 0.6 $ 14 3 0.6
Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas...........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiieieceeeee e — — —
Federal Home Loan Bank of ChiCago .........ccccoviieiiiriieieieieciceieee et — — —

Senior Notes Payable:
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 ... ..ooiiiiiiiieiee e — 4.8 15.0
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....ccooieiiriiiiiieieeeeeeee e 21.6 21.6 21.6
4.35% Senior Notes due February 15, 2025 ......cooiiiiieiiieieieeceeeeeeee e 10.9 5.2 —
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ..........cccooivieiieneniiieiee e 11.1 11.1 8.5

TOtal INEEIESt PAIA ......oviiviieiieeeee ettt ettt et eee e $ 442 $ 441 $ 457

Kemper has a $225.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement expiring June 2, 2020. The credit agreement provides for
fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The credit agreement contains various
financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital
ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, Trinity and United Insurance. Proceeds from advances under the credit
agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness. There were no
outstanding borrowings under the credit agreement at either December 31, 2016 or December 31, 2015.

Trinity and United Insurance are members of the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago, respectively. During 2016 and 2015, Trinity
borrowed and repaid $10.0 million and $77.5 million, respectively, under its agreement with the FHLB of Dallas. During 2015,
United Insurance borrowed and repaid $21.0 million under its agreement with the FHLB of Chicago. There were no advances
from the FHLB of Dallas or Chicago outstanding at either December 31, 2016 or December 31, 2015.

On February 24, 2015, Kemper issued $250.0 million of its 4.35% senior notes due February 15, 2025 (the “2025 Senior
Notes”). The net proceeds of the issuance were $247.3 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield of
4.49%. The 2025 Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at
Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper used the net proceeds from the sale of the 2025 Senior Notes, together
with available cash, to redeem in full the $250.0 million outstanding principal amount of its 6.00% senior notes due November
30, 2015. Kemper recognized a loss of $9.1 million before income taxes in the first quarter of 2015 from the early redemption
of these senior notes.
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On February 27, 2014, Kemper issued $150.0 million of its 7.375% subordinated debentures due February 27, 2054 (the “2054
Debentures”). The net proceeds of the issuance were $144.0 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield
of 7.69%. The subordinated debentures are unsecured and are subordinated and junior to the senior indebtedness of Kemper.
Interest on the subordinated debentures is payable quarterly. As long as no event of default has occurred, Kemper may defer
interest payments on the subordinated debentures for up to five consecutive years without giving rise to an event of default.
During a deferral period, interest will continue to accrue at the stated interest rate compounded quarterly. Kemper is permitted
to redeem some or all of the subordinated debentures on or after February 27, 2019, at a redemption price that is equal to their
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. Kemper is permitted to redeem the subordinated debentures in whole, but
not in part, at any time prior to February 27, 2019, within 90 days of the occurrence of certain tax events or rating agency
events, at specified redemption prices.

The Company anticipates issuing at least $250.0 million in 10-year senior notes in the second quarter of 2017 to replace its
Senior Notes due May 15, 2017. For risk management purposes, during the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company entered into a
derivative transaction to hedge the risk of changes in the debt cash flows attributable to changes in the benchmark U.S.
Treasury interest rate during the period leading up to the probable debt issuance (“Treasury Lock™). The Treasury Lock was
formally designated as a cash flow hedge at inception and qualified for hedge accounting treatment. As such, the effective
portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is reported as a component of Other Comprehensive Income and will be
amortized into earnings in the same periods that the hedged items affect earnings. The amortization will be included in Interest
and Other Expenses, which is the same line item associated with the forecasted transaction. The ineffective portion of the
change in fair value of the derivative instrument, if any, is recognized immediately in earnings. The fair value of the Treasury
Lock of $1.6 million at December 31, 2016 has been included in Other Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. As the entire
amount of the change in fair value during the year was deemed effective, all of the change has been included entirely in Other
Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 31, 2016. As the hedged transaction has yet to occur, no amounts have
been reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income into earnings. If debt is issued in the second quarter of 2017 and its terms
are consistent with what has been anticipated, the Company expects to reclassify $0.1 million of net gains on derivative
instruments from AOCI to earnings for the year ended December 31, 2017 as interest expense on the debt is recognized.

NOTE 8. LEASES

The Company leases certain office space under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to
ten years, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. The Company also leases certain equipment under
non-cancellable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to five years. Minimum rent is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Net rental expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Minimum Rental EXPENSE ......ccovivuiiiiiiiieiieieie sttt ettt a e eseeneennes $ 212 § 207 §$ 215
Less Sublease Rental INCOME .........oouieiieiiiiiieiieiece et (1.6) (1.7 (1.3)
Net RENtAl EXPENSE ...vvivvvieiietieietieeeietiteteet ettt ettt ettt ss s assseseasesesnas $ 196 $ 190 $§ 202

Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases at December 31, 2016 were:

Capital Operating

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Leases Leases
207 ettt ettt et e hte et e enae e Rt e eab e e a b e et e et e e bt e eheeeteeeneeesbeenteenbeenbeenseenseenbeenn $ 0.7 $ 174
20 8 ettt ettt ettt et e ht e et e e aaeeat e eab e et e e a bt ea bt e bt e hteeateeheeeabeenteenbesabeenbeenbeenne et 0.1 13.9
2000 ettt bt et eea b e at e ea bt e bt e a bt et e e bt e bt e hteeheeshbeenbeenbesabeebeenbeenbe et — 11.5
1 0 SRS — 9.2
202 L ettt ettt et et e bt e teeateetaeatteetbeetaeeabeeabeeb e e be e be e bt e bt e st eetseatbeenbeenseenbeebeenseereenn — 7.3
2022 AN TREIEATTET ...c.viiiiieiiieie ettt et et e e e et e e teesseesssesssessaeesseessessseenseenseenseenns — 15.2
TOtal FULUIE PAYIMCIIES. ....cviviieiiiicticiieiecie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt esae b e eteessesesseessessesseeneessessesseans $ 0.8 $§ 745
eSS IMPULEA TNLETEST .....eiuiieiiieiiiiii ettt ettt et e e et e e bt e s teesseesseessbeenseensesnseenseensaenseenne o1
Present Value of Minimum Capital Lease Payments............cccccveveriirieierieneiieieiese e eeeens $ 0.7

The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancellable subleases was $2.1 million at December 31,
2016.
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Kemper is authorized to issue 20 million shares of $0.10 par value preferred stock and 100 million shares of $0.10 par value
common stock. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015. There were 51,270,940 shares
and 51,326,751 shares of common stock outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Common stock outstanding
included 16,000 shares and 80,848 shares at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, that have been issued, subject to certain
vesting and other requirements, in connection with the Company’s long-term equity compensation plans. See Note 10, “Long-
Term Equity-based Compensation,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the restrictions and vesting
provisions.

Kemper repurchased and retired 0.1 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of $3.8
million in 2016. Kemper repurchased and retired 1.2 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an
aggregate cost of $43.5 million in 2015. Kemper repurchased and retired 3.2 million shares of its common stock in open market
transactions at an aggregate cost of $115.5 million in 2014.

Various state insurance laws restrict the amount that an insurance subsidiary may pay in the form of dividends, loans or
advances without the prior approval of regulatory authorities. Also, that portion of an insurance subsidiary’s net equity which
results from differences between statutory insurance accounting practices and GAAP would not be available for cash dividends,
loans or advances. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $104.5 million to Kemper in 2016. In 2017, Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $133 million in dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries had net assets of $2.4 billion, determined in accordance with GAAP, that were restricted from payment to
Kemper without prior regulatory approval at December 31, 2016.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to file financial statements prepared on the basis of statutory insurance accounting
practices, a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s life and
health insurance subsidiaries was $403.7 million and $394.6 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Statutory net
income for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries was $29.7 million, $62.8 million and $100.7 million for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries was $928.9 million and $957.7 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Statutory
net income for the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was $1.4 million, $58.9 million and $85.7 million
for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus and statutory net income
exclude parent company operations.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also required to hold minimum levels of statutory capital and surplus to satisfy regulatory
requirements. The minimum statutory capital and surplus, or company action level RBC, necessary to satisfy regulatory
requirements for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries collectively was $121.4 million at December 31, 2016.
The minimum statutory capital and surplus necessary to satisfy regulatory requirements for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries collectively was $334.1 million at December 31, 2016. Company action level RBC is the level
at which a company is required to file a corrective action plan with its regulators and is equal to 200% of the authorized control
level RBC.

In 2016, Kemper paid dividends of $49.2 million to its shareholders. Except for certain financial covenants under Kemper’s
credit agreement or during any period in which Kemper elects to defer interest payments, there are no restrictions on Kemper’s
ability to pay dividends to its shareholders. Certain financial covenants, namely minimum net worth and a maximum debt to
total capitalization ratio, under Kemper’s credit agreement could limit the amount of dividends that Kemper may pay to
shareholders at December 31, 2016. Kemper had the ability to pay without restrictions $269 million in dividends to its
shareholders and still be in compliance with all financial covenants under its credit agreement at December 31, 2016.

NOTE 10. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 4, 2011, Kemper’s shareholders approved the 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan (“Omnibus Plan’). The Omnibus Plan
replaced the Company’s previous employee stock option plans, director stock option plan and restricted stock plan (collectively,
the “Prior Plans”). Awards previously granted under the Prior Plans remain outstanding in accordance with their original terms.
Beginning May 4, 2011, equity-based compensation awards may only be granted under the Omnibus Plan. A maximum number
of 10,000,000 shares of Kemper common stock may be issued under the Omnibus Plan (the “Share Authorization”). As of
December 31, 2016, there were 6,762,714 common shares available for future grants under the Omnibus Plan, of which
682,752 shares were reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of outstanding
performance-based restricted stock unit (“RSU”) awards.

94



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 10. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards™ are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, RSUs and
deferred stock units (“DSUs”), if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.

Outstanding equity-based compensation awards at December 31, 2016 consisted of tandem stock option and stock appreciation
rights (“Tandem Awards”), time-vested restricted stock, time-vested RSUs, performance-based RSUs and DSUs. Effective
February 4, 2014, the Company began issuing time-based and performance-based RSUs. Recipients of restricted stock receive
full dividend and voting rights on the same basis as all other outstanding shares of Kemper common stock. RSUs and DSUs
give the recipient the right to receive one share of Kemper common stock for each RSU or DSU issued. Recipients of RSUs and
DSUs receive full dividend equivalents on the same basis as all other outstanding shares of Kemper common stock, but do not
receive voting rights until such shares are issued. Except as described below for equity-based compensation awards granted to
each member of the Board of Directors who is not employed by the Company (“Non-employee Directors™), all outstanding
awards are subject to forfeiture until certain restrictions have lapsed.

For equity-based compensation awards with a graded vesting schedule, the Company recognizes compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately-vesting portion of the awards as if each award were, in
substance, multiple awards. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures
estimated at the date of grant based on the Company’s historical experience and future expectations. Equity-based
compensation expense was $4.7 million, $6.5 million and $6.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Total unamortized compensation expense related to nonvested awards at December 31, 2016 was $8.1 million,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, or the Board’s authorized designee, has sole discretion to determine
the persons to whom awards under the Omnibus Plan are granted, and the material terms of the awards. For Tandem Awards,
material terms include the number of shares covered by such awards and the exercise price, vesting and expiration dates of such
awards. Tandem Awards are non-transferable. The exercise price of Tandem Awards is the fair value of Kemper’s common
stock on the date of grant. Employee Tandem Awards, time-based restricted stock awards and time-based RSU awards generally
vest, beginning six months after date of grant, in four equal annual installments over a period of three and one-half years, with
the Tandem Awards expiring ten years from the date of grant. Employee performance-based restricted stock and RSU awards
generally vest over a period of three years, subject to achievement of performance goals and other restrictions.

Under the Non-employee Director compensation programs in effect for 2016, each non-employee director receives an annual
DSU award covering shares of Kemper common with an aggregate grant date fair value of $75,000 at the conclusion of each
annual shareholder meeting. Under the Non-employee Director compensation programs in effect for 2015 and 2014, annual
awards to each Non-employee Director included 500 DSUs and stock options, as described below. The DSUs granted to Non-
employee Directors are fully vested on the date of grant. Conversion of the DSUs into shares of Kemper’s common stock is
deferred until the date a director’s board service terminates.

In addition to the annual DSU awards under the Non-employee Director compensation programs in effect for 2015 and 2014,
each Non-employee Director received an initial option award to purchase 4,000 shares of Kemper common stock immediately
upon becoming a director, and in addition, received an annual option award to purchase 4,000 shares of common stock on the
date of each annual meeting of Kemper’s shareholders. Grants of such option awards were fully vested and exercisable on the
date of grant at an exercise price equal to the fair value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant and expire ten years
from the date of grant.

Prior to approval of the Omnibus Plan, the Company’s previous stock option plans included provisions, subject to certain
limitations, to automatically grant restorative, or reload stock options (“Restorative Options™), to replace shares of previously
owned Kemper common stock that an exercising option holder surrenders, either actually or constructively, to satisfy the
exercise price and/or tax withholding obligations relating to the exercise. The restorative feature was eliminated prospectively
for original option awards granted on or after February 3, 2009. However, Restorative Options could still be granted, subject to
certain limitations, in connection with the exercise of original options granted before February 3, 2009. Following the exercise
in 2016 of original options previously granted prior to February 3, 2009 and the automatic grant of Restorative Options in
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connection with such exercise, there were no options outstanding at December 31, 2016 that were eligible to receive a grant of a
Restorative Option. Restorative Options are subject to the same terms and conditions as the original options, including the
expiration date, except that the exercise price is equal to the fair value of Kemper common stock on the date of grant of a
Restorative Option and cannot be exercised until six months after the date of grant. The grant of a Restorative Option does not
result in an increase in the total number of shares and options held by an employee, but changes the mix of the two.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each Tandem Award on the date of
grant. The expected terms of Tandem Awards are developed by considering the Company’s historical Tandem Award exercise
experience, demographic profiles, historical share retention practices of employees and assumptions about their propensity for
early exercise in the future. Expected volatility is estimated using weekly historical volatility. The Company believes that
historical volatility is currently the best estimate of expected volatility. The dividend yield in 2016, 2015 and 2014 was
calculated by taking the natural logarithm of the annualized yield divided by the Kemper common stock price on the date of
grant. The risk-free interest rate was the yield on the grant date of U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with a maturity comparable
to the expected term of the option.

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes pricing model for Tandem Awards granted during the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014 are presented below.

2016 2015 2014
RANGE OF VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS
Expected Volatility.......ccoeeeereneieiininiciicncneen, 25.85% - 42.19%  21.31% - 41.65%  25.76% - 44.43%
Risk-free Interest Rate..........cccceevvevieeieiiecieeiee, 0.77 - 2.01 1.08 - 1.96 1.07 - 2.14
Expected Dividend Yield........ccoooerinininoiniiie, 222 - 341 237 - 2.62 2.53 - 2.60
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXPECTED LIFE IN YEARS
Employee Grants.........ceceeeeeviieneeneenieenieniesie e 1 - 65 4 -7 4 -7
DiIrector Grants...........coceeeeeeeeenieieieneneneeieese e N/A 55 6

Tandem Award activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 is presented below.

Weighted-
Weighted- average Aggregate
Shares average Remaining Intrinsic
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Value

Awards Per Share ($) Life (in Years) ($ In Millions)
Outstanding at Beginning of the Year.........ccocoevenevinieiennne. 1,428,157 $ 39.75
Granted..........ooueeioieeeee e 506,675 31.09
EXCICISE ... (251,522) 34.04
Forfeited or EXpired........cccevieviieniiiiiciecieceeeee e (377,187) 43.72
Outstanding at December 31, 2016.........ccccvevvevienveiieeieeenee. 1,306,123 36.35 65 § 115
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 2016.................. 1,254,165 $ 36.49 64 $ 10.9
Exercisable at December 31, 2016.........cccooovieeiiiieiiieeiieeiees 701,486 $ 38.32 48 $ 53

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of Tandem Awards granted during 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $5.17, $7.85 and
$10.49, respectively. Total intrinsic value of Tandem Awards exercised was $2.0 million, $4.6 million and $0.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Cash received from exercises of Tandem Awards was $3.5
million, $3.9 million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Total tax benefit
realized for tax deductions from exercises of Tandem Awards was $0.7 million, $1.6 million and $0.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Information pertaining to Tandem Awards outstanding at December 31, 2016 is presented below.

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- average Weighted-
Shares average Remaining Shares average
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Subject to Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Prices ($) Awards Per Share () Life (in Years) Awards Per Share ()
15.01 - 20.00 4,000 16.48 2.35 4,000 16.48
20.01 - 25.00 9,500 23.37 3.06 9,500 23.37
25.01 - 30.00 316,603 27.89 8.21 116,909 28.20
30.01 - 35.00 176,845 32.43 8.18 74,742 32.33
35.01 - 40.00 437,299 36.64 7.21 270,763 36.67
40.01 - 45.00 166,376 41.33 7.02 30,072 40.70
45.01 - 50.00 195,500 49.74 0.11 195,500 49.74
15.01 - 50.00 1,306,123 36.35 6.45 701,486 38.32

The grant-date fair values of time-based restricted stock and time-based RSU awards are determined using the closing price of
Kemper common stock on the date of grant. Activity related to nonvested time-based restricted stock and nonvested time-based
RSUs for the year ended December 31, 2016 is presented below.

Time-based Restricted Stock

Awards Time-based RSU Awards
Weighted- ‘Weighted-
average average
Grant-date Grant-date
Number of Fair Value Number of Fair Value
Shares Per Share RSUs Per RSU
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year.........ccococeveciiincncnnicnenee 29,448 $ 33.77 85,048 $ 36.84
GIaANTEd .....ooviiiiiiecee et — — 118,622 31.48
VST, ..ttt ettt ettt ettt (12,098) 32.32 (26,0006) 33.01
FOTTRIIEM. ... oo e e s e e e s e es e es e e s es e eeeene (1,350) 35.75 (19,303) 36.03
Nonvested Balance at December 31, 2016..........cccooovvieieeiiiiieieeieeiees 16,000 $ 34.69 158,361 $ 33.56

Prior to February 3, 2009, only awards of time-vested restricted stock had been granted. Beginning on February 3, 2009, in
addition to time-vested restricted stock granted to certain employees and officers, the Company began making performance-
based restricted awards to certain officers and employees. The initial number of shares or RSUs awarded to each participant of
a performance-based award represents the shares that would vest, or, in the case of a RSU, that would vest and would be issued,
if the performance level attained were to be at the “target” performance level. For performance above the target level, each
participant would receive a grant of additional shares of stock up to a maximum of 100% of the initial number of shares or
RSUs awarded to the participant. The final payout of these awards, and any forfeitures of shares for performance below the
“target” performance level, will be determined based on the Company’s performance. If, at the end of the applicable
performance period, the Company’s performance:

» exceeds the “target” performance level, additional shares of stock will be issued to the award recipient;

* is below the “target” performance level, but at or above a “minimum” performance level, only a portion of the shares
of performance-based restricted stock or RSUs originally issued to the award recipient will vest; or

* is below a “minimum” performance level, none of the shares of performance-based restricted stock or RSUs originally
issued to the award recipient will vest.
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Activity related to nonvested performance-based restricted stock and nonvested performance-based RSU awards for the year
ended December 31, 2016 is presented below.

Performance-based Performance-based RSU
Restricted Stock Awards Awards
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Grant-date Grant-date
Number of Fair Value Number of Fair Value
Shares Per Share RSUs Per RSU
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year..........cccooeeveviiviiiveieiennne. 51,400 $ 42.12 128,100 $ 41.85
GIaNtEA ...ooviiieiieeec ettt — — 146,788 29.62
FOTERIIE. oo e e e e s es e eeeeereees (51,400) 42.12 (47,304) 39.04
Nonvested Balance at December 31, 2016........cccccoovvvivviiiviiiiiieceeenen. — — 227,584 $ 34.55

The number of additional shares that would be granted if the Company were to meet or exceed the maximum performance
levels related to the outstanding performance-based awards for the 2016 and 2015 three-year performance periods was 137,615
common shares and 46,762 common shares, respectively, (as “full value awards,” the equivalent of 412,845 shares and 140,286
shares, respectively, under the Share Authorization) at December 31, 2016. For the 2014 three-year performance period, the
Company’s performance level was below the minimum performance level, and all of the related 43,207 shares of performance-
based RSUs were forfeited on February 4, 2017, the three-year anniversary of their grant date. For the 2013 three-year
performance period, the Company’s performance level was below the minimum performance level, and all of the related 51,400
shares of performance-based restricted shares were forfeited on February 4, 2016, the three-year anniversary of their grant date.

The grant date fair values of the performance-based restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards with a market
performance condition are determined using the Monte Carlo simulation method. The Monte Carlo simulation model produces
a risk-neutral simulation of the daily returns on the common stock of Kemper and each of the other companies included in the
peer group. Returns generated by the simulation depend on the risk-free interest rate used and the volatilities of, and the
correlation between, these stocks. The model simulates stock prices and dividend payouts to the end of the three-year
performance period. Total shareholder returns are generated for each of these stocks based on the simulated prices and dividend
payouts. The total shareholder returns are then ranked, and Kemper’s simulated ranking is converted to a payout percentage
based on the terms of the performance-based restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards. The payout percentage is
applied to the simulated stock price at the end of the performance period, reinvested dividends are added back, and the total is
discounted to the valuation date at the risk-free rate. This process is repeated approximately ten thousand times, and the grant
date fair value is equal to the average of the results from these trials.

Performance-based awards outstanding on January 1, 2016 are measured using a market performance condition. Fair value for
these awards was estimated using the Monte Carlo simulation method described above. For awards outstanding on January 1,
2016, the final payout of these awards, and any forfeitures of shares for performance below the “target” performance level, are
determined based on Kemper’s total shareholder return, relative to a peer group comprised of all the companies in the S&P
Supercomposite Insurance Index, over the respective three-year performance period ending on either December 31, 2017, 2016
or 2015, depending on the three-year performance period being measured. Compensation cost for these awards is recognized
ratably over the requisite service period. In the event that the market performance condition is not satisfied, previously
recognized compensation cost would not reverse, but it would reverse if the requisite service period is not met.

Half of the performance-based RSUs granted in 2016 are measured using a market performance condition. Fair value for these
awards was estimated using the Monte Carlo simulation method described above. Final payout for these awards, and any
forfeitures of shares for performance below the “target” performance level, will be based on Kemper’s total shareholder return,
relative to a peer group comprised of all the companies in the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index, over a three-year
performance period ending on February 28, 2019. Compensation cost for these awards is recognized ratably over the requisite
service period. In the event that the market performance condition is not satisfied, previously recognized compensation cost
would not reverse, but it would reverse if the requisite service period is not met.
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Half of the performance-based RSUs granted in 2016 are measured solely using a Company-specific metric. Final payout for
these awards, and any forfeitures of shares for performance below the “target” performance level, will be determined based on
Kemper’s adjusted return on equity over a three-year performance period ending on December 31, 2018. Fair value for these
awards was determined using the closing price of Kemper common stock on the date of grant. Accruals of compensation cost
for these awards are estimated based on the probable outcome of the performance condition.

The total fair value of time-vested and performance-based restricted stock and RSUs that vested during the year ended
December 31, 2016 was $1.3 million. The tax benefits for tax deductions realized from such shares was $0.5 million. The total
fair value of the shares of time-vested and performance-based restricted stock that vested during the year ended December 31,
2015 was $1.4 million. The tax benefits for tax deductions realized from such shares was $0.5 million. The total fair value of
the shares of time-vested and performance-based restricted stock that vested during the year ended December 31, 2014 and the
2011 Additional Shares was $3.6 million. The tax benefits for tax deductions realized from such shares was $1.2 million.

The grant-date fair values of DSU awards granted to Non-employee Directors are determined using the closing price of Kemper
common stock on the date of grant. The total fair value of DSUs that vested during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014 was $0.5 million, $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

Activity related to DSU awards for the year ended December 31, 2016 is presented below.

‘Weighted-
average
Grant-date
Number of Fair Value
DSUs Per DSU
Vested Balance at Beginning 0f the Year.........cccoviviiiiiiiiiniiiccccceeseeeeese e 7,000 $ 36.17
Granted anNd VESTEA........ooiiiiiiiiie ettt e e ettt e e e et e e e e et e e s esaaaeesseaaaeesseaaeeas 14,520 31.00
Vested Balance at December 31, 2016........c..ooiiieiieiiiceeeeee e 21,520 $ 32.68
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NOTE 11. INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE

The Company’s awards of restricted stock contain rights to receive non-forfeitable dividends and participate in the
undistributed earnings with common shareholders. The Company’s awards of RSUs and DSUs contain rights to receive non-

forfeitable dividend equivalents and participate in the undistributed earnings with common shareholders. Accordingly, the

Company is required to apply the two-class method of computing basic and diluted earnings per share. A reconciliation of the
numerator and denominator used in the calculation of Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share and
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is

presented below.

2016 2015 2014

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
Income from Continuing OPETratiONS .........c.ccuerverreerieriieieieriestieteeeeneesreeeesesseeseeaesseeseeseennes $ 127 § 802 $ 1126
Less Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Attributed to Participating Awards.......... 0.2) 0.4 0.5
Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares ............ccceccveneeenns 12.9 79.8 112.1
Dilutive Effect on Income of Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares..................... — — —
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares................... $ 129 § 798 § 112.1
SHARES IN THOUSANDS
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares Outstanding...............ccccceevviviiieieniineeeeiesieeeeeeenn. 51,156.1 51,606.9 53,762.5
Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares .............ccccocvevvieieviiniiieieiececeeeeeeeenn 58.6 76.6 105.4
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIUEION. .ttt ettt 51,214.7 51,683.5 53,867.9
PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE IN WHOLE DOLLARS
Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share ..........c..coccoeevvciniencninncns $ 025 § 155 $§ 208
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share...............ccooerveieneenen. $ 025 § 155 $§ 208

The number of shares of Kemper common stock that were excluded from the calculations of Equity-based Compensation

Equivalent Shares and Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming Dilution for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 because the exercise prices for the options exceeded the average market price

is presented below.

SHARES IN THOUSANDS 2016 2015 2014
Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares .............ccccocvevvieieviiniiicieieeieeeeeceeeeene 959.9 959.7 1,605.1
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIUHON. ¢ttt ettt sttt ettt 959.9 959.7 1,605.1
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NOTE 12. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

The components of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year Before Reclassification

AQJUSEMENT ...ttt ettt ettt et sens $ 24 $ (1519 $ 259.7
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............cccoevvervrenennnn. 0.2 254) (25.1)
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES).......cceevieierieiiiiiieieiieieeeeieie et saeereeeesesaessneneens 2.2) (177.3) 234.6
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before

Reclassification AdJUStMENt.............ccvevuiiuieiiiiieiieieiecieeeee et 0.3) (1.4) (1.0)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income...........ccccoeeiiinninnene — — —
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments. ...........cceccvevviviiieieiiieieceeeesre e 0.3) (1.4) (1.0)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year....................... 14.2 3.0 (106.4)
Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income:

Curtailment Cost RECOZNIZE .........c.covivvieiiiiiiiiiieiieieeie ettt 1.0 — —

Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs...........ccccevvevenennn. 53 23.1 7.9
Total Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income...................... 6.3 23.1 7.9
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit CoStS.........ccovivvieieiiviiiieieieeeceeieieeveeeenn 20.5 26.1 (98.5)
Gains (Losses) on Cash Flow Hedge During the Year Before Reclassification

AJUSTMENL ...ttt et ettt et e e e e eaeeeabeeabeesseeaseesbeeseesseeseeees 1.6 — —
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............cccovveveenneennen. — — —
Gain on Cash FIOW HEdZE .........ccuoeiiiiiiiieieee e e 1.6 — —

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes.........ccccceeeveeieeciieniieciiecieennenne. $ 196 § (152.6) $ 1351
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The components of Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (Expense) for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):

Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year Before Reclassification

AQJUSEMENT ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt serens $ 1.0 $§ 539 § (91.6)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.............ccoevveevrevrnnnn. 0.1) 8.9 8.8
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES ...........ccveieiieieierieniieieeerie et 0.9 62.8 (82.8)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before

Reclassification AdJuStmMent ............cccvevviivieeieiiiiieieieie ettt 0.1 0.5 0.4
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............ccoeeerinennne. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment............c.ocveeerveriieeeeeriiieeeeeere e 0.1 0.5 0.4
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year....................... (5.0) (1.1) 37.5
Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income:

Curtailment Cost RECOZNIZEM..........c.oovieiiiiiiiiiicieieieceeeete et 0.4) — —
Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs...........c..ccceveeveenen.. 1.9 (8.0) (2.8)
Total Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income....................... 2.3) (8.0) (2.8)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........ccooveeeeieviiiiiiieiiieeeceeieeieeeeeeen (7.3) ©.D 34.7
Gain on Cash Flow Hedge During the Year Before Reclassification Adjustment............ (0.6) — —
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income...........ccoeoerineiennne. — — —
Gain on Cash FIOW Hedge .........ccoeoviiiiiiiiiiiiceeeeceeeeee s (0.6) — —
Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPense) .........cccoevevvevviirieieviineiicieieeveeeennns S 69) $ 542 $ 477

The components of AOCI at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Unrealized Gains on Investments, Net of Income Taxes:

Available for Sale Fixed Maturities with Portion of OTTI Recognized in Earnings.............c.c.......... $ 0.1 $ 1.4

Other Net Unrealized Gains 0n INVESTMENTS............ccveiiriiiiiieiietieeeieieeie et ee s sseereens 211.7 211.7
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, Net of IncoOme Taxes........c.ccevveveeieniiniiieieieeeeeeeesieeens 0.9) 0.7)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs, Net of Income Taxes.........ccoecvevveviieeieniieieeeiesieeneans (74.9) (88.1)
Gain on Cash Flow Hedge, Net 0f INCOME TaXES.......ccoieieiiiiiiiieieiieiceeeete e 1.0 —
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ..........ocviiuieieiiiiiieieieee et es $ 137.0 $ 1243

102



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 12. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (Continued)

Components of AOCI were reclassified to the following lines of the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Reclassification of AOCI from Unrealized Gains and Losses on Available For Sale
Securities to:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS...........cceevviiviieiiieiiiciecceececeeeeeeeeee e $ 320 $§ 526 $ 379
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ............c.cccoevvvieievienieieienieceeeeenn, (32.2) (27.2) (12.8)
Total Before INCOmME TaXES........ccoviiiieiiiiiieiiei e 0.2) 254 25.1
INCOME TaX EXPENSE ....vivieiiiiieiieiieiecieeteetee ettt ettt seeaeenaennens 0.1 (8.9) (8.8)
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of Income Taxes...........oooviveviiieiieieiieiiieeeeeeeeeeas (0.1) 16.5 16.3
Reclassification of AOCI from Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit
Costs to:
Interest and Other EXPENSES........ccvcvviiviiuiiiiiiiiiiciieiete ettt v e ein e (6.3) (23.1) (7.9)
INCOME TaX BENETIt.....cuiiuiiiiiiciicecicteeecee ettt 2.3 8.0 2.8
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of IncoOme Taxes........c..covveeveieieeeeieeecieeereeeeeeeenen. 4.0) (15.1) 5.D
Total Reclassification from AOCI to Net INCOME..........ccoeovieiiiiiiiciicieeeeceeeee e S 4.1 $ 14 3 11.2
NOTE 13. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Investment Income (Loss):
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities ...........cvevverierririerienieneeeeseeereeeeseesnesveeeeenns $ 2427 § 2362 $ 2274
Dividends on Equity Securities Excluding Alternative Investments ...........cccccoceeeennenn. 11.8 14.8 19.2
Alternative Investments:
Equity Method Limited Liability INVeStMENtS ........c.ccvveerieiineinniinceneccneees 7.5 19.0 9.0
Fair Value Option INVESIMENLS.........c.ccovveirieriinieiniiieinicenietceneeeseetee et (1.9) 0.2 0.7)
Limited Liability Investments Included in Equity Securities...........cccccvevevverrerrrennnns 22.0 17.6 40.7
Total Alternative INVEStMENTS..........cveiiriiriiieieieeeeeeie ettt eee s 27.6 36.8 49.0
ShOrt-term INVESTMENTS ...c.vieiieiiieiiieiieeie ettt e b e aeeeee 0.5 0.4 0.6
Loans to POICYNOIACTS .......eveuiiiiiiiieieiieeeseee e 21.6 21.1 20.5
REAI ESLAL.....eeiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt et e et enbe et e nneenees 11.8 11.9 12.1
(01115, OO SRPRRSS 0.3 — 0.1
Total InvestMent INCOME........cccuiiiiiiieiieiierietee ettt eee 316.3 321.2 328.9
Investment Expenses:
REALI ESLAL...c.ueeiiiiiiiciie ettt ettt et ettt ettt e e bt enneenees 11.0 11.3 11.3
Other Investment EXPENSES ......cc.oviriiiiiiniiiiiiieneeteteseetec e 7.0 7.3 8.5
Total Investment EXPEnSES ......cc.coiiiiiiriiniiiiiiierieteseeeeee ettt 18.0 18.6 19.8
Net INVeStMENt INCOMIE. .......cvoviiieiiriiieieiieieeiet ettt ettt eb b eae s ss s enas $ 2983 § 302.6 $ 309.1

Other Receivables includes accrued investment income of $70.8 million and $68.5 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015,

respectively.
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The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS ON SALES.....c.vivieeieeieciicteeet ettt ettt ettt ettt e eteere et e b e eteeseessesaeetsessessesseessassens $ 170 § 161 § 7.0

LL0SSES ON SALES ..ottt ettt ettt e be et s (4.6) (1.1 (0.2)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES....cuvevieiieieitectiet ettt ettt ettt e e et e eseese e s ebeeseeseeseesseeseessensessesssensens 19.9 39.2 33.1

LLOSSES ON SAIES ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e be e beeneereas 0.3) (1.6) (2.0)
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SAIES...cuviiiieiieciieeie ettt ettt ettt e teeste e bt e steeetaesteestsessseesseesseesseenseenseenseas 1.1 — —

LL0SSES ON SIS ..ottt ettt st eebeebeenreen — (0.2) 0.2)
Other Investments:

Gain on Sale of SUDSIAIATY ...cc.viviiiiiiiieiieeeeee e — — 1.6

LLOSSES ON SAIES ...ttt et ettt ettt et et et ereereas 0.2) — 0.1)

Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTTHES .....o.eevervirieieieeiieieieeie et eseenees 0.2 (0.3) 0.1)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENTS .........ceievieiieiieiicieecie et $ 331 § 521 $ 391
GTOSS GAINS ON SALES ......cvveeeieieeeeeeeeeeeee ettt s e eae e e ea e e enene s $ 380 $ 553§ 417
GTOSS LOSSES ON SALES ...ovvieiiieiieiieciie ettt ettt ettt ettt e s esebeenaeeaseenbeesaesseenseenees 5.1) 2.9 2.5)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTITHES ........eevervieieeieeiieieeieerieesieesieeseesieeseeeaeeeeeene e 0.2 (0.3) 0.1)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENES ........ccviviieiiiiieiieiieieeieeriieee e $ 331 § 521 $ 391

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

FIXEA IMALUTITIES ......vvceeevceceeet ettt ettt ettt ettt et ee e ee et et ee e et es e s et ene et eseanesensanas $ (266) $ (115 $ (5.7
EQUILY SECUITHIES ....vevieieiieiieeie et ettt ettt ettt et et e st eetteseaeesbeenseenseenseenseenseenseeseensaenseensns (5.6) (15.7) (7.1)
REAL ESTALE ..ottt et ettt ettt e e et e s (0.5) — 24
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........cccueeevieriieniienienienieniencesie e eie e $ (327 8 (272) $ (152

NOTE 14. INSURANCE EXPENSES

Insurance Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
COIMUIMISSIONS ....vvivvivieetitiete et et eteett et et e ete et et e eteese e s e steetsessesseeseessesseseessessesesssessensesseersesnens $ 3992 § 3576 $ 3246
GENETAL EXPEINISES ..ovvieuiieiiieiieiiecitest ettt et ettt e te e et estaesseesaeesseesaseenseesseenseenseeseenseenses 209.0 241.1 258.1
Taxes, LICenSes and FEES........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiie et rane e 48.8 442 38.9
Total Costs INCUITEA ......eeuiiiiiieiiiireee ettt 657.0 642.9 621.6
Policy Acquisition Costs:

DICTRITEA ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e beese s et e eneenneneens (314.9) (270.6) (235.8)

AMOTEIZEA ...ttt ettt et e e ste e e ttesaeestbeetbeesseeabeesbeesbeenbeenbeesseenseenseenaes 299.3 257.4 235.4
Net Policy Acquisition Costs Deferred..........coovrieiiriiiieicieeeeeee e (15.6) (13.2) 0.4)
Life VIF, P&C VIF and P&C Customer Relationships Amortized...........ccoeveeriienieneennnnnne. 5.9 15.4 7.2
INSUTANCE EXPEISES ...ovviviiviiiieiiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt et beete e st aesbeetaesseseeaeessesseseeneenees $ 6473 § 6451 $ 6284

Commissions for servicing policies are expensed as incurred, rather than deferred and amortized.
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NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s Net Deferred Income Tax Assets
and Deferred Income Tax Liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Deferred Income Tax Assets:
TNSUTANCE RESEIVES ...ttt ettt sttt et ettt et e b e bt e satesbeesabeenbeentesanes $ 834 § 830
Unearned Premitm RESEIVES .....c..iciiiiiiiiieiieiieciiesit ettt ettt et et sve et e steesaessaeesaeesbeesbeesaereenns 42.1 41.7
Tax Capitalization of Policy AcquiSition CoOSES.........cueuertiiirieieete ettt eeeene 70.7 71.5
Payroll and Employee Benefit ACCIUALS........cc.eeivierieiieiiecie ettt 60.5 72.0
Net Operating Loss CarryfOrWards .........ccuiecvieriieiiieiiieiieieeie ettt see e seaesbeebeeaeebeeseesseenseenns 52.2 30.5
ORI ottt ettt et ettt e b e he et st e b e ae st e s b e beeae e st e b e te e st ent e beeteesa e beeteeneenaebeeteen 13.2 15.7
Total Deferred INCOME TaAX ASSELS.......cviierierrieierierieetieieiestesteertestesseeseeaessesseesaessessesseessensensesseensessensenns 322.1 314.4
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
TIIVESTIMEIIES. ...ttt ettt et e eteeeaeesaeestbeesseeaseesbeesbeesseenseebeesssesssesssessseesseenseennas 113.0 109.8
Deferred Policy ACqUiSItion COSES .......ueuirtirieieieitietieie sttt ettt et e ste e eseese st eneeeeseeeneens 116.2 110.7
Life VIF and P&C Customer RelationShiPs..........ccverierieiieiiieiieie ettt 13.5 15.5
Goodwill and Other Intangible ASSets ACQUITEd.......ccueviiriiriieiieie ettt ettt see e see e eee e 371 37.0
DEPTECIADIE ASSELS ..eeuvieneieiieitieiite et ettt ettt et et e st e s teesteesetesseeeatesebeenseenseenseebeesseenaeenseesnseenseeneeennes 12.5 7.3
ORI ottt ettt e et ettt a e e b te e st b e ae st e st et e et e st e b e ke et e e st e ebeereesaenbeeseeneensenseereen 4.0 2.2
Total Deferred InCOme Tax LiabDilities.......ccueeieierieriiiiieieieeie ettt saeeeeens 296.3 282.5
Net Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS......ccuiiiiiiieiiieiieeie et ete ettt et eete e et e st e steeesseesseesbeebeesseesseesseesseesseesseeas $ 258 § 319

The expiration of federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards and their related deferred income tax assets at
December 31, 2016 is presented below by year of expiration.

Cljlgl;/- Deferred
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS forwards Tax Asset
Expiring in:
2020 1ot h bt a e e h et h et h et bt bt ea et sh e e bt et b et ebe et nae i ean $ 78 $ 2.7
2021 through 2025 ......ie ettt ettt be e 30.5 10.7
2026 through 2030 ......ccueiiiiiiee ettt h et n bbbt 29.9 10.5
2031 through 2036 ......coueieiiiiie et b ettt ettt 81.0 28.3
TOtAL ALL YEATS......cuiiiiiiietietctee ettt $ 1492 § 522

Except for the NOL carryforward scheduled to expire in 2031 through 2036, all of the NOL carryforwards were acquired in
connection with business acquisitions made in prior years and are subject to annual usage limitations under the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company expects to fully utilize these federal NOL carryforwards.

The Company has not provided for Federal income taxes on $14.7 million of Mutual Savings Life’s income earned prior to
1984 which is not subject to income taxes under certain circumstances. Federal income taxes of $5.1 million would be paid on
such income if it is distributed to shareholders in the future or if it does not continue to meet certain limitations.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of Unrecognized Tax Benefits for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Liabilities for Unrecognized Tax Benefits at Beginning of Year..........ccccooveveevieniencennnne. $ 38 $ 72 $ 6.8
Additions for Tax Positions of Current Period............ccecvverireiiineneiiiiceecesesece 1.5 0.2 0.1
Additions for Tax Positions of Prior Years.........ccceeveieiiirenieiiinieicieesesieeeeeie e — — 0.3
Reduction for Expiration of Federal Statute of Limitations...........ccccovevverienieeieieeneeeennen 0.2) (3.6) —
Liabilities for Unrecognized Tax Benefits at End of Year.........ccoccooiiininiiiiiiiccee, $ 51 $ 38 § 7.2
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NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The statute of limitations related to Kemper and its eligible subsidiaries’ consolidated Federal income tax returns is closed for
all tax years up to and including 2012. The expiration of the statute of limitations related to the various state income tax returns
that Kemper and its subsidiaries file varies by state.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits at December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 include $4.6 million, $3.3 million and $3.4 million,
respectively, for tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the
timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred income tax accounting, other than for interest and penalties, the
disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the effective income tax rate but would accelerate the payment
of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The liability
for Unrecognized Tax Benefits included accrued interest of $0.5 million, $0.5 million and $3.8 million at December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014, respectively. Net interest related to unrecognized tax benefits for the year ended December 31, 2016 was
insignificant. Tax expense includes interest benefit of $3.3 million and interest expense of $0.4 million related to unrecognized
tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The components of Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Current Income Tax Benefit (EXPenSe)......cccueeuieriieriieiieriieiieeieeie et S 82 § (257 % “1.7)
Deferred Income Tax Benefit (EXPENnSe).......cevvevuieiieiienieiiieieeieeie et 2.3 2.2 5.9
(Increase) Decrease Unrecognized Tax Benefits........ocovvveieriieiiienieniieieiese e 1.3) 34 (0.4)
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) .....ccveviiivivirieriiireeiietieeetete st eseee e tessesees st sessesessssesessesesnenas $ 92 § (20.1) $ (47.6)

Income tax refunds received, net of income taxes paid, were $0.5 million in 2016. Net income taxes paid were $44.4 million
and $37.2 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

A reconciliation of the Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense and Rate to the Company’s Effective Income Tax Expense and
Rate from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

2016 2015 2014

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense.........c.cccc...... $ (12 350% $ (35.1) 35.0% § (56.1) 35.0%
Tax-exempt Income and Dividends Received

DedUCHION ..ot 9.8 (279.5) 9.8 9.7 9.0 (5.6)
Unrecognized Tax Benefit (Expense)..........ccceeveeuenne — — 2.1 2.1 (0.3) —
Indemnification Recoveries.........ccooevvervenieniennennee. 0.2 6.5) 3.7 (3.6) — —
State INCOME TAXES......ccveevvieiierierieerieereecree e 0.6) 16.9 (0.6) 0.5 (0.6) 0.4
Other, Net......ooveiiiriicieiieicecceceese e 1.0 (289 — — 0.4 (0.1)
Effective Income Tax Benefit (Expense) from

Continuing OPerations ...........cocevereeeeeriereereeenuennes $ 92 (263.00% § (20.1) 20.1% $ (47.6) 29.7%
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NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (Expense) included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Income Tax Expense:

CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....c.vevieeieriestieeeeieteeteeiestesteeseeseesesseeseesseseeseeseesessesseessensessesseensens $ 92 $§ (20.1) $§ (47.6)

DiscontinUed OPETAtIONS .......c.eerueruieeieieteetieieeeseeeteeeeneeeee et eeestesseeneeeeseesseeneeneesseeneeneens 2.2) 3.1 (1.1)
Unrealized Depreciation (Appreciation) 0n S@CULTLIES. ......cuerverueeierierieriieieie e eeeenees 0.9 62.8 (82.8)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on Investments ..........cccccoceveeeenencenienencecenne. 0.1 0.5 0.4
Tax Effects from Postretirement Benefit P1ans..........ccccooieiieniiniiiiiiiieccceeeee (7.3) 9.1 34.7
Tax Effects from Cash FIOW HedZe .......cccueeiiiiiiiieiieicieeee e (0.6) — —
Tax Effects from Long-term Equity-based Compensation included in Paid-in Capital........ (1.1) (1.0) (1.0)
Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSe)........ccovvveveirieiriereieieiiieieeeeeeeeevee e $ @0 $ 300 S (974

NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS

The Company sponsors a qualified defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan’). The Pension Plan covers approximately
9,200 participants and beneficiaries, of which 1,800 are active employees. The Pension Plan is closed to new employees hired
after January 1, 2006. The Pension Plan is generally non-contributory, but participation requires or required some employees to
contribute 3% of pay, as defined, per year. Benefits for participants who are or were required to contribute to the Pension Plan
are based on compensation during plan participation and the number of years of participation. Benefits for the vast majority of
participants who are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan are based on years of service and final average pay, as
defined. The Company funds the Pension Plan in accordance with the requirements of ERISA.

On May 12, 2016, the Company amended the Pension Plan to freeze benefit accruals, effective June 30, 2016, for substantially
all of the participants under the plan. Accordingly, plan assets and liabilities were re-measured, resulting in balances in
accumulated unrecognized pension loss and unamortized prior service credit prior to the freeze of $191.2 million and $0.3
million, respectively. In recognizing the curtailment, the Company recorded income of $0.3 million before income taxes in the
second quarter of 2016 to immediately recognize the remaining unamortized prior service credit in the Pension Plan. The
curtailment reduced the accumulated unrecognized pension loss by $23.3 million. The remaining accumulated unrecognized
pension loss of $167.9 million as of the re-measurement date is being amortized over approximately 25 years, the remaining
average estimated life expectancy of participants. Prior to the amendment, the accumulated unrecognized pension loss was
being amortized over approximately 5 years, the remaining average service life of active participants.
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NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Projected Benefit Obligation for the Pension Plan for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Fair Value of Plan Assets at BeZinning 0f Y ar........cccccvieiieiiiiiiieiiieieeieesitesteeee st $ 5075 § 543.0
Actual Return 0N PLAN ASSELS.....c.eoviriiiiieieiieiiett ettt et ste et e steesee e e sesseessessessesseessessesseeseessessenseans 29.9 (10.6)
EMPIOYer CONIIDULIONS ......oviitieiieiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt est et e eteeseesaesseeseessensessesseensensenseensensensenseans 9.0 —
Benefits Paid ......ooiiiiiieiieiee ettt ettt ettt eae st et e te st eneenaenseereens (25.5) (24.9)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at ENd Of Year........coocioiiiiiiiieeec e 520.9 507.5
Projected Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year........cccccoviiirieiiiieieeeeeeee e 597.8 634.0
SEIVICE COST ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et e st e sttt ehe e s et e e bt ea et e eeees e em s et e ebeeme e e e ebeeseeneentesneenneneeaneens 4.8 10.5
TIECIEST COSE ..ttt h ettt b bttt eb et e bt b e eb et e sae s be e st e e ebeebe et e naenbeene 20.1 25.7
BENETIS P ...ttt ettt ee (25.5) (24.9)
CUTTATIIMENE ...ttt ettt ettt et eete e e aeeeaeeeaseeabeeabeeaseeabeebeesseseesseeesseensesaseesseenseenseennes (23.3) —
ACtUArIAl LOSSES (GAINS) ...uvevitieiienieieeieeiteteete et etestesteeseeseessesseeseensesseeseessesseeseassensessesseensensenseeneensensenseans 19.7 (47.5)
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year.........ccccueiiiriiiiiininiiiiinccrcceseeee e 593.6 597.8
Funded Status—Plan Assets in Deficit of Projected Benefit Obligation............ccoocevirieiieiinieieiencne $ (72.7) $ (90.3)
Unamortized Amount Reported in AOCI at End of Year: -
Accumulated ACtUATIAl LLOSS ....ccvieiieiieiieieee ettt et ettt et st e st e s naeenaeennes $ (144.7) § (152.2)
Prior SEIVICE CTEAIT.c..coueiiiiiiiieiiiii ittt ettt sttt et e e b b eae — 0.4
Unamortized Amount Reported in AOCT at End of Year........ccoocveiieieieiiiicieieeeeeeeee e $ (144.7) $ (151.8)
Accumulated Benefit Obligation at End of Year........ccoccveviiriiieieiieiceeee e $ 5935 § 5739

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year presented in the preceding table under the headings, “2016”
and “2015” were December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to estimate the components of the
Projected Benefit Obligation for the Pension Plan at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

2016 2015
DIASCOUNE RALE ....eouviiiiiiieciiieie ettt ettt et e et e et e e b e et e esteesbe e beessaesseesssessseenseessessseenseensaenseenns 4.18% 4.47%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LEVELS .........ccoecuieviiiiieiiieiiieiieieseeceesiee e 2.56 3.15

Weighted-average asset allocations for the Pension Plan at December 31, 2016 and 2015 by asset category were:

ASSET CATEGORY 2016 2015
Cash and Short-term INVESTMENTS .......cc.ooviiieiieiiieiieierieeteee ettt ettt eaesbeeteeseesaesseessessesseeseessessesseans 2% 4%
Corporate Bonds and NOTES .......c.ecuieieriiriiiieieiteetteiesie ettt steste et etesse et esaesbeeseessessesseessensenseeseensessenseans 31 28
Common and Preferred STOCKS .......oviiiiiiiieieiet ettt e ere e 48 43
Exchange Traded FUNAS .......c.ooioiii ettt esaeene e 1 9
ONET ASSELS ...uvieutieieeteetee et et e et e ettt e e et e et e e be e teebeesteesseesseeessessaeasseesseesseasseenseesseessaesssesssesseessseasseessennsas 18 16
TOMAL ..ttt ettt et ettt et ettt te et e teeteetb e b e beete st e aeeteett et e eaeeteens e b e ereereensenaeeteens 100% 100%

The investment objective of the Pension Plan is to produce current income and long-term capital growth through a combination
of equity and fixed income investments which, together with appropriate employer contributions and any required employee
contributions, is adequate to provide for the payment of the benefit obligations of the Pension Plan. The assets of the Pension
Plan may be invested in fixed income and equity investments or any other investment vehicle or financial instrument deemed
appropriate. Fixed income investments may include cash and short-term instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate
bonds, mortgages and other fixed income investments. Equity investments may include various types of stock, such as large-
cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks, and may also include investments in investment companies, collective investment funds and
Kemper common stock (subject to Section 407 and other requirements of ERISA). The Pension Plan has not invested in
Kemper common stock.
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The trust investment committee for the Pension Plan, along with its third party fiduciary advisor, periodically reviews the
performance of the Pension Plan’s investments and asset allocation. Several external investment managers, one of which is
Fayez Sarofim & Co. (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements), manage the equity
investments of the trust for the Pension Plan. Each manager is allowed to exercise investment discretion, subject to limitations,
if any, established by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan. All other investment decisions are made by the
Company, subject to general guidelines as set by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan.

The Company determines its Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets based primarily on the Company’s
expectations of future returns, with consideration to historical returns, for the Pension Plan’s investments, based on target

allocations of the Pension Plan’s investments.

Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2016 are summarized below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government

Agencies and Authorities ..................
States and Political Subdivisions...........
Corporate Bonds and Notes....................

Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate...

Common Stocks:

Manufacturing..........ceceeevereereeeennnne.
Other Industries..........ccooevereeeeenne.

Other Equity Interests:

Collective Investment Funds.............
Exchange Traded Funds....................

Limited Liability Companies and

Limited Partnerships...........cc........
Short-term Investments..................cccveenee.

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Measured at
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Net Asset Value Fair Value
$ 212§ 86 $ — 3 — 3 29.8
— 3.1 — — 31
— 126.4 — — 126.4
— 6.2 — — 6.2
77.5 16.0 — — 93.5
88.1 — — — 88.1
— — — 60.7 60.7
6.0 — — — 6.0
— — — 93.5 93.5
11.8 — — — 11.8
14 — 0.4 — 1.8
$ 206.0 $ 160.3 $ 04 $ 1542 $ 520.9
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Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2015 are summarized below.

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Measured at
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Net Asset Value Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government
Agencies and Authorities.................. $ 192 $ — 3 — — 3 19.2
States and Political Subdivisions.......... — 3.2 — — 32
Corporate Bonds and Notes.................. — 122.2 — — 122.2
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate . — 6.1 — — 6.1
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing...........cceceeeververveennne. 77.9 16.2 — — 94.1
Other Industries.........ccccoevvveeevveeennnnn. 82.5 1.8 — — 84.3
Other Equity Interests:
Collective Investment Funds............ — — — 31.1 31.1
Exchange Traded Funds................... 472 — — — 47.2
Limited Liability Companies and
Limited Partnerships .................... — — — 78.2 78.2
Short-term Investments ................cccccue... 20.4 — — — 20.4
Receivables and Other...............cc.coveen. 1.1 — 0.4 — 1.5
Total...cooeiieeeeeee e $ 2483 % 1495 $ 04 $ 109.3 $ 507.5

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plan’s assets classified as Level 3 in the two
preceding tables for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015

Balance at Be@inning Of YEaI........ccociviiieiriiieiet ettt a e se b saenas $ 04 $ 0.4
Return on Plan ASSets HEld........ooouiiiuiiiieiiecieceee ettt saeeaees — —
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Nt .........cooviiiiiiiiiieiceie et e e e e e e e — —
Transters OUL OF LEVEL 3 .. .oioiiiiieii ettt eeaae st eebeeseeaeeeeas — —

Balance at ENd OF Y AT .......oouiiii ittt et $ 04 $ 0.4

The components of Comprehensive Pension Expense (Income) for the Pension Plan for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Service Cost Earned During the Year.........ccccveiiieiiiiieieieicciceeeee et $ 48 $ 105 § 8.7
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation..........cceeveeiiiiiiiieiieiieieeieeeeeeee e 20.1 25.7 24.8
Expected Return on Plan ASSCLS........ccevieieieriiieiieieie ettt eteesse e sre s s eseenees (32.7) (35.0) (34.9)
Amortization 0f Actuarial LOSS .......coerieiriiiriiieiiiree e 6.6 24.4 9.7
CUTtaIlMENTt GAIN ....evieiiieiieiieceecete ettt ettt teebe e steeeteeeteesabeesbeesseesseesseeseeseenseesees (0.3) — —
Pension Expense (Income) Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income................... (1.5) 25.6 8.3
Unrecognized Pension Loss (Gain) Arising During the Year........ccccoocevoeeiiiiiicncncenee. 0.7) (1.9 102.0
Prior Service Credit Arising During the Year..........ccceevieriiiiieiieie e — — (0.6)
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized Pension Loss.........ccceecivviieniienienieneenieneene, (6.3) (24.4) 9.7
Comprehensive Pension EXpense (INCOME) .........ccviivviierieriiiiieieiiereieeieie et $ @5 § (0.7)$ 100.0
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NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

The actuarial loss included in AOCI at December 31, 2016 is being amortized over approximately 24 years, the remaining
average estimated life expectancy of participants. The Company estimates that Pension Expense for the Pension Plan for the
year ended December 31, 2017 will include expense of $2.5 million resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated
actuarial loss included in AOCT at December 31, 2016.

Effective January 1, 2016, the Company changed its method for estimating the interest and service cost components of expense
recognized for its pension and other postretirement employee benefit plans. As a result, the Company elected to use a full yield
curve approach to estimate these components of benefit cost by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the
determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the change. The weighted-average
discount rate, service cost discount rate, interest cost discount rate, rate of increase in future compensation levels and expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets used to develop the components of Pension Expense for the Pension Plan for the periods
presented below were:

Years Ended December 31,

5/13/16 to 1/1/16 to

12/31/16 5/12/16 2015 2014
Weighted-average Discount Rate............ccevvivieieniiiieieiene e 3.94% 4.47% 4.10% 4.90%
Service Cost Discount Rate ..........cccevevieirinienieiiiniicieeenee e 4.22 4.78 — —
Interest Cost Discount Rate ........cccoveiieieiiinieieeceeeee e 3.18 3.69 — —
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels.........ccccooceiieieiiniiinenns 3.15 3.15 3.31 3.05
Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets..........ccoceeovereniiennnes 6.25 6.25 6.75 7.00

On August 12, 2016, the Company made a voluntary cash contribution of $9.0 million to the Pension Plan. The Company did
not contribute to the Pension Plan in 2015 or 2014. The Company does not expect that it will be required to contribute to the
Pension Plan in 2017, but could make a voluntary contribution pursuant to the maximum funding limits under ERISA.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service of certain participants
that remain eligible for a benefit accrual, as appropriate, are expected to be paid from the Pension Plan:

Years Ending December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2026
Estimated Pension Benefit Payments ...............c......... $§ 276 $ 288 $ 299 $§ 309 § 319 $ 1700

The Company also sponsors a non-qualified supplemental defined benefit pension plan (the “Supplemental Plan”). As a result
of the amendment to the Pension Plan, benefit accruals for all participants in the Supplemental Plan were also frozen effective
June 30, 2016. Accordingly, plan liabilities for the Supplemental Plan were also re-measured in the second quarter of 2016,
resulting in balances in accumulated unrecognized pension loss and unamortized prior service costs prior to the freeze of $1.6
million and $1.3 million, respectively. The Company recorded expense of $1.3 million in the second quarter of 2016 to
immediately recognize the remaining net unamortized prior service costs in the Supplemental Plan. The curtailment reduced the
Projected Benefit Obligation by $5.2 million at the re-measurement date. Accordingly, a curtailment gain of $3.6 million before
tax was recorded to recognize the reduction in the Projected Benefit Obligation that exceeded the accumulated unrecognized
pension loss prior to the freeze.

The unfunded liability related to the Supplemental Plan was $25.4 million and $30.4 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Pension income for the Supplemental Plan was $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared to
pension expense of $2.1 million and $1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively. An actuarial
gain of $4.8 million before taxes, an actuarial gain of $1.5 million before taxes and an actuarial loss of $7.0 million before taxes
are included in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company also sponsors several defined contribution benefit plans covering most of its employees. The Company made
contributions to those plans of $8.4 million, $7.8 million and $7.3 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

111



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 17. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company sponsors an other than pension postretirement employee benefit plan (“OPEB”) that provides medical, dental
and/or life insurance benefits to approximately 500 retired and 225 active employees (the “OPEB Plan”). The Company has
historically self-insured the benefits under the OPEB Plan. The medical plan generally provides for a limited number of years
of medical insurance benefits at retirement based on the participant’s attained age at retirement and number of years of service
until specified dates and generally has required participant contributions, with most contributions adjusted annually. On
December 30, 2016, the Company amended the OPEB Plan and, effective December 31, 2016, will no longer offer coverage to
post-65 Medicare-eligible retirees and Medicare-eligible spouses under the self-insured portion of its coverage. Rather,
beginning on January 1, 2017, the OPEB Plan will offer access to a private, third-party Medicare exchange and will provide
varying levels of a Company-determined subsidy via health reimbursement accounts to certain Medicare-eligible retirees and
spouses in order to help fund a portion of the participants’ cost. Further, the amendment eliminates the requirement for such
participants to contribute to the OPEB Plan. In conjunction with the amendment, the Company recorded a pre-tax reduction to
its Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation of $11.0 million through Other Comprehensive Income. This prior service
credit will be amortized into income over the remaining average life of the OPEB Plan’s participants.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of Year.........ccveiiiiiiiiiieiecieeeeeee et $ — 3 —
EMpPLoyer CONtIIDULIONS ... .ocuviiiiiiiieiieieeitesiee sttt ettt et e b e e e ete e beesseesseesseessseensesssesnseenseensaenseenne 34 34
Plan Participants’ CONIIDULIONS. .....cveeruieiieriieriiertiesiteeteeteeteeebeeteeteeteesbeesseesseesseessseenseensesnseenseeseenseene 1.0 1.2
BENETItS PAId ...viieviiiiiiie ettt et ettt et ettt ettt et e e beeteeabeereereereens “4.4) (4.6)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End Of Year.......cocviriiiiiiiniiic et — —
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year.........ccccoccveviviinenciinencinenenn. 29.6 31.1
TS 0 (ST e 1] A TSP 0.1 0.2
TIEEIEST COSE ..ttt ettt ettt bttt e e et bt e st en b e et e es e em e e ae e bt es e eneeeeeeseene et e st ene et enneeneens 0.8 1.0
Plan Participants’ CONIIDULIONS. ......c.eerueeriierierieestiesiesteeteeteeeteeteeseeseeteesseesssesseessseesseessesnseenseenseenseenns 1.0 1.2
BENETItS PAIA ....ooiviiiiiiieiie et ettt e et e b e e et e e et e e eeaaeeeraeens “4.4) (4.6)
Medicare Part D SubSidy RECEIVE ........ccvirviriiiiieiiiiciieieicee ettt sseeneens 0.3 0.3
Plan AMENAMENLS ......ccuoiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ettt e e te et e ete e beeeaeeetaeeaeeetbeenaeeaseeabeebeereereeans (11.0) —
ACtUATIAl LOSS (GAIN) ...evieuieieitieiieieeie ettt et te sttt e et estesteeseenteeseeseeseesseeseessensessesseensensenseeneensensenseans (1.3) 0.4
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at End of Year.........cccoooiiiiiiieiiniieeceeeee 15.1 29.6
Funded Status—Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets ................... $ (ds51) $ (29.6)
Unamortized Actuarial Gain Reported in AOCI at End of Year........c.occoooveviiiiiiiiiiiicieeceeee $ 276 $ 1638

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year in the preceding table under the headings “2016” and “2015”
were December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop the components of the
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

2016 2015
DISCOUNE RALE ...ttt ettt 3.60% 3.70%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels .........cccoeoiiiiiiiiiiiiniieiicencceese e 2.60 2.64

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31,
2016 was 6.75% for 2017, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2024 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical
benefits and 10.25% for 2017, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2024 and remaining at that level thereafter for
prescription drug benefits. The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit
Obligation at December 31, 2015 was 7.0% for 2016, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2024 and remaining at that level

thereafter for medical benefits and 11.0% for 2016, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2024 and remaining at that level
thereafter for prescription drug benefits.
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A one-percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would have increased the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2016 by $0.6 million and 2016 OPEB expense by an insignificant amount. A
one-percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would have increased the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2015 by $1.5 million and 2015 OPEB expense by $0.1 million.

The components of Comprehensive OPEB Expense (Income) for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Service Cost Earned DUring the Year..........ocvcveivveviiiiiieieeiieeeeieeeeeee e $ 0.1 $ 02 $ 0.2
Interest Cost on Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation ............ccccvvcevvcncniccncnne. 0.8 1.0 1.1
Amortization of Actuarial GaiN...........cceeviiiieiiiiieiie et sae e e 1.4 (1.4) (1.8)
OPEB Income Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income...........coocovieveiiniiennn. 0.5) (0.2) 0.5)
Unrecognized OPEB Loss (Gain) Arising During the Year........ccccoocoveviirinincinccncecenee, 1.3) 0.4 2.0)
Prior Service Credit Arising During the Year.........cccceevveriiiiieiieeiecie et (11.0) — —
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized OPEB Gain............cccccoovvveveniieieieieeeeeeennnn 14 1.4 1.8
Comprehensive OPEB Expense (INCOME).........ceeieriiriiiieieiieieeieiesieeeeeie e $ (114) §$ 1.6 $ 0.7)

The Company estimates that OPEB Expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 will include income of $3.1 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial gain and prior service credit included in AOCI at
December 31, 2016.

Effective January 1, 2016, the Company changed its method for estimating the interest and service cost components of expense
recognized for its pension and other postretirement employee benefit plans. As a result, the Company elected to use a full yield
curve approach to estimate these components of benefit cost by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the
determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the change. The weighted-average
discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop OPEB Expense for the years ended

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

2016 2015 2014
Weighted-average DiSCOUNt RALE .........ccevieiiriiiieieiiciieeeeeieete et 3.70% 3.40% 4.00%
Service Cost DISCOUNE RALE ......ccueviuiiiiiiiieiiieriee et 4.21 — —
Interest Cost DISCOUNt RALE ........ceiiiiriiiiiiiiieietieeeee ettt 2.90 — —
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels........c.cccvvirinicinininiiiininiieincnceeeaens 2.64 2.68 2.10

The Company expects to contribute $1.8 million, net of the expected Medicare Part D subsidy, to its OPEB Plan to fund benefit
payments in 2017.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2026
Estimated Benefit Payments:
Excluding Medicare Part D Subsidy.........ccccccue.. $ 1.8 $ 1.8 $ 1.7 $ 1.6 $ 15 8§ 59
Expected Medicare Part D Subsidy ..........ccccoen..... — — — — — —
Net Estimated Benefit Payments ............ccccoeeoeeennnne. $ 1.8 % 1.8 § 1.7 % 1.6 $ 1.5 % 5.9
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NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses.
The Company conducts its operations through two operating segments: Property & Casualty Insurance and Life & Health Insurance.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s principal products are personal automobile insurance, both preferred and
nonstandard, homeowners insurance, other personal insurance and commercial automobile insurance. These products are
distributed primarily through independent agents and brokers. The Life & Health Insurance segment’s principal products are
individual life, accident, health and property insurance. These products are distributed by career agents employed by the
Company and independent agents and brokers.

The Company’s earned premiums are derived in the United States. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Capital expenditures for long-lived assets by operating segment are immaterial.

It is the Company’s management practice to allocate certain corporate expenses, primarily compensation costs for corporate
employees and related facility costs, included in Interest and Other Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income to its
insurance operations. The amount of such allocated corporate expenses was $52.9 million, $43.4 million and $42.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company does not allocate Net Realized Gains on Sales
of Investments, Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings, interest expense on debt or postretirement benefit plans, and
actuarial gains and losses on its postretirement benefit plans to its operating segments.

Segment Assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .........c.eiuieieiiieiieiieie ettt sttt st e s eae e enaesseeseens $2,815.1 $2,749.0
Life & HEAlth INSUTAINCE .......uvviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee ettt e et e s et e e et e e s e eaateeseenaaeeesssaaeeesannnes 4,888.7 4,733.9
Corporate and Other, INET ... ..ottt ettt e et ee et eseesee e st e e eteeneeneenaenreans 506.7 553.2
TOTAL ASSEES ...ttt ettt et e e e et e et e et et e e e eae e e et e e e et e e eateeeeaeee st e e eaaeeeaeeeenaeeenteeeanes $ 8,210.5 §$ 8,036.1

Earned Premiums by product line for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Personal AULOMODILE .........c.oiiiiieet ettt ettt eae s $1,2446 $1,027.7 $ 8314
HOMEOWIETS ...ttt sttt ettt et ettt et e bt e aee b e seee 271.9 286.3 3124
Other Personal Property and Casualty INSUTAnCe ..........c.ccceeveiereninenieinenenceeenieseeeeee 119.2 122.1 127.4
Commercial AULOMODILE ........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee ettt ebe e beesaeeseee e 53.3 54.5 54.8
L ettt ettt b et ettt e beett e st e beere e st et e ereeaeenes 381.6 374.1 387.6
Accident and HEalth .........cocouiiiiiiiiiiiciceeeee ettt e 149.4 144.9 148.6
Total EArned PIremIUITIS ......cooviiiiiiieeie ettt et e eae e e eaaeeenaeeeneeeeneas $2,220.0 $2,009.6 $ 1,862.2
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Segment Revenues, including a reconciliation to Total Revenues, for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016

2015

2014

Segment Revenues:
Property & Casualty Insurance:

Earned PremMIUMIS . .......cooviiuiieiieieie ettt ettt ettt e eas et e etesaeeeeeeeeaeeaseanenann $1,614.8 $1,4152 $1,249.5
Net [nvestment INCOME......c...evuiiiiiiiiiieiee e 72.4 73.3 72.7
Other INCOME ....ouviiiieiieciiece ettt ettt ettt e e ta e et e s tb e e b e esaeesbeesbeesseenseenseas 0.5 0.6 0.5
Total Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .........ccuiiiiiiiiiieiieiee e 1,687.7 1,489.1 1,322.7
Life & Health Insurance:
Earned PremIUMS . .....ccviiieiieiiieie ettt ettt et ettt ettt e eteeseaessbeenaeenseenbeensaenseenneen 605.2 594.4 612.7
Net INVestment INCOME..........iiuieiiiiiiiieieeeeeestter ettt e e s e e eees 213.2 214.2 218.7
OthEr INCOMIE ...ttt ettt et et e e sbeesaessenseeseennensens 2.8 2.4 0.9
Total Life & Health INSUTANCE..........cceiieieiieieieecieeeeee e 821.2 811.0 832.3
Total SegMEnt REVEINUES .......cccuiiiiiiieieii ettt see e enaens 2,508.9 2,300.1 2,155.0
Net Realized Gains on the Sales of INVEStMENTS ........c.occvieeiiiiiieiiecieieceee e 33.1 52.1 39.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........ccooeveiiiienenininieninciceeeceenen (32.7) (27.2) (15.2)
OBNCT ettt ettt b et ettt ae et b et e te e st et e aeess et e eaeereennens 12.6 15.8 17.7
TOtAl REVETIUES .....eeivieiieeiit ettt ettt et ettt ettt e sttt e s et e sateenseenbeenbeenbeeseenseennes

$2,521.9 §$2,340.8 $ 2,196.6

Segment Operating Profit, including a reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes, for the years

ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Segment Operating Profit (Loss):
Property & Casualty INSULANCE .........c.eevieieriiriieieieiiee ettt eseenes $ @172 $ 237 $ 271
Life & Health INSUTANCE.......c.ccuiiiiriiiiiiiiiee ettt 45.7 109.7 141.9
Total Segment Operating Profit..........c.coeiiiniiiiiiiniiiiecece e 28.5 133.4 169.0
Corporate and Other Operating LOSS........veueiuirieieieriesiieiee ettt (254) (48.9) (32.7)
Total Operating Profit..........ccooiiiiiiie e 31 84.5 136.3
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS .........cceririiieriiiiiieieeieiee e 331 52.1 39.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings........c.occeeevieviieriienienienieniencesie e eie e (32.7) (27.2) (15.2)
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt.............c.ccccooiiiiiiiii, — 0.1 —
Income from Continuing Operations before Income TaXes .........cccoeveveeiinininiiiiiincneenens $ 35 § 1003 $ 160.2
Segment Net Operating Income, including a reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations, for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Segment Net Operating Income (Loss):
Property & Casualty INSULANCE .........c.ecieieriieiieieieieeeeeete sttt sse e eneenes $ @9 § 267 $ 249
Life & Health INSUTANCE. ......c.couiiiiiiiieiiiiieee et 30.3 71.7 91.8
Total Segment Net Operating INCOME .........ccverueiirieiiiieieierieee e 27.4 98.4 116.7
Corporate and Other Net Operating oSS ......cc.eouveierieririeieece et (15.0) (28.5) (19.6)
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME .........ceueiiiriieieriiieiieieie et 124 69.9 97.1
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS .......ccouevuiriirieriiniiieieeeceeeseeiee e 21.5 33.9 254
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings .........ccceevevierienienieniieeiecieeie e (21.2) (17.7) 9.9)
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt ........c.cccuiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeseeese e — 5.9 —
Income from Continuing OPETAtiONS..........ccvevevireereriererieeereeeeteteeeeree et sese st e eseae e sees s $ 127 $ 802 $ 1126

115



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs by Operating Segment for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014
Property & Casualty INSUTANCE. .........ccvcvevirveriiereeiietieeeteee et eseee et esees st etessesese st esesseseesenas $ 2521 $§ 213.1 $ 1875
Life & Health INSUTANCE .........oooiueiieiie e 47.2 44.3 47.9

TOtal AINOTTIZATION. ...ttt et et e e e et e e et e e e e e e e eeeeeeneeeeanas $ 2993 $§ 2574 $ 2354

NOTE 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The Company accounts for its former Unitrin Business Insurance operations as discontinued operations.

Summary financial information included in Income from Discontinued Operations for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2016 2015 2014

Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes:

Change in Estimate of Retained Liabilities Arising from Discontinued Operations....... 6.3 8.6 3.0
INCOME TaX EXPEINSE.....ecuiiiieiieiiieciieetie ettt ettt et sttt e e e saaeesaeenbeesbeenaeenseennes 2.2) 3.1 (L.1)
Income from Discontinued OPErations..........c..ceceeeveiriereeieeteiteeeeereereereeeeeseese e eseere e eneens $ 41 $ 55 % 1.9

Income from Discontinued Operations Per Unrestricted Share:
BASIC ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e aes $ 008 $ 010 $ 0.04
DIHIULEA ...ttt ettt se et et s ettt e st s s e b enteseeseeteneesenn $ 008 $ 010 $ 0.04

In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to the date of the sale. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves reported
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include $38.3 million and $50.3 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, for the retained liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, changes in the Company’s estimate of such retained
liabilities after the sale are reported as a separate component of the results of discontinued operations. See Note 6, “Property
and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining cash used by operating
activities to pay losses and LAE related to discontinued operations.

NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more
likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty
insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
that follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions, and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property and
casualty insurance businesses.
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Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2016
to December 31, 2016 is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Property & Casualty Insurance Segment:
RELAINE ...ttt ettt n ettt ea e $ — S 50.0 —%
1St LaYEr Of COVETAZE .. cuvieureeeiieiieieeteeteestteseesttesteesiaeesaeeereenseeseenseenseessaessaesnaesnsenns 50.0 150.0 95.0
2Nd Layer OF COVETAZE .....eeveerieiieiieitesiee sttt ettt et et steesaeesaeestaessaeeneesnne e 150.0 350.0 95.0

Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2015
to December 31, 2015 is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
REEAINEA ..vvieiieiieiet ettt ettt b ettt sesenas $ — 50.0 —%
ISt Layer Of COVEIAZE. ... .cueiuieieiieeieieieetieiteee sttt ettt ettt et esaessesreeseensenseeneeneens 50.0 150.0 95.0
20d Layer Of COVETAZE .....cuvvuiriiieiieiiiiirieieieetestet ettt sttt 150.0 350.0 95.0

Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2014
to December 31, 2014 is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Property & Casualty Insurance Segment:
RELAINEGA ...ttt ettt se e $ — 3 50.0 —%
1St LaYEr Of COVETAZE ..cuvieuieeiiieiieieetierteesteeeteesteestreeiteesaeereenbeesseenseenseessaesssessnesnnenns 50.0 100.0 95.0
21nd Layer 0 COVETAZE .....eevveerieiieiieieesiee sttt eite ettt e ettt e e esaeestaessaesneesnee e 100.0 200.0 95.0
3rd Layer OF COVEIAZE ...ccvveuieieieieiieieieeie ettt et te et esaessesre e s eseeseeneessesseesaessenns 200.0 400.0 95.0

In the event that the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by any of its
catastrophe reinsurance programs presented in the three preceding tables exceed the retention for that particular layer, each of
the programs required one reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment is
required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s catastrophe reinsurance in 2016, 2015 and 2014 also included reinsurance
coverage from the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund (the “FHCF”) for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than
those described above. The Life & Health Insurance segment also purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in
Florida. Except for the coverage provided by the FHCEF, the Life & Health Insurance segment has not carried any other
catastrophe reinsurance since 2012, primarily due to actions taken by the Life & Health Insurance segment to reduce its
exposures to catastrophes.
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Reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs and the FHCF Program reduced earned
premiums for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE. .........ccvcvevirveriiereeiietieeeteee et eseee et esees st etessesese st esesseseesenas $ 119 § 128 $§ 176
Life & Health INSUTANCE .......coueuieiiiiiiiiicieiiitccctse ettt 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums..........oo.eeeereieiiiieiieniieieeneeceee e $ 120 § 129 $§$ 177

Catastrophe losses and LAE (including reserve development), net of reinsurance recoveries, for the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014 by business segment are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2015 2014

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE. .........cveveuirieriiereeiietieeeteeese et eseee s tess et st etessesessssesessesessanas $ 904 $ 566 $ 807
Life & Health INSUTANCE ......cc.eeiiiiiieieieeie et 54 3.9 3.1
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccocooiiiiiiiiieeeeee e $ 958 $§ 605 $ 838

Total catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $19.3 million, $7.8 million
and $14.7 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported favorable
catastrophe reserve development of $19.2 million, $7.9 million and $15.8 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
Life & Health Insurance segment reported favorable catastrophe reserve development of $0.1 million in 2016, adverse
catastrophe reserve development of $0.1 million in 2015 and adverse catastrophe reserve development of $1.1 million in 2014.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of actual reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The Company’s
estimates of direct catastrophe losses are generally based on inspections by claims adjusters and historical loss development
experience for areas that have not been inspected or for claims that have not yet been reported. The Company’s estimates of
direct catastrophe losses are based on the coverages provided by its insurance policies. The Company’s homeowners and
dwelling insurance policies do not provide coverage for losses caused by floods, but generally provide coverage for physical
damage caused by wind or wind-driven rain. Accordingly, the Company’s estimates of direct losses for homeowners and
dwelling insurance do not include losses caused by flood. Depending on the policy, automobile insurance may provide coverage
for losses caused by flood. Estimates of the number and severity of claims ultimately reported are influenced by many
variables, including, but not limited to, repair or reconstruction costs and determination of cause of loss that are difficult to
quantify and will influence the final amount of claim settlements. All these factors, coupled with the impact of the availability
of labor and material on costs, require significant judgment in the reserve setting process. A change in any one or more of these
factors is likely to result in an ultimate net claim cost different from the estimated reserve. The Company’s estimates of indirect
losses from wind pools and joint underwriting associations are based on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, actual
or estimated assessments provided by or received from such entities, insurance industry estimates of losses, and estimates of the
Company’s market share in the assessable states. Actual assessments may differ materially from these estimated amounts.
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NOTE 21. OTHER REINSURANCE

In addition to the reinsurance programs described in Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide
greater diversification of risk and to minimize exposures on larger risks. The ceding of insurance does not discharge the primary
liability of the original insurer. Accordingly, insurance reserve liabilities are reported gross of any estimated recovery from
reinsurers in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the insurance reserve liability and are included in Other Receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earned Premiums ceded on long-duration and short-duration policies were $19.0 million, $20.6 million and $26.0 million for
the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, of which $12.0 million, $12.9 million and $17.7 million,
respectively, was related to catastrophe reinsurance. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information regarding the Company’s catastrophe reinsurance programs. Certain insurance
subsidiaries assume business from other insurance companies and involuntary pools. Earned Premiums assumed on long-
duration and short-duration policies were $67.3 million, $60.0 million and $57.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Trinity and Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (“Capitol”) are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement
whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by Capitol, subject to a cap, for ceded losses for dwelling coverage.
Earned Premiums assumed by Trinity from Capitol were $21.3 million, $21.8 million and $21.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Capitol is a mutual insurance company and, accordingly, is owned by its
policyholders. Trinity and Old Reliable Casualty Company (“ORCC”), a subsidiary of Capitol, are parties to a quota share
reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by ORCC, subject to a cap for ceded losses for
dwelling coverage. Earned Premiums assumed by Trinity from ORCC were $6.2 million, $6.5 million and $6.7 million for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Five employees of the Company serve as directors of Capitol’s five member board of directors. Nine employees of the
Company also serve as directors of ORCC’s nine member board of directors. Kemper’s subsidiary, United Insurance, provides
claims and administrative services to Capitol and ORCC. In addition, agents appointed by Kemper’s subsidiary, The Reliable
Life Insurance Company, and who are employed by United Insurance, are also appointed by Capitol and ORCC to sell property
insurance products for the Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment. The Company also provides certain investment
services to Capitol and ORCC.
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NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company classifies its Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities as available for sale and reports these
investments at fair value. The Company has elected the fair value option method of accounting for investments in certain hedge
funds and, accordingly, reports these investments at fair value. The Company classifies certain investments in mutual funds
included in Other Investments as trading securities and reports these investments at fair value. The Company has a derivative
instrument that is classified as a cash flow hedge and reported in Other Assets at fair value at December 31, 2016. The
Company has no material liabilities that are measured and reported at fair value.

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2016 is
summarized below.

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Measured at Net
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Asset Value Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government
Agencies and Authorities............... $ 1195 $ 2168 $ — — 3 336.3
States and Political Subdivisions....... — 1,711.1 3.8 — 1,714.9
Foreign Governments..........c.ccceuee... — 34 — — 34
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes........ccccoeeveveeenn. — 2,541.6 403.2 — 2,944.8
Redeemable Preferred Stocks....... — — 0.6 — 0.6
Collateralized Loan Obligations... — 19.3 103.5 — 122.8
Other Mortgage- and Asset-
backed ......coovvivienieiiiiieee — 2.1 — — 2.1
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities.... 119.5 4,494.3 511.1 — 5,124.9
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real
Estate......ccooovvvvviiiirieieieeeeeeeeen, — 59.6 — — 59.6
Other Industries .........ccoceeevervenenne. — 114 11.5 — 22.9
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real
Estate.....cccovienienieieiieriencee 26.4 — 7.1 — 33.5
Other Industries ..........c.cceeeveennene 0.4 0.2 11.1 — 11.7
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds................ 144.4 — — — 144.4
Limited Liability Companies and
Limited Partnerships ................. — — 40.9 168.7 209.6
Total Investments in Equity Securities... 171.2 71.2 70.6 168.7 481.7
Fair Value Option Investments:
Limited Liability Companies and
Limited Partnerships Hedge Funds — — — 111.4 111.4
Other Investments:
Trading Securities........cooevvereereennnne. 53 — — — 53
Other Assets:
Derivative Instrument Classified as
Cash Flow Hedge.........ccccovevrennenn — 1.6 — — 1.6
TOtal it $ 296.0 $ 4,567.1 $ 581.7 $ 280.1 $ 5,7249

At December 31, 2016, the Company had unfunded commitments to invest an additional $135.2 million in certain limited
liability investment companies and limited partnerships that will be included in Other Equity Interests when funded.
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The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2015 is
summarized below.

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Measured at Net
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Asset Value Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government
Agencies and Authorities............... $ 1249 $ 1957  § — 3 — 3 320.6
States and Political Subdivisions ...... — 1,622.6 — — 1,622.6
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes.........ccccoueeeuenene. — 2,376.5 436.3 — 2,812.8
Redeemable Preferred Stocks....... — — 3.8 — 3.8
Collateralized Loan Obligations... — — 87.3 — 87.3
Other Mortgage- and Asset-
backed.......ccoovevienienieiieeiee — 1.4 3.8 — 52
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities.... 124.9 4,196.2 531.2 — 4,852.3
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real
Estate......coooovvviiiiiiie. — 79.8 51 — 84.9
Other Industries .........ccceevevveeenenns — 6.2 12.8 — 19.0
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real
Estate......ccoooienieniiieieieeee 16.6 6.6 — — 23.2
Other Industries .........cccoeevervennnnne. 0.6 0.8 12.1 — 13.5
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds............... 177.1 — — — 177.1
Limited Liability Companies and
Limited Partnerships................. — — 45.6 159.9 205.5
Total Investments in Equity Securities .. 194.3 934 75.6 159.9 523.2
Fair Value Option Investments:
Limited Liability Companies and
Limited Partnerships Hedge
Funds......ccoooeeviieiiieieee — — — 164.5 164.5
Other Investments:
Trading Securities .......c.ccovevvereeennennee 4.7 — — — 4.7
Total oo $ 3239 §$ 4,289.6 $ 606.8 3244 § 55447

The Company’s investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 1 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 1 in the two
preceding tables consist either of investments in publicly-traded common stocks or exchange traded funds. The Company’s
investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of investments in
corporate bonds, obligations of states and political subdivisions, and bonds and mortgage-backed securities of U.S. government
agencies. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily
consist of investments in preferred stocks. The Company uses a leading, nationally recognized provider of market data and
analytics to price the vast majority of the Company’s Level 2 measurements. The provider utilizes evaluated pricing models that
vary by asset class and incorporate available trade, bid and other market information. Because many fixed maturity securities
do not trade on a daily basis, the provider’s evaluated pricing applications apply available information through processes such
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as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings, and matrix pricing to prepare evaluations. In addition,
the provider uses model processes to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The pricing provider’s models and
processes also take into account market convention. For each asset class, teams of its evaluators gather information from market
sources and integrate relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news into the evaluated pricing
applications and models. The Company generally validates the measurements obtained from its primary pricing provider by
comparing them with measurements obtained from one additional pricing provider that provides either prices from recent
market transactions or quotes in inactive markets or evaluations based on its own proprietary models.

The Company investigates significant differences related to the values provided. On completion of its investigation,
management exercises judgment to determine the price selected and whether adjustments, if any, to the price obtained from the
Company’s primary pricing provider would warrant classification of the price as Level 3. In instances where a measurement
cannot be obtained from either pricing provider, the Company generally will evaluate bid prices from one or more binding
quotes obtained from market makers to value investments in inactive markets and classified by the Company as Level 2. The
Company generally classifies securities when it receives non-binding quotes or indications as Level 3 securities unless the
Company can validate the quote or indication against recent transactions in the market.

The Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
privately placed securities not rated by a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization and are priced primarily using a
market yield approach. A market yield approach uses a risk-free rate plus a credit spread depending on the underlying credit
profile of the security. For floating rate securities, the risk-free rate used in the market yield is the contractual floating rate of
the security. For each individual security, the Company or the Company’s third party appraiser gathers information from market
sources, relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news and determines an appropriate market yield
for each security. The market yield selected is then used to discount the estimated future cash flows of the security to determine
the fair value. The Company separately evaluates market yields based upon asset class to assess the reasonableness of the
recorded fair value. For non-investment-grade Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3, the two primary
asset classes are senior debt and junior debt. Senior debt includes those securities that receive first priority in a liquidation and
junior debt includes any fixed maturity security with other than first priority in a liquidation.

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for fixed maturity investments in corporate securities classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2016.

Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable ‘stgl‘ggg

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
Investment-grade ...........cceeveriieieieniiiieieieee e Market Yield $ 106.1 2.7% - 51% 3.8%
Non-investment-grade:

SeNIOr DEDL ... Market Yield 142.2 48 - 140 9.6

JUNIOr Dbt ..o Market Yield 143.3 9.5 - 200 13.0
Collateralized Loan Obligations...........ccoeveeeerenienierenenieieeneenn Market Yield 103.5 3.7 - 9.9 6.3
OBRET .. Various 16.0
Total Fixed Maturity Investments in Corporate Securities......... $ S11.1
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The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for fixed maturity investments in corporate securities classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2015.

‘Weighted
Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable Average
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
INVestmMENnt-rade ..........ccoevvivuiirieiiiiiieeeeeieee e Market Yield $  98.7 2.6% - 6.9% 4.4%
Non-investment-grade:
Senior DEbt ......oocviiiiiiiicie et Market Yield 114.2 59 - 15.3 10.4
JUNIOT DEbt....eiiiiiiiiciicecee e Market Yield 216.3 82 - 262 13.6
Collateralized Loan Obligations...........ccceevvveeveeireriecieesieereenne. Market Yield 87.3 3.1 - 10.8 6.1
OhET . Various 14.7
Total Fixed Maturity Investments in Corporate Securities......... § 5312

For an investment in a fixed maturity security, an increase in the yield used to determine the fair value of the security will
decrease the fair value of the security. A decrease in the yield used to determine fair value will increase the fair value of the
security, but the fair value increase is generally limited to par, unless callable at a premium, if the security is currently callable.

The Company’s other investments that are classified as Level 3 primarily consist of Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships, but also certain Preferred Stocks and Common Stocks. The Company either uses valuations provided by third
party fund managers, third party appraisers, or that are generated internally. These valuations typically employ various
valuation techniques commonly used in the industry, including earnings multiples based on comparable public securities,
industry-specific non-earnings based multiples, market yields based on comparable public securities and discounted cash flow
models.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2016 is presented below.

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate States and Other Preferred
Bonds Political Redeemable Collateralized Mortgage- and Other
and Sub- Preferred Loan and Asset- Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes divisions Stocks Obligations backed Stocks Interests Total

Balance at Beginning of
Year. oo $ 4363 $ — 3 38 § 873 $ 38 $ 300 $ 456 $ 606.8

Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated

Statements of Income .. (23.0) 0.3) — — 0.4 1.7) (1.6) (26.2)
Included in Other
Comprehensive Income... 0.9 — — 4.3 (0.3) 34 2.4) 5.9
Purchases.......c..ccoeevevueenneene 203.7 — — 29.1 — 7.9 3.9 244.6
Settlements...........c.ccoeeveee.ne. (85.4) — 3.2) (5.0) 3.0) (5.2) — (101.8)
Sales ....coveveiecieieeeeeee (114.5) — — (1.9) — “4.7) “4.6) (125.7)
Transfers into Level 3.......... — 4.1 — — — — — 4.1
Transfers out of Level 3....... (14.8) — — (10.3) 0.9) — — (26.0)
Balance at End of Year......... $ 4032 $ 38 § 0.6 $ 1035 §$ — $ 297 §$§ 409 § S581.7

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2016. All transfers into or out of Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2016 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.
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Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Other Preferred
Corporate  Redeemable Collateralized  Mortgage- and Other
Bonds and Preferred Loan and Asset- Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Obligations backed Stocks Interests Total

Balance at Beginning of Year..... § 3606 $ 6.7 $ 644 $ 39§ 388 §$ 440 § 5184
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated

Statement of Income............. (9.4) (1.6) 0.6 — (2.6) (5.2) (18.2)
Included in Other
Comprehensive Income ........... (7.4) 0.7) (2.2) 0.1 1.4 1.7 (7.3)
Purchases ..........cceeevevievieieiennnn. 241.6 — 39.5 1.3 8.1 6.3 296.8
Settlements..........cccceeveevievieienennn (65.5) (0.6) (7.5) 0.1) 0.7) (1.2) (75.6)
SaleS..oviieieieieeeeee e (73.6) — (7.5) (1.2) (5.0) — (87.3)
Transfers into Level 3.................. — — — — — — —
Transfers out of Level 3................ (10.0) — — — (10.0) — (20.0)
Balance at End of Year................. $ 4363 $ 38 % 873 3 3.8 % 300 $ 456 $§ 606.8

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2015. The transfers out of Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2015 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.

The fair value of Debt is estimated using quoted prices for similar liabilities in markets that are not active. The inputs used in
the valuation are considered Level 2 measurements. The fair value of Short-term Investments is estimated using inputs that are
considered Level 1 or Level 2 measurements.

NOTE 23. CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of its businesses, the Company is involved in legal proceedings, including lawsuits, regulatory
examinations, audits and inquiries. Except with regard to the matters discussed below, based on currently available information,
the Company does not believe that it is reasonably possible that any of its pending legal proceedings will have a material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Over the last several years there have been an array of initiatives that seek, in various ways, to impose new duties on life
insurance companies to proactively search for information related to the deaths of their insureds. These initiatives, which can
include legislation, unclaimed property audits, market conduct examinations and related litigation, could have the effect of
altering the terms of Kemper’s life insurance subsidiaries’ existing life insurance contracts by imposing requirements that did
not exist and were not contemplated at the time those companies entered into such contracts.

In the third quarter of 2016, the Company voluntarily began implementing a comprehensive process to compare its life
insurance records against one or more death verification databases to determine if any of its insureds may be deceased. See
Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion
of the estimated financial impact of such voluntary action recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Any
attempt to estimate the ultimate outcomes of the aforementioned initiatives entails uncertainties including, but not limited to (i)
the scope and interpretation of DMF statutes, including the matching criteria and methodologies to be used in comparing policy
records against a DMF, (ii) the universe of policies affected, (iii) the results of audits, examinations and other actions by
regulators and (iv) related litigation.
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Mr. Christopher B. Sarofim, a director of Kemper, is Vice Chairman and a member of the board of directors of Fayez Sarofim
& Co. (“FS&C”), a registered investment advisory firm. FS&C provided investment management services with respect to
certain assets of Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, under an agreement between the parties. Trinity had $85.8 million in assets
managed by FS&C at December 31, 2014. In 2014, Trinity began reducing the amount of assets managed by FS&C. Trinity
completed the disposal of all the assets managed by FS&C in 2015. Investment Expenses incurred in connection with such
agreement were $0.1 million and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

The Company’s Pension Plan had $148.4 million, $137.2 million and $159.2 million in assets managed by FS&C at
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, under an agreement with FS&C whereby FS&C provides investment
management services with respect to certain funds of the plan. Investment Expenses incurred in connection with such
agreement were $0.8 million, $0.4 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

With respect to the Company’s defined contribution plans, until November 4, 2014, one of the alternative investment choices
afforded to participating employees was the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund, an open-end, diversified managed investment fund.
FS&C provides investment management services to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund as a sub-investment advisor. The Company
did not compensate FS&C for services provided to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund.

The Company believes that the transactions described above have been provided on terms no less favorable to the Company
than could have been negotiated with non-affiliated third parties.

As described in Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company also has certain
relationships with Capitol, a mutual insurance company which is owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, ORCC.
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NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:
Earned Premiums.........ceeiiieieeieiiecieeiceie e
Net Investment INCOME..........ccouieviiiiiiiieiie e
Other INCOME ......ccveiiieiieciiecieeece e
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments...............cccccveenneene.
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses.....................

Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
INCOME.......ciiiiiiiiiiii e

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........c.cccenee.
Total REVENUES ......oocviiiiiiiciiriciciceec e
Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPEenses..........ccoccvevveviieieeienieiieieieee e

Insurance EXPenses ......cccoovuiiiiiieniiiiiiiieseeeeeee e

Interest and Other EXPenses ..........cccoovvevevieriiieeieniieeeeeseeeieeeeens
Total EXPENSES.....uccueeeiiiiiiieiieiiicieeieeteste ettt be st ae e enens
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes..
Income Tax Benefit (EXPEnse)........ccccoevveeeevienieeeeieniieieeeeieeieeneens
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations ..............cceeveeeerierueenenns
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations..............cccecververreneens
Net INCOmME (LLOSS) ..viiiiiieiiieciee e

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted
Share:

Year

Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended

Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016

$ 5460 $ 553.7 § 5589 § 561.4 $2,220.0

67.0 73.7 77.7 79.9 298.3
0.8 0.6 0.8 1.0 3.2
6.8 5.6 11.6 9.1 33.1
(9.6) (6.4) (8.3) 87  (33.0)
0.3 — — — 0.3
9.3) (6.4) (8.3) 87  (32.7)
611.3 627.2 640.7 642.7  2,521.9
436.2 436.1 490.2 4183  1,780.8
159.3 167.8 161.7 158.5 647.3
22.3 20.7 22.0 25.3 90.3
617.8 624.6 673.9 602.1  2,518.4
(6.5) 2.6 (33.2) 40.6 35
4.3 1.5 14.9 (11.5) 9.2
2.2) 4.1 (18.3) 29.1 12.7
0.1 (0.1) 2.0 2.1 4.1
$  (2.0) 40 $ (163) $ 312 $ 168
3 0049 S 008 § (036§ 056 § 025
3 0049 S$ 008 § (036§ 056 § 025
S 0049 S 008 § (032) § 060 § 033
3 0049 S 008 § (032) § 060 § 033
$ 0.4 024 $ 024 $ 0.4 0.96

The sum of quarterly per share amounts may not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares

outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:
Earned Premiums.........ceeiiieieeieiiecieeiceie e
Net Investment INCOME..........cccuieiiieiiiieeiie e
Other INCOME ......cviiiieiicciiccieeee e
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments...............cccccveeuneene.
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses.....................

Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
INCOME ..o

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........c.cccccccouenee.
Total REVENUES ......cecviiiiiiiciiieictceec e
Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPEenses..........ccoccvevevvieieieniiiieieieee e

Insurance EXPenses ......ccccoovouiiiiiieniiiiiiieesieeeee e
Write-off Long-lived ASSet.........ccevveiuieieriiriiiieieieereeeeeeeie s
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt...........cccceoiiiieninnen.
Interest and Other EXPenses ..........coevvvevevieniiieeieiiereeeesiesieeeens
Total EXPENSES.....uecvieeiiiiiiieiieiiiteeteetesie ettt sb et se s enens
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes..
Income Tax Benefit (EXPEnse)........cccceevvieieviinieeeeieniieeeieiesieeiens
Income from Continuing Operations.............c.oceeveverreereeeeriesneenens
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations..............cccccvevveruenenns
NEt INCOME ...t

Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share:

Year

Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended

Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

§ 4313 § 5001 § 5367 $ 541.5 $2,009.6

70.6 76.7 75.9 79.4 302.6
0.9 0.6 0.8 1.4 3.7

3.4 34.0 5.3 9.4 52.1
(7.0) 2.2) (33) (149  (27.4)

— — — 0.2 0.2
(7.0) 2.2) (33) (147  (272)
4992 609.2 615.4 617.0 23408
297.7 375.1 378.8 4160  1467.6
144.9 162.1 161.1 177.0 645.1
— 11.1 — — 11.1

9.1 — — — 9.1
29.7 26.6 25.7 25.6 107.6
481.4 574.9 565.6 618.6  2,240.5
17.8 343 49.8 (1.6) 1003
(4.3) 69) (118 2.9 (20.1)
13.5 27.4 38.0 13 80.2
— 23 (0.1) 33 55

$ 135 $ 297 $ 379 $ 46 $ 857
$ 026 $ 053 $ 073 $ 003 $ 155
$ 026 $ 053 $§ 073 $ 003 $ 155
$ 026 $ 057 $ 073 $ 009 $ 1.65
$ 026 $ 057 $§ 073 $ 009 $ 165
$ 024 $ 024 S 024 $ 024 $ 096

The sum of quarterly per share amounts may not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares

outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KEMPER CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. Our audits also included the
financial statement schedules listed in the index at Item 15. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for
these financial statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedules and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 13,2017
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not Applicable

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with participation of Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by Kemper in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms, and accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2016 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We, as management of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

»  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

*  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

*  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on
the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 2013 by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, we have concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2016.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, as auditors of the consolidated financial
statements of Kemper and its subsidiaries, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of management’s internal control
over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 2013 by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR. /S/ JAMES J. MCKINNEY

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr. James J. McKinney

President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Kemper Corporation Kemper Corporation

February 13,2017
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The attestation report of the independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is included in Item 8 under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

At its meeting on February 7, 2017, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved annual incentive
compensation awards pursuant to Kemper’s Executive Performance Plan and the Company’s new incentive compensation
program implemented in 2016. The Compensation Committee approved a cash incentive award under the new program for Mr.
Roeske, one of the “named executive officers” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders,
who does not participate in the Executive Performance Plan. The amount of the award approved for Mr. Roeske for 2016 was
not materially different from the amount of the award he had received for 2015 under the Company’s prior program.

The Compensation Committee also approved a change in practice with regard to the grant date for its annual equity-based
compensation awards. Beginning with the 2017 annual awards, the grant date will be the date of the committee’s first quarter
meeting at which such awards are approved, resuming the practice for such awards prior to 2016.
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PART II1
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Election of Directors,”
“Executive Officers,” “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock™ and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement for
Kemper’s 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Kemper plans to file such proxy statement within 120 days after
December 31, 2016, the end of Kemper’s fiscal year.

Kemper’s code of ethics applicable to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer and principal accounting officer (“Code
of Ethics for Senior Financial Executives”) is posted in the “Governance” section of Kemper’s website, kemper.com. Kemper
also intends to disclose any future amendments to, and any waivers from (though none are anticipated), the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Executives in the “Governance” section of its website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Executive Compensation,”
“Executive Officer Compensation and Benefits,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2017 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The Compensation Committee Report to be included in such Proxy Statement shall be deemed to be furnished in
this report and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act as a
result of such furnishing in this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is set forth in the table below and incorporated herein by reference to the section
captioned “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights or Programs (1)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security Holders........cccoeveierieriiieieieeeeeenns 1,306,123 $ 36.35 6,762,714
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders.........cccovvveevieeciiiiieiieieeeene — — —
Total..cooiiic 1,306,123 § 36.35 6,762,714

(1) Includes 682,752 shares reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of
outstanding performance-based RSU awards.

Kemper’s Omnibus Plan permits various stock-based awards including, but not limited to, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, DSUs, time-vested restricted stock and RSUs, and performance-based restricted stock and RSUs.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards™ are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, RSUs,
DSUs, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Related Person
Transactions” and “Director Independence” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Independent Registered Public
Accountant” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report

1. Financial Statements. The consolidated balance sheets of Kemper and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and
the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, together with the notes thereto and the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP thereon
appearing in Item 8 are included in this 2016 Annual Report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules. The following four financial statement schedules are included on the pages immediately
following the signature pages hereof. Schedules not listed here have been omitted because they are not applicable or not
material or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Schedule I Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties
Schedule II Parent Company Financial Statements

Schedule III Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance Schedule

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, with regards to the Financial
Statement Schedules listed above, is incorporated by reference to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accountant
included in Item 8.

3. Exhibits. An Exhibit Index has been filed as part of this report on pages E-1 through E-5.
(b) Exhibits. Included in Item 15(a)3 above

(c) Financial Statement Schedules. Included in Item 15(a)2 above

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below on the following page hereby appoints each of Joseph P. Lacher, Jr., President and
Chief Executive Officer, James J. McKinney, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Richard Roeske, Vice
President and Chief Accounting Officer, so long as such individual remains an executive officer of Kemper Corporation, his
true and lawful attorney-in-fact with authority together or individually to execute in the name of each such signatory, and with
authority to file with the SEC, any and all amendments to this 2016 Annual Report of Kemper Corporation, together with any
and all exhibits thereto and other documents therewith, necessary or advisable to enable Kemper Corporation to comply with
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the SEC in respect thereof,
which amendments may make such other changes in the 2016 Annual Report as the aforesaid attorney-in-fact executing the
same deems appropriate.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Kemper Corporation has duly caused this
2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, on February 13, 2017.

KEMPER CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.
Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Kemper Corporation in the capacities indicated on February 13, 2017.

Signature
/S/ ROBERT J. JOYCE

Robert J. Joyce

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.

/S/ JAMES J. MCKINNEY

James J. McKinney

/S/" RICHARD ROESKE

Richard Roeske

/S/" GEORGE N. COCHRAN

George N. Cochran

/S/" KATHLEEN M. CRONIN

Kathleen M. Cronin

/S/" DOUGLAS G. GEOGA

Douglas G. Geoga

/S/" THOMAS M. GOLDSTEIN

Thomas M. Goldstein

/S/" LACY M. JOHNSON

Lacy M. Johnson

/S/ CHRISTOPHER B. SAROFIM

Christopher B. Sarofim

/S/" DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch

Title
Chairman of the Board and Director

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (principal
executive officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer)

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (principal

accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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SCHEDULE 1

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES
DECEMBER 31, 2016
(Dollars in Millions)

Amount
Amortized Carried in
Cost Fair Value  Balance Sheet
Fixed Maturities:
Bonds and Notes:
United States Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............. $ 3212 $§ 3363 $ 336.3
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS ........c.eovvviiiieieiieeeeeee e 1,640.6 1,714.9 1,714.9
Foreign Governments 3.5 3.4 34
Corporate Securities:
Other Bonds and NOEES ........ccveiiuiieieieiisieeiee et 2,758.9 2,944.8 2,944.8
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .......ovvieiieiieiieiciceceeeee e 0.5 0.6 0.6
Collateralized Loan ObIiations .........ccecueeveeiierieeriieniieniieneeniee e eee e 121.2 122.8 122.8
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed..........ccoovviiieriinieieieneceeeee e 0.9 2.1 2.1
Total Investments in Fixed Maturiti€S........cccocovuereeuieeerueeeeeee e eeeee e 4,846.8 5,124.9 5,124.9
Equity Securities:
Preferred StOCKS....oouiiiiiiieeiece et 76.6 82.5 82.5
COMMON SEOCKS ...eeutiiitiieiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt st e st e e sebeesbeenbeesbe e seenseenseesseas 384 45.2 45.2
Other EQUItY INTETESES ..eouveeeieeeiieieeieeie ettt sttt eve et seesseenaeeneaas 319.4 354.0 354.0
Total Investments in EQUILY SECUTTLIES.......cciieriirieiiieiieieeie et 434.4 481.7 481.7
Fair Value Option INVEStMENTS.......cceeoieriiriieieieeiieiieieie ettt eie e sse e 111.4 111.4 111.4
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative
Undistributed Earnings .........cccooeeieriiiiiiiiieesee e 175.9 XXX.X 175.9
Loans, Real Estate and Other INVEStMENtS .........cooovivviiiiiiieie e 439.9 XXX.X 439.9
Short-term INVESTMENLS .........ccveivieieieiiiieieieete ettt ettt sse e esaesesseeseesaesseas 273.7 XXX.X 273.7
Total INVESTMENTS......cuvviiieeieeieeeeeeee et e e e e e enaeeeaeeeenneeeneeas $ 6,282.1 $ 6,607.5

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Millions)

ASSETS

INVEStMENtS 1N SUDSIAIATIES ...eevvievieiieciieeiieciie ettt ettt ettt et esteestaessaeesaeesaeesbeesseesseesseeseesseenseenes
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2016 — $46.3; 2015 — $15.1).cueieieiiiieeiecee
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2016 — $5.2; 2015 — $11.1)ciiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeee e
Fair Value Option INVESTMENLS. .......ceevieriieiieieieitieiieiete et etete ettt saesseeteessessesseeseessesseeseessessessaessensesseesees
Short-term INVESTMENLS .........ccviiiieiieieitieiieteie ettt ettt ettt ettt e see e e e b esseeseessessesseessenseesesssessensenseens

CUITENT INCOME TAXES....c.etiiitiiiieeiit ittt ettt ettt ettt e bt e bt e bt e sbbesbbeeatesatesateeabeeaneenres
OtNET ASSEES. .. eentett ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt ekttt et e st e e bt es e m et et e e st e st et e eb e e m e et e e bt e st en e e eaeen e en s et e eteeneeneesaeeneene
TOLAL ASSEES. .. eeutenteeieeitet ettt ettt b ettt h ettt b e bbbt s et bt b e st h e ehees e e bbb et nhe et ene
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2017 (Fair Value: 2016 — $365.3; 2015 — $374.0)...ccoevveveeereierennnn.
Senior Notes Payable, 4.35% due 2025 (Fair Value: 2016 - $248.5; 2015 — $248.3)...ccovvvveinreene.
Subordinated Debentures due 2054 (Fair Value: 2016 — $157.1; 2015 — $159.0) .c.covvviiiieieeceieiene.
Current InCoOmMe Tax LiabDility .......coveoiiiiiieieieeeee ettt ettt e e saeeneene
Deferred INcome Tax LAability .......cceoieriiiuirieieiieieee ettt
Liabilities for Benefit PIANS........cccoooiiiiiiiiieee e
Accrued Expenses and Other LIiabilities .........cccuieviiiiiiiiiieriieiieiesiesieesee sttt
TOAL LAADIIIEIES. ¢ vttt ettt sttt b e bttt b ettt et et ettt ee b e
Shareholders’ Equity:
COMIMON SEOCK ...ttt ettt ettt et e ettt e est e e e e st ese e aesseeseeseensesseeseensaseeseeneensenseeseeneensesnenneans
Additional Paid-in Capital.........ccooieieiiiiiieiee ettt ene et eneeneas
Retained EarNingsS .......coouiiuiiiieiieiiet ettt sttt ettt ettt e e eeeneeneene
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME...........cuiiiieiiiiiiiiieieet et
Total Shareholders” EQUILY ......c.cooiiiieiieiieiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e seaessbeenseenbeenbeeseenseenes
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” EQUItY ........cccccveriiiiiieiiiieieieiesteeeee et sae e

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

SCH II-1

SCHEDULE I

December 31,

2016 2015
$2,575.5 $ 2,586.6
46.3 15.1
53 10.9
111.4 164.5
120.0 134.8
15.7 15.9
34 5.7
2.4 —
7.5 6.1
$2,887.5 $2,939.6
$ 3598 $§ 359.1
247.7 247.4
144.1 144.1
— 11.3
34.0 22.0
118.7 154.8
8.0 8.5
912.3 947.2
5.1 5.1
660.3 654.0
1,172.8 1,209.0
137.0 124.3
1,975.2 1,992.4

$ 2,887.5

$ 2,939.6



KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Net INVeStMENt INCOME. ......c.eiuiiiiiiiiieieiiee ettt ettt ese e eeas $ 20 § 1.7 % 0.9
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of INVEStMENTS .......c.cooveervieriieriienienieiiesie e 0.1 (0.1 0.2)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in EQrnings..........cccueeevieiieniienienienieniencesie e eie e — (1.6) 1.7)
TOtAl REVEIIUECS ......evieiieiiciieiieie ettt ettt sttt ebe et esteeseestesesbaessensenseenaensens 2.1 — (1.0)
TNEETESt EXPENISE. ...ueeiiiiiiiiieeiie ettt ettt ettt ettt e b e e b neee 45.2 47.3 47.9
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt.........cc.cccooiviiiiiiininiiiiiiiccencccs — 9.1 —
Other Operating (Benefits) EXPenSes ........cooueiuiriieiereiiiieiee et 6.1) 17.6 2.7
Total Operating EXPENSES......ccoueiuiiieiiiiiieieeetteee sttt sttt see e ennens 39.1 74.0 50.6
Loss before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........cccccceevvereennennee. (37.0) (74.0) (51.6)
INCome Tax BeneTit......couivuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13.4 26.5 18.9
Loss before Equity in Net Income of SubSidiaries ..........ocvevvervieieienienieieiee e (23.6) (47.5) (32.7)
Equity in Net Income of SUDSIIATIES . ......ceeveriiiieieiiii et 40.4 133.2 147.2
INEEINCOIMIE ...ttt ettt et ettt ettt ettt et e e aeete e st et e eaeeae et eeseeseensennes $ 168 $ 857 $ 1145

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
INEE TICOIMNE ..ttt ettt b ettt b e e et e st et ek e et e st eseeseneeneenen $ 168 $ 857 $ 1145
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES ....c..ovveeviiieieiieiieieie e (2.6) (150.4) 261.7
Securities Held by Parent..........ccoooieiiiiiieieiieieee e 0.2 (1.5) (2.0)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIArIes .......couevuiiieiiiieiieiee e 0.2 (26.9) (26.8)
Securities Held By Parent.........c..ocveviieiiieiieiiecieee ettt — 1.5 1.7
Unrealized Holding Gaing (LOSSES)....ccveerurerieriieriienieniesieeieeie e ereeseesseeieesseenseenseenens (2.2) (177.3) 234.6
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeat..........ccoccvevuveneene. 14.2 3.0 (106.4)
Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Curtailment Cost RECOZNIZE ........ccuevviriieieiiieiieieieee e 1.0 — —
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COsts ..........ccocevveeecrinienennn 53 23.1 7.9
Total Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income...................... 6.3 23.1 7.9
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COostS .........cccoveririeieniiiiieeceeeereeeeene 20.5 26.1 (98.5)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on Investments Held by Subsidiaries.......... 0.3) (1.4) (1.0)
Gain on Cash FIOW HEAZE ........oovieiiiiiiiieieeieeeeeeee et 1.6 — —
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) before Income TaXes ........ceevevvieievierienieieienieeeennns 19.6 (152.6) 135.1
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIArIes .......covevuieieiiiieiieieie e 1.1 53.4 (92.3)
Securities Held by Parent..........ooooiiiiiiiiiieee e (0.1) 0.5 0.7
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUDSIAIATIES .....ecveevieriieriieiieiecie ettt (0.1) 9.4 9.4
Securities Held DY Parent...........ccoeoieviiiiiieiiiiieieiee ettt — 0.5) (0.6)
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES..........ccvevuerriiieiieriiniiiieieieete et saeeineneens 0.9 62.8 (82.8)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeat........ccccocveeveeennnn. (5.0) (1.1) 37.5
Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Curtailment Cost RECOZNIZE ........coueiuiiiirieieiiiieee e 0.4) — —
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs .........cccooceveeveriniecnee. (1.9) (8.0) (2.8)
Total Reclassification Adjustments for Amounts Included in Net Income...................... 2.3) (8.0) (2.8)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........oocvevviviieiiieiiiiiieiieceiceeeeee e (7.3) (CAY) 34.7
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on Investments Held by Subsidiaries.......... 0.1 0.5 0.4
Gain on Cash Flow Hedge (0.6) — —
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) ......cccuerieiuirieieieiieiieieeet ettt (6.9) 54.2 (47.7)
Other Comprehensive INCOme (LOSS).....eoueeieriirieieierieeiieee e 12.7 (98.4) 87.4
Total Comprehensive INCOME (LOSS)......ccviieriirrieieiiiieceeetete ettt esneas $ 295 § (12.7) $ 2019

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Operating Activities:
INEE TIICOIMC. ...ttt ettt s e ettt ettt s et b e ne e $ 168 $§ 857 §$§ 1145
Adjustment Required to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations:
Equity in Net Income of SubSIAIAries .........ccuevveriieieriiriieieieieeeeeeee e (40.4) (133.2) (147.2)
Cash Dividends from SubSidiaries...........couecieirerieiriniinieieereseee ettt 71.7 285.0 159.1
Cash Received for Benefit Plan from Subsidiary ............ccocevieieiienenenieiieeeeeeene 14 — —
Cash Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan .............cccooveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccieceeeees 9.0) — —
Net Realized (Gains) Losses on Sales of Investments.........c.cceeeveevieeviieniieneeneenneenne. 0.1) 0.1 0.2
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........ccocveveviiiiieienincenencneene — 1.6 1.7
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt..........cccocveiieniiiieniiiiiccieeiecc e — 9.1 —
ONET, NEL..c.eeeiteeet ettt ettt ettt s et ettt be st e eneeees 9.3) 41.6 10.5
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACHVILICS........ecververrieieieieeiieieiesreeieeiere e eeeaese e eseenees 371 289.9 138.8
Investing Activities:
Capital Contributed to SUDSIAIATY .......ccoeciririeriiiiiniiiciireeeee e (52.9) (105.0) —
Capital Distribution from SubSidiary...........ccccereiiiieiiinini et — — 1.1
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturities ..........ccoccverieriervieniienieeieeieeie e 73.5 11.8 11.5
Purchases of FIXed MatUIIties .......cceevieiierieeiiieiiesieeseesiee sttt eteesevesee e enseenseeseeaeeneees (77.9) (14.8) —
Sales Of EQUILY SE@CUITIES ...eeuvieiieiieiieiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt e saeesaeeseeesnaeenseenseenneas 35 9.4 15.1
Sales of Fair Value Option INVESTMENLS...........cververriiieiiieiieeieiecieee e eeeenens 72.2 — 6.9
Purchases of Fair Value Option INVeStMENts...........ccccverviriiierieniieieieiese e (21.0) (111.0) (60.9)
AcqUISItion Of BUSINESS ...c..eoviiuieieiieiieierie ettt ettt see et neeneeneas — (71.0) —
Change in Short-term INVESTMENES ........cc.ooiriieiiiiiieieese e 14.8 90.3 (94.3)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing ACHVILIES.......c.eeverueriieierierieniieieieeie e eeeenes 12.2 (190.3) (120.6)
Financing Activities:
Net Proceeds from Issuance of Debt ..........coccoieriiriniiiininiiiieeeeeeee e — 247.3 144.0
Repayments 0f DEDE ......c..ooiiiiiiiieiicii et — (258.8) —
Cash Dividends Paid..........cccooouiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et (49.2) (49.7) (51.8)
Common Stock REPUICRASES .......oouieuiiieiieiieiee ettt 3.8) (45.0) (114.0)
Cash Exercise of StoCK OPHIONS .......coueveiriirieieiiiiniiieinenesteeeieereeee e 3.5 3.9 0.5
Excess Tax Benefits on Share Based AWards...........ccceririiiiieniiieeeeceee e — 0.7 0.2
Net Cash Used by FInancing ACtIVItIES.......co.eiuerieriiriiieieieeieeieeie e (49.5) (101.6) (21.1)
DeCrease N CaSH ...ocuiiiiiiieeiece ettt et et b et naeenaeeenes 0.2) (2.0) 2.9
Cash, Be@iNNing Of YEaL.......c.cccvviiieiiiiiiieieiteeteet ettt ettt re e ssesbeesaensesseesaennens 15.9 17.9 20.8
CaSh, BN OF YEAT.....ccuiiieiieeeeeeeee ettt ettt eenaa $ 157 § 159 $ 179

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

(Dollars in Millions)

SCHEDULE 111

Year Ended December 31, At December 31
Insurance
Claims Amortization
and Of Deferred Deferred
Net Policy- Policy Other Policy
Earned Premiums Other Investment holders’ Acquisition Insurance Acquisition Insurance Unearned
Premiums Written Income Income Benefits Costs Expenses Costs Reserves Premiums
2016
Property & Casualty Insurance .............cccc.... $1,6148 $1,6209 § 05 $§ 724 $13192 § 252.1 $ 1336 $ 82.1 $§ 8841 $ 592.0
Life & Health Insurance (1) 605.2 N/A 2.8 213.2 461.6 47.2 266.7 249.9 3,479.8 26.7
Other ... —_ N/A (0.1) 12.7 —_ —_ (52.3) —_ 42.8 —
Total. ..o $ 2,220.0 N/A § 32 $ 2983 $1,780.8 $ 2993 $§ 348.0 $ 332.0 $4,406.7 $ 618.7
2015
Property & Casualty Insurance ...........cc.c...... $ 14152 $ 14062 $ 06 $ 733 $1,0862 § 213.1 $ 1550 $ 80.7 $ 800.5 $ 586.1
Life & Health Insurance (1) .........ccccceeecnies 594.4 N/A 24 214.2 381.3 443 275.7 235.7 3,346.2 27.0
N/A 0.7 15.1 — — (42.9) — 57.1 —
N/A § 37 $ 302.6 $1,4675 $ 2574 $ 3878 $ 3164 $42038 $ 613.1
2014
Property & Casualty Insurance .............c.c.c.... $1,2495 $1,189.1 $ 05 $ 727 $ 8373 § 187.5 $ 166.2
Life & Health Insurance (1) ......cccooevveerieennne 612.7 N/A 0.9 218.7 374.4 479 268.1
11111 SN — N/A — 17.7 — — (41.3)
Total...cooiiiiicc $ 1,862.2 N/A $ 14§ 309.1 $1261.7 § 2354 $ 393.0

(1) The Company’s Life & Health Insurance employee-agents also market certain property and casualty insurance products under common management. Accordingly,
the Company includes the results of these property and casualty insurance products in its Life & Health Insurance segment.

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE IV

KEMPER CORPORATION
REINSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016, 2015 AND 2014
(Dollars in Millions)

Percentage

Ceded to Assumed of Amount

Gross Other from Other Net Assumed to

Amount Companies Companies Amount Net
Year Ended December 31, 2016

Life Insurance in FOrce .........oooovvvviiiiiiiiiiieieeeeee e $ 20,889.0 486.9 195.0 $ 20,597.1 0.9%
Premiums: -
Life INSULANCE .....eovvivieiieiieiecieeeeeie e $ 3814 1.4 1.3 § 3813 0.3%
Accident and Health Insurance............cccceevveieveniennennnnns 144.9 0.5 5.3 149.7 3.5%
Property and Liability Insurance ...........ccoccoevvveviennrnenne. 1,645.4 17.1 60.7 1,689.0 3.6%
Total Premiums.......covvvviiieeieie i $ 2,171.7 19.0 67.3 $ 2,220.0 3.0%
Year Ended December 31, 2015 -
Life InsSurance in FOICE .....uummmiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 20,209.8 514.2 205.7 $19,901.3 1.0%
Premiums: -
Life INSULANCE .....eovveiieeieiieieieeie et $ 3741 1.4 14 § 3741 0.4%
Accident and Health Insurance............ccccceevveveveeniernennnnns 139.8 0.5 5.6 144.9 3.9%
Property and Liability Insurance ...........cccccoecvrveriennennnne. 1,456.2 18.7 53.1 1,490.6 3.6%
Total Premiums.........cc.oeviovieieeiierieeieieere e $ 1,970.1 20.6 60.1 $ 2,009.6 3.0%
Year Ended December 31, 2014 -
Life InsSurance in FOICE .....uummmiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 20,565.9 541.5 217.8 $20,242.2 1.1%
Premiums: -
Life INSULANCE ....veovvevieveceieiecreeieeieee e $ 3875 1.5 1.6 $§ 387.6 0.4%
Accident and Health Insurance............ccoceevveieveriernennnnns 146.3 0.5 2.8 148.6 1.9%
Property and Liability Insurance ...........cccccoeveveienennnne. 1,297.3 24.0 52.7 1,326.0 4.0%
Total Premiums.........cocviiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1,831.1 26.0 571 $§ 1,862.2 3.1%

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are either filed as a part hereof or are incorporated by reference. Exhibit numbers followed by an
asterisk (*) indicate exhibits that are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filed or
Furnished
Filing Date Herewith

3.1
32

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4*

10.5%*

Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Kemper
Corporation

Indenture dated as of June 26, 2002, by and
between Kemper and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee to
BNY Midwest Trust Company, as Trustee

Officers’ Certificate, including form of Senior
Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00% Senior
Notes due May 15, 2017

Indenture, dated as of February 27, 2014, by and
between Kemper Corporation and The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as
Trustee

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of
February 27, 2014, to the Indenture dated as of
February 27, 2014, by and between Kemper and
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A., as Trustee (including the form of 7.375%
Subordinated Debentures due 2054).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
February 24, 2015, to the Indenture, dated as of
February 27, 2014, between Kemper
Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (including the
form of 4.350% Senior Notes due 2025)

Form of Certificate Representing Shares of
Kemper Corporation Common Stock

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated
as of June 2, 2015, by and among Kemper, the
lenders party thereto, JP Morgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as administrative agent, swing line lender
and issuing bank, and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association and Fifth Third Bank, as
co-syndication agents

Advances and Security Agreement and
Addendum to Advances and Security
Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2013,
between Trinity Universal Insurance Company
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas

Advances, Collateral Pledge, and Security
Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2014,
between United Insurance Company of America
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago

Kemper Pension Equalization Plan, as amended
and restated effective August 25, 2011, as
amended by Amendment No. 2 effective
September 16, 2013

Kemper Supplemental Retirement Plan, as
amended and restated effective September 22,
2016

8-K
8-K

8-K

10-Q

8-K

10-K

8-K

10-K

10-K

E-1

001-18298
001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

32
3.3

4.1

43

4.1

4.2

4.2

4.6

10.1

10.2

10.1

10.3

August 8, 2014
August 8, 2014

May 14,2012

May 7, 2012

February 27, 2014

February 27, 2014

February 24, 2015

February 12, 2016

June 8, 2015

February 14, 2014

March 21, 2014

February 14, 2014



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filed or
Furnished
Filing Date Herewith

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

Kemper Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
Plan, as amended and restated effective March
16,2016

Kemper Severance Plan, as amended and
restated effective August 25, 2011

Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as amended and restated effective
February 3, 2009

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 3, 2009

Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement
under the Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006

Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 3, 2009

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement
under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement (including
stock appreciation rights) under the Kemper
2002 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2011

Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as amended
and restated effective October 30, 2013

Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 8, 2017

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of August 25,
2011

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award
Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus
Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

Form of Deferred Stock Unit Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Installment-Vesting form under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4,
2014

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q
10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

E-2

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

10.3

10.18

10.2

10.6

10.7

10.2

10.8

10.4

10.9

10.9

10.1

10.13

10.24

10.25

10.1

10.2

10.24

May 5, 2016

November 2, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

February 3, 2011

October 31, 2013

February 17, 2012

February 15, 2013

February 15, 2013

May 2, 2013

May 2, 2013

February 14, 2014



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.24*

10.25%

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30%*

10.31*

10.32%*

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36%*

10.37*

10.38*

10.39*

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Cliff-Vesting Form under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Installment-Vesting Form
under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan,
as of February 4, 2014

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Cliff- Vesting Form under
the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of
February 4, 2014

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 26, 2016

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement (Relative TSR) under
the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of
February 7, 2017

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement (Adjusted ROE) under
the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of
February 7, 2017

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Installment-Vesting form under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 7,
2017

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Cliff-Vesting Form under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 7, 2017

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Installment-Vesting Form
under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan,
as of February 7, 2017

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Cliff- Vesting Form under
the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of
February 7, 2017

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective October 29,
2013 (for awards through February 3, 2014)

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective February 4,
2014

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

E-3

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.1

10.2

10.21

10.32

10.33

10.34

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

May 5, 2016

October 31, 2013

February 15,2013

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014
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File Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.40*

10.41*

10.42*

10.43*

10.44*

10.45*

12
21
23
24

Kemper Executive Performance Plan, effective ~ 10-K
February 4, 2014

Kemper is a party to individual Indemnification 8-K
and Expense Advancement Agreements with

each of its directors, as amended and restated

effective February 1, 2012

Kemper is a party to individual severance
agreements with the following executive
officers:

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr. (President and Chief
Executive Officer)

John M. Boschelli (Senior Vice President and
Chief Investment Officer)

Charles T. Brooks (Senior Vice President &
Chief Information Officer)

George "Chip" D. Dufala, Jr. (Senior Vice
President and President, Property & Casualty
Division)

C. Thomas Evans, Jr. (Senior Vice President,
Secretary & General Counsel)

Mark A. Green (Senior Vice President and
President, Life & Health Division)

James J. McKinney (Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer)

Christine F. Mullins (Senior Vice President,
Chief Human Resources Officer)

Richard Roeske (Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer)

Each of the foregoing agreements is identical
except that the multipliers for benefits related to
bonus, severance, life insurance and health
insurance are 150%, 3 years, 3 years and 36
months, respectively, for Mr. Lacher and 110%,
2 years, 2 years and 24 months, respectively, for
the other officers.

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr. Offer Letter dated 8-K
November 19, 2015

Separation Agreement, dated as of March 2, 10-Q
2016, with Denise 1. Lynch, former Vice

President and Property & Casualty Group

Executive of the Company

Letter with Frank J. Sodaro, former Chief 10-Q
Financial Officer, dated October 7, 2016, with
Separation Agreement included as Exhibit B

and subsequently executed by the parties

without material revision as of January 13, 2017

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney (included on the signature
page hereof)

E-4

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

10.35

10.25

10.1

February 14, 2014

February 6, 2012

November 20, 2015

10.2 May 5, 2016

10.1

November 3, 2016

XK KX



Incorporated by Reference

Filed or

Exhibit Furnished

Number Exhibit Description Form  File Number  Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer X
Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant X
to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer X
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)
(32) of Regulation S-K)

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant X
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of
Regulation S-K)

1011 XBRL Instance X

101.2 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document X

101.3 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation X
Linkbase Document

101.4 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase X
Document

101.5 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation X
Linkbase Document

101.6 XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition X

Linkbase Document

E-5



THE FOLLOWING EXHIBITS ARE AVAILABLE IN THE INVESTOR SECTION OF KEMPER’S WEBSITE,
KEMPER.COM UNDER THE HEADING, SEC FILINGS:

e EXHIBIT 10.5 — KEMPER SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLAN, AS AMENDED AND RESTATED
EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 22, 2016

e EXHIBIT 10.17 - KEMPER 2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN, AS AMENDED AND RESTATED EFFECTIVE
FEBRUARY 8, 2017

e EXHIBIT 10.29 — FORM OF PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
(RELATIVE TSR) UNDER THE KEMPER 2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN, AS OF FEBRUARY 7, 2017

e EXHIBIT 10.30 — FORM OF PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
(ADJUSTED ROE) UNDER THE KEMPER 2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN, AS OF FEBRUARY 7, 2017

e EXHIBIT 10.31 — FORM OF STOCK OPTION AND SAR AGREEMENT -INSTALLMENT-VESTING FORM
UNDER THE KEMPER 2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN, AS OF FEBRUARY 7, 2017

e EXHIBIT 10.32 — FORM OF STOCK OPTION AND SAR AGREEMENT -CLIFF-VESTING FORM UNDER
THE KEMPER 2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN, AS OF FEBRUARY 7, 2017

e EXHIBIT 10.33 =FORM OF TIME-VESTED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT -
INSTALLMENT-VESTING FORM UNDER THE KEMPER 2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN, AS OF
FEBRUARY 7, 2017

e EXHIBIT 10.34 —-FORM OF TIME-VESTED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT - CLIFF-
VESTING FORM UNDER THE KEMPER 2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN, AS OF FEBRUARY 7, 2017

e EXHIBIT 10.42 -FORM OF SEVERANCE AGREEMENT WITH EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
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Exhibit 12

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Dollars in Millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes........... $ 35 § 1003 $ 1602 $ 3144 $ 1224
Less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability

INVESTMENLS ..ot (7.5) (19.0) 9.0) (26.4) 9.3)
Plus Distribution of Accumulated Earnings in Equity Method

Limited Liability Investments..............ccccceeuieievieireeeeieneeeennns 15.7 8.6 21.7 15.4 15.4
Plus Fixed Charges.........cooveiieeieeiiiiieieeie et 50.2 52.3 52.9 443 45.1
Less Capitalized INterest ..........oocvevvereiieierieeeeeeceeee e 0.9) (0.8) (1.0) (0.9 (1.8)
Total BAININGS........ocveviveeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 610 $ 1414 $ 2248 § 3468 $ 171.8
INEETESE ..ttt $ 478 $ 500 $§ 503 § 417 § 414
Rental FaCtOr ......ooviuiciiiiiiiicicsecc e 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9
Capitalized INtEreSt.........ccvevviriiiieieieeieieie et 0.9 0.8 1.0 0.9 1.8
Total Fixed Charges.........coooveieveveieveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 502 $ 523 § 529 § 443 § 451
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (2).........ccccceevvevvieievenienreenne. 1.2x 2.7x 42x 7.8 x 3.8x

(2)

The ratios of earnings to fixed charges have been computed on a consolidated basis by dividing (a) Income from Continuing
Operations before Income Taxes less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus Distribution
of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus fixed charges, and less capitalized interest,
by (b) fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest on debt and a factor for interest included in rent expense. Income from
Continuing Operations before Income Taxes has the meaning as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Income included
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments and Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments have the
meanings as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2016.



Subsidiaries of KEMPER CORPORATION

Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation, with their states of incorporation in parentheses, are as follows:

1. Alliance United Group, LLC (California)
2. Alliance United Insurance Company (California)
3. Alliance United Insurance Services, LLC (California)
4. Alpha Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Wisconsin)
5. Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (Texas)*
6. Charter Indemnity Company (Texas)
7. Direct Response Corporation (Delaware)
8. Family Security Funerals Company (Texas)
9. Financial Indemnity Company (Illinois)
10. KAHG LLC (Illinois)
11. Kemper Corporate Services, Inc. (Illinois)
12. Kemper Direct General Agency, Inc. (Texas)
13. Kemper Financial Indemnity Company (Illinois)
14. Kemper General Agency, Inc. (Texas)
15. Kemper Independence Insurance Company (Illinois)
16. Merastar Industries LLC (Delaware)
17. Merastar Insurance Company (Illinois)
18. Mutual Savings Fire Insurance Company (Alabama)
19. Mutual Savings Life Insurance Company (Alabama)
20. NCM Management Corporation (Delaware)
21. Old Reliable Casualty Company (Missouri)*
22. The Reliable Life Insurance Company (Missouri)
23. Reserve National Insurance Company (Oklahoma)
24. Response Insurance Company (Illinois)
25. Response Worldwide Direct Auto Insurance Company (Illinois)
26. Response Worldwide Insurance Company (Illinois)
27. Security One Agency LLC (Illinois)
28. Trinity Universal Insurance Company (Texas)
29. Union National Fire Insurance Company (Louisiana)
30. Union National Life Insurance Company (Louisiana)
31. United Casualty Insurance Company of America (Illinois)
32. United Insurance Company of America (Illinois)
33. Unitrin Advantage Insurance Company (New York)
34. Unitrin Auto and Home Insurance Company (New York)
35. Unitrin County Mutual Insurance Company (Texas)*
36. Unitrin Direct Insurance Company (Illinois)
37. Unitrin Direct Property & Casualty Company (Illinois)
38. Unitrin Preferred Insurance Company (New York)
39. Unitrin Safeguard Insurance Company (Wisconsin)
40. Valley Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Oregon)
41. Warner Insurance Company (Illinois)

* May be deemed to be an affiliate pursuant to Rule 1-02 of SEC Regulation S-X.
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-58300, 333-4530, 333-86935, 333-76076,
333-87898 and 333-173877 on Form S-8 and Nos. 333-127215, 333-142722 and 333-194032 on Form S-3 of our report, dated
February 13, 2017, relating to the consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedules of Kemper
Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”), and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 13,2017



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Joseph P. Lacher, Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 13,2017

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.
Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, James J. McKinney, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 13,2017

/S/ JAMES J. MCKINNEY
James J. McKinney

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2016 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), Joseph P. Lacher,
Jr., as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.
Name: Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 13, 2017




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2016 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), James J.
McKinney, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/ JAMES J. MCKINNEY
Name:  James J. McKinney
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 13,2017
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Kemper Corporation Board of Directors

Robert J. Joyce Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
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